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VANTAGE

EQUITIES, INC.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS’ MEETING

TO: ALL STOCKHOLDERS

NOTICE is hereby given that there will be an annual meeting of the stockholders of VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC. on
Saturday, 4 August 2012 at 9:30 in the morningat the Rigodon Ballroom, The Peninsula Manila (Corner of
Ayala and Makati Avenue, Makati City) to consider the following:

AGENDA
. Call to Order
2. Proof of Notice of Meeting
3. Certification of Quorum
4. Approval of the Minutes of the Previous Meeting of Stockholders
5. Approval of 2011 Operations and Results
8. Ratification of all Acts of the Board of Directors and Officers
7. Election of Directors
8. "Appointment of External Auditors
9. Other Matters
10. Adjournment

In accordance with the rules of the Philippine Stock Exchange, the close of business on 4 July 2012has heen
fixed as the record date for the determination of the stockholders entitled to notlce of and vote at said meeting
and any adjournment thereof.

Registration for those who are personally attending the meeting will start at 9:00 a.m. and end promptly at 9:20
a.m.. All stockholders who will not, are unable, or do not expect to attend the meeting in person are encouraged
to fill out, date, sign and send a proxy to the Corporation at 27/F East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre,
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City, Metro Manila, Philippines. All proxies should be received by the
Corporation at least five(5) days before the meeting, or on or before 30 July 2012. Proxies submitted shall be
validated by a Committee of Inspectors on 31July 2012 at 10 o'clock in the morning at Unit 2703-B East Tower,
Philippine Stock Exchange Center, Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City. For corporate stockholders, the
proxies should be accompanied by a Secretary’s Certification.on the appointment of the corporation’s authorized
signatary. : :

To avoid inconvenience in registering your attendance at the meeting, you or your proxy is requested to bring
identification paper{s) containing a photograph and signature (e.g. passport, driver's license, or credit card).

City of Pa'sig, Metro Manila, 28 June 2012.

Darw
ssigfant Qorporate $ecretary

City_Tel (632) 6898090 | Fax: (532) 6898095



SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-1S

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 20
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

' { i - al
1. Check the appropriate box: ‘ ' HEC-CFD
[ 1 Preliminary Information Statement TS0 arc J]
[V] Definitive Information Statement )

JuL 12 200 7))

2. Name of Registrant as specified in its charter ~ VANTAGE EQUITIE NPANS D"T%,%rl
= IME; N ’h""’
3. Province, country or other jurisdiction of Incorporation or organization: - v /
Metro Manila, Philippines L/
4, SEC ldentification Number: AS092-07059 i
5, BIR Tax ldentification Number: 002-010-620
6, Address of Principal Office; 2703-B East Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre
Ortigas Center, Pasig City 1605
7. Registrant's telephone number, including area code: {02) 689-8090 to 689-8093
8. Date, time, and place of the meeting of secubrity holders;
Date : 4 August 2012
Time : 9:30 in the morning
Venue : Rigodon Ballroom, The Peninsula Manila,

(Corner of Ayala and Makati Avenue, Makati City)

Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security
holders: 13 July 2012

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code (information on number of
shares and amount of debt is applicable only to corporate registrants):

~ Number of Shares of Common Stock
Title of Each Class Outstanding (net of Treasury Shares)
as of 30 June 2012

Common Stock 2,100,535,133
P1.00 par value Excluding Treasury Shares of
134,855,500
11. Are ény or all of Registrant's securities listed on a Stock Exchange?
Yes[¥] No[ ]

If yes, disclose the name of such Stock Exchange and the class of securities listed therein:

The Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc.
Common Sfocks

WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND
YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A PROXY




GENERAL INFORMATION

Date, Time and Place of the Meeting of the Security Holders

Date: 4 August 2012
Time: 9:30 in the morning '
Place: Rigoden Ballroom, The Peninsula Manila

Corner of Ayala and Makati Avenue, Makati City
Complete addreéss of the principal office of the Registrant:
Unit 2703-BEast Tower, Philippine Stock Exchange Centre, Exchange Road, Ortigas
Center, Pasig City, Philippines, 1605

Thé approximate date on which the Information Statement will be sent or given to security
holders is on13 July 2012,

Dissenters’ Right of Appraisal

The matters to be voted upon in the Annual Stockholders' Meeting of Vantage Equities, Inc.
(hereinafter, the 'Company’) on 4 August 2012 are not among the instances enumerated in Sections
42 and 81 of the Corporation Code whereby the right of appraisal, defined to be the right of any
stockholder to dissent and demand payment of the fair value of his shares, may be exercised. The
instances where the right of appraisal may be exercised are as follows:

1. In case any amendment to the Articles of Incorporation has the effect of changing or
restricting the rights of any stockholder or ¢lass of shares, or of authorizing preferences
in any respect superior to those outstanding shares of any class, or of extending or
shortening the term of corporate existence;

2. In case of sale, lease, exchange, fransfer, mortgage, pledge or other disposition of all or,
substantially all of the corporate property and assets;

3. In case thé Company decides to invest its funds in another corporation or business
outside of its primary purpose; and

4. In case of merger or consolidation.

Under Section 82 of the Corporation Cede, the appraisal right may be exercised by any stockholder
who shall have voted against the proposed corporate action, by making a written demand on the
Company within thirty (30) days after the date on which the vote was taken for payment of the fair
value of his shares. However, failure to make the demand within such period shall be deemed a
waiver of the appraisal right. If the proposed corporate action-is implemented or effected, the
Company shall pay to such stockholder, upon surrender of the certificate or certificates of stock
representing his shares, the fair value thereof as of the day prior to the date on which the vote was
taken, excluding any appreciation or depreciation in anticipation of such corporate action.

If within a period of sixty (B0) days from the date the corporate action was approved by the
stockholders, the withdrawing stockholder and the Company cannot agree on the fair value of the
shares, it shall be determined and appraised by three (3) disinterested persons, one of whom shall be
naned by the stockholder, ancther by the Company, and the third by the two thus chosen. The
findings of the majority of the appralsers shall be final, and their award shall be paid by the Company
. within thirty (30) days after such award is made, provided that no payment shall be made to any
dissenting stockholder unless the Company has unrestricted retained earnings In its books to cover



such payment, and that upon payment by the Company of the agreed or awarded price, the
stockholder shall forthwith transfer his shares to the Company.

Interest of Certain Person in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

No person who has been a director, officer or nominee for election as Director of the Company, or an
associate of such persons, have a substantial interest, direct or indirect, in any matter to be acted
upon other than the glection of Directors for the year 2012-2013.

No Director of the Company has informed the latter in writing that he intends to oppose any action to
be taken by the Company at the meeting.

CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

(&)

As of 30 June 2012, the Company has 2,100,535,133 outstanding common shares.
Each common share shall be entitled to one vote with respect to all matters to be
taken up during the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

The record date for purposes of determining stockholders entitied to vote in the
Annual Stockholders' Meeting to be held on 4 August 2012 is set on 4 July 2012.

In the forthcoming Annual Stockholders' Meeting, stockholders shall be entitied to
elect nine (8) members of the Board of Directors. Each stockholder may vote such
number of shares for as many as nine (9) persons he may choose to be elected from
the list of nominees, or he may cumulate said shares and give one candidate as
many votes as the number of his shares multiplied by nine (9) shall equal, or he may
distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates as he shall see fit,
provided that the total number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the number of
shares owned by him multiplied by nine (8).

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management
{1) Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners
1. Security Ownership of Certain Record and Be-neﬁcfal Owners
As of 30 June 2012, Vantage Equities, Inc. knows no one who beneficially owns in

excess of 8% of the Company's common stock except as set forth in the following
table:

Name and
Title of Address of

Relationship Percent
with the

Company

. ‘ Number of
Class  RecordiBeneficial Beneficial | Citizenship | shares

Quwner {b)} Owner |
gg{‘; “éf)m'”ee Stockholder r Flipino | 2,129,789,769 | 95.28%
GIF MSE Building
Ayala Avenue,

Makati

Common

{(YPCD Nomines Corporation (PCDNC) fs a wholly-owned subsidiary of Phifippine Central Depository, inc.
{PCD}. The beneficial owners of the shares under the name of PCONC are PCD’s participants who hold
the shares in their own behaif or In behalf of thelr raspective clients.No single PCD participant currently
owns more than 5% of the Corporation’s shares forming part of the PCONC account except as follows:



Amount* and

Name and Address  Relationship

Title of ¢ RecordiBensficial with Nature of  oyoonship | Percentof
Class S O TToe Beneficial Class
pany Ownership
Common }’:sa't“ Securlies, Stockholder | 1,769,663,570.00 = Filipino 83.09%
) R
21/F East Tower,
PSE Centre,

Exchange Road,
OrtigasCenter, Pasig
City

Ms. Ruby Tan -
Finance Manager
*The shares shall be voted by the person these shareholders shall duly authorize for the purpose. No single
beneficlal owner of these shares own mare than 5% of the shares of the Company except as follows:

Class Name and Address  Relationship Citizenship Number of % Held
of Record Owner and with Shares

Relationship with Company
Issuer

Creative Wisdom,
Inc.
21/F East Tower, PSE
Centre, ’ :
Exchange Reoad,
OrtigasCenter, Paslg
Clty
Ms. Ruby Tan — Corp,
Sec. ]

Common Stockholdar Filipino 684,61l1 968 38.69%

{2) Security Ownership of Management .

The following table shows the shares owned on record by the directors and
executive officers of the Company as of 30 June 2012:

Title of No. of

Class Shares Citizenship  Percentage
Commen WILSON L. 5Y 1,150,000100 Filipine 0.05%
Common VALENTIND SY 175,000.00 Filiplno 0.01%
Common WILLY OCIER 502,500.00 Flliplao 0.00%
Commaon ANTONIQ R. SAMSON 62,500.00 Fillplno ~ ~ 0.00%
‘Commaon ROBERTO Z. LORAYES 25,000.00 iliping 0.00%
Common IGNACIQ B. GIMENEZ 12,500.00 Filipino 0.00%
Common JOSEPH LIAC ONG 12,500.00 Filipine 0.00%
Common EDMUNDO MARCO P. BUNY, IR, 10,000,060 . Filiping 0.00%
Commaon GREGORIO U. KILAYKO 10,000.00 Filipino 0.00%
Common A. BAYANI K. TAN ‘ 1,437.00 | ' Filipho . 0.00%

TOTAL 1,961,437.00

(3) Voting Trust Holders of Five Percent (5%) or More

The Company is not aware of any party which holds any voting trust or any
similar agreement for five percent {(6%) or more of the Company's voting
securities. ‘



NG Changes in Control
The Company is not aware of any arrangement that may result in a change

in control of the Company. There were also no changes in control of the
Company since the beginning of the last fiscal year.

Directors and Executive Officers

Material Pending Legal Proceedings

The Company is not aware of any pending legal proceedings involving the members of its
Board of Directors and its Executive Officers material o an evaluation of their ability and
integrity, except as provided in the subsequent portion on Involvement in Certain Legal
Proceedings. '

Directors, Executive Officers, Promoters, and Control Persons

M Pericd Served T e Citizenshin Am
Director 2003 ro present |Ignacio B, Ginenez Filipino | 67
Director 2002 to present |Vatentino L. Sy Fitipino | 36
Chaitman & CEQ 2005 to present
Director 2006 to present |Edmundo P. Bunyi, Jr. Filipina 47
President & C0Q '
Director 2003 to present [Joseph L. Ong Filipinog | 38
Treasurer 2005 to presetit
Dirgctor 1988 to present [Willy N, Ocler Filipino 53
Birector 2011 to present |Gregorio U. Kilayko Filiping | 37
Diractor 2003 to present |Roberto Z. Lorayes Filipinoe | 68
Director 1993 1o 2000 & |Wilson L. Sy Filiping | 39
2003 10 present
Director 2005 to present | Antonin R. Samson Tilipine | 66
Cotporate Secretary 1993 to presant [A. Bayani K. Tan Filipinag 36
Asst Corporate Secretary | 2011 to present Dahvin 8. Ccampao Filipine 28

In accordance with the Corporation’s By-Laws, the members of the Board of Directors are _
elected annually and therefore serve for a year after election,

All present members of the Board of Directors,except Mr. Gregorio Kitayko who was elected
on 7 May 2012, were elected during the annual stockholders’ meeting last year. The term of

the current members of the Board shall hold office until the next stockholders' meeting, or on
4 August 2012,

The following are brief wrife—'ups for each of the Board of Directors and Executive Officers.
Valentino C. Sy

Mr. Sy, Filipino,58, is currently the Chairman of the Board of Directors and C_hief'
Executive Officer of the Company. He has been a Director of the Company since



2002. He is the President of Equinox international Corp. (1996 - present). He was
the Regional Manager of Duferco International Trading Lid., Taiwan (1987 — 1995)
and Erlanger Metals Lid., Hong Kong (1979 — 1986). All these companies are
engaged in trading of steel. He holds a degree in Industrial Management Engineering

from the De La Salle University. -
Edmundo P. Bunyi, Jr,

Mr, Bunyi, Filipino,47, is currently a Director of the Company and its President and
Chief Operations Officer. He became a Director of the Company in October 2006.
Concurrently, he is a Director (2006-present) of Yeheyl Corporation,an online search
engine and web portal. & e-Business Services, Inc.,, a Western Union franchise.
(2006-Jan, 2008). He was appointed President and Chief Executive Officer of
eBusiness Services, Inc. effective February 2008, He is also the President and Chief
Operations Officer of Philequity Management, Inc., an investment company adviser,
since October 2006. He is the former Senior Vice President and Treasurer of
international Exchange Bank, Assistant Vice President and Head of FCDU & FX
Sales of United Coconut Planters Bank, Assistant Manager for Corporate Banking
Group of Far East Bank and Trust Company, and Assistant Manager for the
Corporate Banking Department of Union Bank of the Philippines. He holds a degree
in Management Engineering from the Ateneo de Manila University.

Ignacio B. Gimenez

Mr. Gimenez, Fllipino,87, became a Director of the Company in 2003, He is the
Treasurer of I. B. Gimenez Securities, Inc., a stock brokerage firm {1976 - present).
He s the President of the following mutual funds, namely, Philequity Fund, Inc.,
Philequity Dollar Income Fund, Inc,, Philequity index Fund, Inc. and Philequity Money
Market Fund, Inc. He is also the Sales and Marketing Manager of Society
Publishing, Inc. (1991 - present). He holds a graduate degree in Business
Administration from the Asian Institute of Management (1970) and a college degree
from the University of the Philippines {1967).

Gregorio U. Kilayko

Mr. Kilayko, Filipino, is one of the Company’s independent directors and is presently
the Chairman of ABBA Motors; a Director of The Royal Bank of Scotland; and an
Independent Director of Belle Corporation, SM Prime Holdings, Inc. and Highlands
Prime Leisure, Inc. He was founding head of ING Barings’ stock brokerage and
investment banking business in the Philippines and a Philippine Stock Exchange
Governor in 1996 and 2000. Mr. Kilayko holds a Master of Business Administration
degree from the Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania.

Joseph L. Ong

Mr. Ong, Filipino,58, is a Director and the treasurer of the Company and became a
director in 2003. He is a director as well of Yeheyl Corporation, eBusiness Services
.Inc, and Philequity Management [nc. Currently, he Is president of Chemcenter
Corporation, a company engaged in import and distribution of industrial chemicals.
Previously, he was connected with Exxon Chemical/lExxon Corp holding positions in
sales, marketing, planning, and audit functions both here and abroad. He holds a
degree in Chemical Engineering, Magna Cum Laude, from De La Salle University.

Willy N. Ocier

Mr. Ocier, 55, Filipino, is a Director of the Company.He is also the Chairman and



President of Pacific Online Systems Corporation and has been a Director since 1999,
He also serves as Co-Vice Chairman of Belle Corporation and Highlands Prime,
Inc.and as Chairman of Tagaytay Midlands Golf Club, Inc., APC Group, Inc., and
Sinophil Corporation. He is also the current Vice Chairman of Tagaytay Highlands
International Golf Club, Inc.. He was also previously affiliated with Eastern Securities
Development Corporation being its past President and Chief Operations Officer.

Roberto Z. Lorayes

Mr. Lorayes, 68, Filipino, became a Director of the Company in 2003. Currently, he
is the Chairman (1994 - present) of Philequity Management, Inc., a fund
management company, and President (1993 - present) of Strategic Equities
Corporation, a stockbrokerage firm. He is alsc a Director (1998 — present) of
Hiedelberg Motors Corporation, dealer of automobiles.

Wilson L., Sy

Mr. Sy, Filipino,59, was reelected to the Board in 2005. He is a former Director of the
Company (1993 — 2000). Currently, he is the Vice Chairman of Asian Alliance
Holdings, Corp. and Director of Philequity Management, Inc., Xcell Property
Ventures, Inc., and Monte Oro Resources & Energy, Inc. Mr. 8y is also an
Independent Director of the reporting corporations The Country Club at Tagaytay
Highlands, [nc., Tagaytay Highlands International Golf Club, Inc., Tagaytay Midlands
Gelf Club, Inc., and The Spa and Lodge at Tagaytay Highlands. He is presently the
Chairman of the Manila Stock Exchange Foundation, Inc. He was a former Chairman
of the Philippine Stock Exchange, [nc., a Director of Basic Pefroleum & Minerals,
Basic Diversified Ind., Belle Corp., Saniwares Manufacturing, A. Brown Corporation,
and Jollibee Foods Corporation; and a trustee of the PSE Foundation, Inc.He holds a
degree in Management Engineering from the Ateneo de Manila University.

Antonio R. Samson

Mr, Samson, Filipino, 88, became a Director of the Company in 2005. He is
concurrently the Group Chairman, Chief Business Strategist of DDB Worldwide
Communications Group, Inc., an advertising company. He is the former President
and CEQ of OVD Philippines, where he also previously served as Chairman. The
.company is an international media planning and buying agency with regional office in
Singapore. He is also a thrice-weekiy columnist of Business World {since 1984 in
then Business Day) and is the President of the Manila Chamber Orchestra
foundation and the Metropolitan Museum, and Chairman of the Advertising
Foundation. From 1982 to 2003, Mr. Samson worked with the Philippine Long
Distance Telephone Company, where his last position from 1999 until his early
retirement was Executive Vice President, and concurrently President and CEO of
MediaQuest Holdings, Inc.

Mr. Samson holds a Bachelor's of Arts Degree in Economics from the Ateneo de
Manila University, a Masters Degree in Business Administration from the Asian
Institute of Management, and a Masters Degree in Business Economics from the
University of the Asia and the Pacific {then Center for Research and
Communication).

A. Bayani K. Tan
Atty. Tan, Filipino, 56, is the Corporate Secretary of the Company. He is also

currently a Director, Corporate Secretary, or both, of the following reporting
companies: First Abacus Financial Holdings Corporation, Belle Corporation, Sinophil



Corperation, Tagaytay Highlands International Golf Club, Inc., Tagaytay Midlands .
Golf Club, inc., The Country Club at Tagaytay Highlands, Inc., The Spa and Lodge at
Tagaytay nghiands Inc., Vantage Equities, Inc., Touch So[uhons Inc., |-Remit Inc.,

Destiny Financlal Plans, Inc., Philequity Funds lnc., Philequity PSE Index Funds
Inc., Philequity Dollar Income Fund, Inc., Philequity Peso Bond Fund, Inc. Philequity
Strategic Growth Fund, In¢c. and TKC Steel Corporation. He is the Managing Partner
of Tan Venturanza Valdez Law Offices and also a Director, Corporate Secretary, or
both of private companies such as Sterling Bank of Asia Inc, Qakridge Propertles,
Inc., JTKG Egquitles, Inc., The Discovery Leisure GCompany, In¢., Goodyear Steel Pipe
Corpaoration, Southern Visayas Property Holdings, Inc., Heila-Phil, Inc., Monte Oro
Resources & Energy Inc., FHE Properties, Inc., SCT Furnishing, Inc. City Cane
Corporation, Destiny LendFund, Inc., E-Business Services, Inc. Yehey Corporation,
Treasure Steelworks Corporation, Tera Investments, Inc., Star Equities, Inc,
Medicare Plus, Inc., PharexHealthCorp., and Highlands Gourmet Specialist Corp.
Atty. Tan is a member of the Philippine Bar. He helds a Bachelor. of Arts Degree from
the San Beda College, a Bachelor of Laws Degree from the University of the
Philippines College of Law, and a Master of Laws Degree from the New York
University School of Law.

Darwin $. Qcampo

Afty. Ocampo, Filiping, 28, is the Assistant Corporate Secretary of the Company. He
is also currently the Assistant Corporate Secretary of the following reporting
companies: Tagaytay Highlands International Golf Club, Inc., The Spa and Lodge at
Tagaytay Hightands Inc, Yehey! Corporation,Philequity Fund, inc., Philequity Peso
Bond Fund, inc., Philequity PSE Index Fund, Inc., Philequity Balanced Fund, Inc.,
and Philequity Dollar Income Fund, inc, He is ailso the Director, Corporate Secretary,
or Assistant Corporate Secretary of private companies such as Mio Magazine, Inc.,
Arquee Corporation, Elevate Financial Solutions Inc., Hambrecht & Quist Philippines,
Inc., and Professional Parking Management Corporation. Afty. Ocampo is a member
of the Philippine Bar and a Special Lecturer in the Pamantasan ng Lungsod ng
Maynila. He holds a Bachelor of Arts in Political Science Degree and a Juris Doctor
Degree from the University of the Phllippines.

Independent Directors

The nomination, pre-screening and election of independent directors were made in
compliance with the requirements of the Revised Code of Corporate Governance and the
Securities and Exchange Commission's Guidelines on the Nomination and Eléction of
Independent Directors which have been adopted and made part of the Corporation’s By-
Laws. The Nomination Committee constituted by the Company's Board of Diractors, indorsed
the respective nominations given in favor of Mr. Samson (by Mr. A, Bayani K. Tan) and Mr.
Kilayko (by Mr. Edmundo Marco P, Bunyi, Jr.).

The Nomination Committee, composed of Mr. Lorayes {Chairman), Mr. Kilayko and Mr. Ong,
has determined that these nominees for independent directors possess all the qualifications
and have none of the disqualifications for independent directors as set forth in the Company's
Amended Manual on Corporate Governance and Rule 38 of the Implementing Rules of the
Securities Regulation Code (SRC).

The nominees, whose required information are discussed above, are in no way related to the
stockholders who nominated them and have signified their acceptance of the nominations.
These nominees are expected to attend the scheduled Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.



Significant Employees

The Company has no sighificant employees.

Family Relationships Among Directors
Messrs. Valentino Sy and Wilson Sy are brothers.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

The Company and its major subsidiaries and associates are not involved in, nor are any of
their properties subject to, any material legal proceedings that could potentially affect their
operations and financial capabilities.

Except as provided below, the Company is not aware of any of the following events wherein
any of its directors, nominees for election as director, executive officers, underwriter or
control person were involved during the past five (§) years up to the latest date:

(@) Any bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business of which any of the above
persons was a general partner or executlive officer either at the time of the bankruptcy or
within two years prior to that time;

(b) Any order, judgment, or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of
any court of competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently or temporarily
enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise limiting the involvement of any of the above
persans in any type of business, securities, commodities or banking activities; and

(c) Any finding by a domestic or foreign court of competent jurisdiction {in civil action), the
SEC or comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign exchange or electronic
marketplace or self regulatory organization, that any of the above persons has violated a
securities or commaodities law, and the judgment has not been reversed, suspended, or
vacated.

Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions

The Company has nof been a party during the last two (2) years to any other transaction or
proposed transaction, in which any director or executive officer of the Company, or any
security holder owning 10% or more of the securities of the Company or any member of the
immediate family of such persons, had a direct or indirect material interest.

The Company is not under the control of any parent company.

The following are the transactions presented in the Notes to Audited Financial as Related
Party Transactions:

12.1  Short-term advances made by Philequity Management, Inc. to Phitequity Fund,
Inc. were presented under 'Loans and receivables’ in the amount of R5M.

12.2  Pnilequity Management, Inc, has a consultancy agreement with a board member
of the Company amounting to R1.8M accrued in 2011 and subsequently paid in
February 2012,

12.3  In 2011, Yehey! Corporation, eBiz Financial Services, Inc. and Philequity Fund, .



12.4

12.5

12.6

Inc. participated in the Parent Company's investment in credit-linked note by
purchasing R368.52M at face value. The Company serves as the receiving agent
of all coupon interest for the entire duration of the participation.

The Company waived the collection of rental for the lease of office of Yehey!
Corporation of the years 2010 and 2011.

In 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Parent Company paid certain exbenses of e-
Business, Yehey! Corporation, Philequity Management, Inc. and iCurrencies,
which were later billed for reimbursement.

Compensation of key management persannel of the Group:

}10 309

Salaries and wages 15,555,985.00 16,445,855.00 17,880,831.00
Retirement benefits 848,770.00 220,140.00 141,738.00 |
16,404,755.00 | 16,665,995.00 18,022,569.00

Disagreement with Director

Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

Summary Compensation Table (Annual Compensation)

Except for Messrs. Edmundo P. Bunyi, Jr., all of the Company's directors and
officers have not received any form of compensation from inception up to present
other than a per diem of R6,000.00 for each meeting attended and annual per
diem during sfockholiders’ meeting. There is no employment contract between
the Company and the above-named executive officer or current executive
officers. [n addition, except as provided below, there'are no compensatory plans
or arrangements with respect named executive officers that resulted in or will
result from the resignation, retirement or termination of such executive director or
from a change-in-control in the Company.

Summary Compensation Table {Annual Compensation)

Valentino C. Sy
Chairman & CEO
Edmundo P. Bunyi, Jr.
President & CQOQ
Joseph L. Ong
Treasurer

All officers and directors as a group 2012 (Estimate) 5,511,000.00
2011 6,087,284.15
2010 5,261,529.24
2009 5,185,558.74

-

None of the Directors have resigned or have declined to stand for re-election to the Board of
Directors since the date of the last annual meeting of .security holders because of a
disagreement with the Company on any matter relating to the Company's operations,
policies, or practices.

10



Independent Public Accountants

The auditing firm of SycipGorresVelayo&Company (SGV & Co.) will be nominated and recommended
to security holders for appointment as external auditer for the year 2012-2013.Representatives of said
firm are expected to be present at the Annual Meetingto respond to appropriate questions and will be
given the opportunity to make a statement if they sodesire.In compliance withthe requirement on
Rotation of External Auditors under SRC Rule 68, paragraph 3 (b) (iv), as amended, the assignment
.of 8GV & Co.'s engagement partner for the Company shall not exceed five (5) consecutive years. Ms.
Vicky B. Lee-Salas was assighed as SGV & Co.'s engagement partner for the Company, beginning
the year 2009. :

¢

Changes in and Disaqréements with Accountants on Accounting or Financial Disclosure

There are nc changes and matters of disagreement with accountants on any accounting & financial
disclosures the last two {2) most recent fiscal years.

The Company's Board of Directors reviews and approves the engagement of services of the
Company external auditors, who are appointed upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee.

The aggregate feés billed for each of the last two years for professional services rendered by the

Company's external auditors, SGV & Co., in connection with annual audit of the Consclidated and
Parent Company Financial Statements for statutory and regulatory filings are summarized below;

Audit Fee 704,704.00 666,344.00
Tax Services - -
Other Fees - -
TOTAL 704,704.00 660,344.00

The Independent Accountant does not render tax accounting compliance, advice, planning and other
forms of tax services for the Corporation. The Independent Accountant also does not render other
services for the Corporation.

it is the policy of the Company thai any draft audit report must first be reviewed by the Audit
Committee (the members of said Committee being composed of Mr. Gregoric U. Kilayko (Chairman),
Mr. Antonio R, Samson and Mr. Edmundo P. Bunyi {(Members) prior to said report being endorsed fo
the Board of Directors for approval,

Compensation Plans

The Company has a stock option plan covering all its officers, directors and regular employees.
Under the plan, the option price should not be less than the average closing price of the Company's
stock listed in the stock exchange on the last trading day immediately preceding the effectivity of the
grant. The number of shares covered by this plan and the subscription price are subject to adjustment
for any stock dividend, stock splits or rights, merger, consolidation, recapitalization and the like. As of
report date, the Company has not designated the number of shares to be covered by the plan. Thus,
there are no potential common shares that would result in the dilution of EPS.
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OTHER MATTERS

Action with Respect to Reports

‘The Company will seek the stockholders’ approval of the Minutes of the 2011Stockholders' Meeting
during which the following were taken up: (1) Call to Order, (2) Certification of Notice and Quorum, {3}
Approval of the Minutes of the Previous Stockholders’ Meeting, (4) Approval of Audited Financial
Statements and Annual Report, (5) Ratification of all acts and resclutions of the Board of Directors,
Officers and Management of the Corporation, (8) Election of Directors, (7) Appointment of SGV & Co.
as External Auditors, and (8) Adjournment.

Management reports which summarize the acts of management for the year 2011, are included in the
Company's Annual Report to be sent to the stockholders together with this Information Statement and
shall be submitted: for approval by the stockholders at the meeting. Accordingly, approval of the
Annual Report will constitute approval and ratification of the acts of Management stated in the
Management Report during the period covered thereof.

Acts of the Board of Directors

The items covered with respect to the ratification of the acts of the Board of Directors and officers for
the past year up to the date of the meeting are those items entered into in the ordinary course of
business, such as, but not [imited to: the opening of bank accounts and designation of bank
signatories; the fmancmg and investment aclivities of the Company, and the appointments in
. compliance with corporate governance policies.

Voting Procedures

a. Actlons to be taken at the Annual Stockhaolders’ Meeting shall require the vote of the
stockholders representing at least a majority of the Company’s outstanding capital stock.

b. Three inspectors shall be appointed by the Board of Directors before or at each meeting of
the stockholders, at which an election of directors shall take place; if no such appointment
shall have been made or if the inspectors appointed by the Board of Directors refused to act

~or fail to attend then the appointment shall be made by the presiding officer of the meeting.

c. Stockholders may vote at all meetings either in person or by proxy duly given in writing in

favor of any persen of their confidence and each stockholder shall be entitled to one vote for

~ each share of stock standing in his name in the books of the corporation; provided, however,

that in the election of Directors, each stockholder shall be entitled to cumulate his votes in the
manner provided for by law.

d. The By-Laws of the Company is silent as to the method by which votes are to be counted. in
practice, however, the same is done by the raising of hands or viva voce.

e. Upon confirmation by the inspectors that there is a mathematical impossibility for certain
nominees to be elected into office based on proxies held and votes present/represented in
the meeting, the actual casting and counting of votes for the election of Directors may be
dispensed with. If actual counting of votes cannot be dispensed with, the appointed
inspectors mentioned in item (b}, or in their absence, the auditors of the Company present
during the mesting, are authorized to count the votes cast.

Items 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 16, 17, and 18 are not responded to in this report, the Company having no
intention to take any action with respect to the information required therein.
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized. This report is signed in
the City of Pasig on 28 June 2012.

VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC.
By: '

dmundo Marco }. Bunyi
President and
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VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC.

BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

Vantage Equities, Inc. {the “Corporation”), formerly iVantage Corporation, was incorporated in 20
October 1992 and is organized as an investment and financial holding company. It has authorized
capital stock of One Billion Nine Hundred Million Pesos(R1,900,000,000), all of which are in common
shares with a par value of R1.00 per share. Of the authorized capital stock, 1,788,312,570 are
outstanding and 111,687,430 remain unsubscribed. On 12 January 2009, Securites & Exchange
Commission (SEC) approved the increase of authorized capital stock of the Corporation to Two
Billion Two Hundred Fifty Million Pesos®2,250,000,000.00. Furthermore, the SEC has authorized the
Corporation to issue 447,078,142 common shares out of its authorized but unissued capital stock to
cover the twenty five percent (25%) stock dividend declared by the Corporation’s Board of Directors
on 4 June 2008 and ratified by its shareholders on 27 June 2008. As of 31 March 2011, the
Corporation. has an authorized capital stock of Two Bilion Two Hundred Fifty Million Pesos
(B2,250,000,000.00) divided into 2,250,000,000 common shares with par value of 21.00 per share.
Out of the authorized capital stock, 2,235,390,633 shares are outstanding and 14,609,367 shares are
unsubscribed. '

The Corporation reverted to its original name by majority vote of the Board of Directors in November
2007, which the .Securities and Exchange Commission subsequently approved in April 2008. The
change in corporate name is consistent with the Company's re-alignment of its investment focus
towards the broad financial sector vis-a-vis its information technology focus during the early 2000’s.

Purpose

The Company was originally organized with the primary purpose of oil and gas exploration, and
investments and developments as among its secondary purposes. On 3 October2000, the Securities
and Exchange Commission (SEC) approved the change in the Corporation's primary purpose to
financial holdings and investments, including but not limited to information technology companies and
related ventures. Since the Registrant is an investment holding company, it is not competing in terms
of sales and is not dependent upon a single customer or a few customers. Also, it heeds no
government approval of principal products or services and no cost and effect of compliance with
environmental laws.

investrments

In June 2006, the Corporationdivested its shareholdings in International Exchange Bank ("iBank”), its
largest single investment at that time. The iBank sale generated 22.9 billion in cash and a B1.8
billion gain, capping an 11-year investment period that yielded a 16% compound annual return. The
PSE Index, by comparison, only broke even during the same period. The divestment was fimely in’
light of the substantial decline in finahcial markets in the foliowing years.

The Corporationdecided to invest its £2.9 billion "war chest” in portfolio of equity and fixed-income
securities. The mandate is to attain above market returms while adhering to prudent risk parameters,
Le. credit, liquidity and market risk. For this purpose, the Company hired its current President in
Qctober 2006 along with a team of finance professionals. The current team Is also tasked to further
professionalize management of the Vantage Group of Companies.

The operating subsidiaries that comprise the Vantage Group are the following:
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e-Business Services, Inc. {“eBiz”) - 100% ownership

Acquired in 2000, eBiz is involved in the money transfer and remittance business as a direct
agent of Western Union, Inc. (“WU"). WU is the global leader in the field with a presence in
over 200 countries through more than 410,300 agent locations worldwide.

The remittance market in the Philippines is over USD 17 billion annually based on official
figures in 2008. With its strong brand name, WU is the recognized leader in this highly
competitive market.

eBiz is among the top three (3) direct agents of WU in the Philippines. At end of 2011, eBiz
had over 1,000 locations nationwide: 157 in company-owned branches and the rest in sub-
agent locations. eBiz employs more than 400employees.

eBiz Financial - 100% ownership

eBiz Financial is wholly owned by e-Business. eBiz Financial was incorporated on 11 April
2005 and started commercial operations on 9 May 2005, eBiz Financial Is engaged in
financing business.

iCurrencies — 100% ownership

iCurrencies, Inc. was incorporated on 3 February 2000 and started commercial operations on
31 May 2000. iCurrencies is organized primarily to engage in the business of buying and
selling of foreign currencies.

In May 2001, the iCurrencies effectively stopped its business of buying and selling currencies
as a result of BangkoSentralngPilipinas Circular No. 264, issued on 26 October 2000. Among
others, the new circular required additional documentation for sale of foreign currencies and
required Foreign Exchange Corporations (FxCorps) to have a minimum paid-up capital of
P50.0 million.

The Circular effectively aligned the regulations under which FxCorps are to operate to that of
banks. To avoid duplication and direct competition with its previous major stockholder,
iCurrencies decided to stop fts business of buying and selling foreign currencies. The
stockholders likewise decided not to increase its paid-up capital. ‘

In the meantime, ICurrencies is sustained by income on its investments and interest income
on its funds while awaiting for regulatory changes.

Philequity Balanced Fund, Inc. — 100% ownership

The Fund is engaged in selling its capital to the public and investing the proceeds in
diversified portfolio of pesc-denominated fixed-income and equity securities. As of 31
December 2011, the Fund has not yat launched its capital shares to the public.

Philequity Foreign Currency Fixed Incame, Inc. — 100% ownership

The Fund is engaged in selling its capital to the public and investing the proceeds in

diversified portfolio of foreign currency denominated fixed-income securities. As of 31
December 2011, the Fund has not yet launched its capital shares to the public.
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Ye}iey! Corporation (“Yehey”) — 68.35% ownership

From a pioneering web portal in the late 1990's, Yehey has grown into a leading digital on-
line marketing solutions provider in the country. The company currently counts several
established corparation in its roster of customers, .

To support its growth, Vantage infused 2250 million capital in Yehey in 2007. The following
year, Vantage also declared and distributed a 5% property dividend in the form of Yehey
shares. This has reduced Vantage's ownership in Yehey to 68% from 99% pre-dividend.
The balance of 32% is now owned by Vantage shareholders by way of said property
dividend,

The property dividend has transformed Yehey into a widely-held company that qualifies it to
list by way-of introduction in the Philippine Stock Exchange Such listing is scheduled in
2012. :

Philequity Management, Inc. (“PEMI”) - 51% ownership

Vantage acquired 51% of PEMI in 2007 for R32 million. PEMI s an asset-management
company with about P3 billion in assets under management at end-2008. Its flagship
Phitequity Fund Inc. has been the top performing equity mutual fund over the past decade as
ranked by the Investment Company Assoclation of the Philippines.

Competition

Vantage Equlties Inc. is a publicly-listed holding company whose main focus is to make strategic
investments in companies that are in the financial services industry. Under the Philippine Stock
Exchange (PSE) there are about seventeen companies that are classified as holding firms with about
R586-billion in float-adjusted market capitalization. Most of the holding companies are owned by well-
known famllies in the Philippines which have diversified investments ranging from properties,
banking, food, power and retail. Most-of the firms in this industry can be labeled as mature and has a
long track record of existence as such there are not many changes in terms of additions in this
industry. But the most recent addition to the holding firm industry is the public Ilstmg of GT Capital of
the Ty family of Metrobank,

Although the Corporation is nof listed in this sector of the PSE, there are similar companies that we
would consider its competitors and we think would be appropriate to do a comparison. Two main
aspects where firms in this industry compete on. are pricing and services. Firms offering more
competitive pricing coupled with excellent customer service normally increase the popularity of their
brand and thus their appeal to retail and institutional clients. In addition companies with
complementary businesses often win clients by packaging themse[ves as a one-stop shop service
provider.

The closest competitor of Vantage equities that have financial services business under their company
is Aboitiz Equity Ventures (AEV) which has UnionBank and CitiSavings under its financial segment.
AEV has a market capitalization of about P116-billion as of June 7, 2012 and has three business
segments namely power, financial services and food. 1t terms of size and market capitalization,
Vantage Equities pales in comparison but the main advantage of Vantage Equities is its combination
of two financial services business hamely Philequity Management, Inc. and e-Business Services, Inc.
with Philequity Management, Inc. having one of the best performing funds this together with the
extensive network of e-Business Services, Inc. branches will enable Vantage Equities, Inc. fo
effectively market its products and services to its targeted customers.
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Competition of Subsidiaries
eBusiness Services, inc. (“eBiz”) - 100% ownership

eBiz is characterized by a relatively strong competition among direct agents and sub-agents
of Western Union.Agents primarily compete through location and customer service. |t
appears that the competition withother money transfer companies like Moneygram, Xoom,
iRemit does not substantially affect the business of the Carporation.

Philequity Management, Inc. (“PEMI”) — 51% ownetship

As of Aprtil 2012, the Philippine mutual fund industry is composed of 48 funds with about
R121.8 billion in assets under management (AUM). This in comparison to the mutual fund
industry situation during 2002 where there are only 22 funds with a consclidated AUM of
P24.6 billion. The mutual fund industry is sub-divided into four categories — stock, balanced,
bond and money market funds with 44% of the total AUM invested in bond funds. in addition,
whereas in 2002 there were about fourteen companies offering twenty two mufual funds
today we have about seven major players offering forty-eight mutual funds. This is proof that
the mutual fund industry is very competitive with sizeable and bank-initiated funds persisting
thru different economic cycles. 1t is no surprise that the ebbs and flow of the mutual fund
industry is mainly driven by the economic and capital markets condition of the country as the
nat to recent financial crisis of 2008-2009 has shown.

Philequity Management [n¢. (PEMI) has four funds namely Philequity Fund (PEFI), Philequity
PSE Index Fund (PPSE), Philequity Pesc Bond Fund (PPBF) and Philequity Dollar Income
~Fund (PDIF) which mainly compete in the stock and bond funds only. The flagship fund of
PEMI Is PEFI which competes in the stock fund category of the mutual fund industry. PEMI's
funds like any other mutual funds are marketed throughout the Philippines but concentration
is mostly in Metro Manila where disposable and investable income is higher. PEM! mostly
markets its funds through sales agents, advertisement through website and print publication.

The main area of competition is through return performance and pricing. On the return
performance, top performing funds continue to attract subscriptions while underperforming
ones continue to see redemptions. On the area of pricing, there are three pricing poinis
investors look at: Sales load, management fee and exit fees. The mutual fund industry has
varying degrees of sales load, exit fees but basically the same management fees. In addition,
duration of exit varies from one company to the next with some companies offering 6 months
while others up to two years in orderto have no exit fees charged to investor.

PEMI's main competitors in the industry are First Mefro Investment Corp., Philam Life, Sun
life of Canada and Bank of the Philipping Island. Two out of four of these companies are
major banks or are subsidiaries of major banks while the other two companies are well-
recognized insurance companies offering mutual funds in addition to their insurance
products. Both banks are in the top five in terms of assets under management while one the
insurance campanies is a 150-year old, Canadian-based multi-national company with $494-
billion in assets under management, The other local insurance company has 65-year track
record with a P207-billion in assets under management, In comparison, PEMI's funds
particularly PEFI has g 17-year track record of cansistent return outperformance against the
Philippine Stock Exchange [ndex (PSEi) with about P5.9-billion (as of April 2012) in assets '
under management.

Yehey! Corporation — 68.35% ownership
Yehey! considers the following as competitors:

» Digital Agencies
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s Advertising Agencies

The Company considers the digital agencies as their direct competitors while the advertising
agencies and media agencies are considered indirect competitors.

Digital Agencies are agencies that deliver services for the creative and technical
developments of internet based products. These services range from the more Common
services such as web design, e-mail marketing and microsites etc. to the more specialist
such as viral campaigns, banner advertising, search engine optimization, podcasting or
widget development and more. Digital agencles in the country include BBDO-Proximity,
Deploy and Havac:

BBDO-Proximity

BBDO-Proximity creates breakthrough behavior changing ideas that cause active
engagement between brands and consumers. They make insights, ideas and
creative works that are developed by many of the most talented people from around
the world. BBDO Proximity brings customers closer to brands with innovative
"Beyond the Line" strategic and creative solutions. Their services reflect their
people's expertise in building relationships, changing behaviors and delivering results
across all marketing disciplines and media.

Deploy

Deploy is a boutique digital solutions prO\}ider offering communications planning,
media planning and buying, analytics, reputation management and digital
consultancy with a focus to delivering the best in class digital solutions underpinned
by ROI. '

Havoc

Havoc is a premier digital marketing company in the country with over 10 years of
experience in creating digital properties, it helps its clients strategize and develop

- campaigns that wili maximize their brand in the online space. They specialize
on advertising sales presentations, digitai media planning and buying, web
development, online communities, blog marketing and e-commerce.

Advertising Agencies (Association of Accredited Advertising Agency). These agencies are
service businesses dedicated to create, plan and handle advertising for its clients. They alsc
provide an outside point of view to the effort of selling the clients preducts or services. They
also produce works for many types of media, creating integrated marketing communications.
The top advertising agencies in the country are McCann-Erickson Philippines, Ogilvy &
Mather, TBWA Santiago-Manganda-Puno, BBDO-Guerrero, Ace Saatchi & Saatchi, Jimenez
Basic and J. Walter Thompson.

The very essence of Yehey's competitive advantage lies in its being the first to complete the
end-to-end digital marketing solutions offering. Almost all companies that are in the business
of digital marketing concentrate on either website development, or online media buying, or
search engine optimization, or on digital PR, or their digital marketing services remain as
added service to their existing above the line advertising efforts.

Yehey!, with its complete suite of services can offer its customers a more comprehensive

digital marketing solutions package at the best possible value and with best advertising
mileage in the digital space.
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Financial Performance

The Company derived its revenues from investment activities.

: 2011 2610 2300

Commnission incone . 334,087,049 330,326,588 331,245290
Gait1 on sale of AFS invesments 333,150,050 304,040,829 141010183
Interest income from; ' '

AFS investments 103282 875 93,832,163 79,283,201

Cash and cash equivalents 11,353.280 13,830,835 14 927 210

Financial assats at FVPL $,533,130 6,621,673 17,764,766

Unquoted debt securities 4,075,852 - -

Others - - 46,502
Share in foreizn exchange differeritial 83,373,233 73,767,180 73,882,915
hlanagement fee and service income 63,414,284 43,623,333 33,651,160
Money changing gain 36,485,920 39377006 71373614
Dividend income 35,610,251 43 773.827  51,715274
Advertising, web development and internet service 33,851,638 30,406,632 37,040,925
income from business partnars 2.858.068 2,333.77 -
TOTAL 1052,517,622(1,226,185,874| 883,421,970

As of December 31, 2011, the Company has a total of 482 employees as broken down belowwho are
not subject to Collective Bargaining Agreements (CBA).

20 O |

Executive 1 ' -
Senior Officer 6 -
Manager 23 -
Supervisor 137 -
Staff ‘ 315 25
TOTAL 482 25

The Corporation believes that it has maintained amicable relationships with the rank and file and does
not anticipate any labor-management issues to arise in the near term. The Corporation believes that
its relationship with its employees have been consistently good and productive. '

Properties
Vantage Equities, Inc. - Parent

Office Candominium - These condominium units are located at 38/F Discovery Centre, ADB Ayenqe,
Pasig City and Unit 2005 East Tower, PSE Centre, Exchange Road, OrtigasCenter, Pas_ig C.|ty.
These are depreciated over an estimated useful life of 20 years and accounted for on a straight-line
basis. :
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L
Office Improvements - These are improvements made to the Company's office space and being
depreciated over an estimated useful life of 10 years accounted for on a straight line basis.

Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment - These equipments are used by the Cofnpany in conducting its
daily operations and located at Unit 2703 East Tower, PSE Centre,Exchange Road, OrtigasCenter,

Pasig City. These assets are being depreciated over an estimated useful life of 3-10 years and
accounted for on a straight line basis.

Transportation Equipment - These equipments are used by the Company in conducting its daily
~ operations and depreciated over 5 years and accounted for on a straight line basis.

Leasehold Improvements - The Company is leasing its office space from New Rosario Ortigas

Properties, Inc. located at 2703 East Tower, PSE Centre, Exchange Road, OrtigasCenter, Pasig City.
The term of the contract is for a peried of one year and renewable upon mutual agreement of the

parties involved.
eBusiness Services, Inc. (“eBiz”) - 100% ownership

Transportation Equipment - These equipments are used by the Company in conducting its
daily operations and being depreciated over an estimated useful life of 4-5 years,

Leasehold Improvements - The Company leases the spaces occupied by its branches with
varying period of up to fifteen {15) years and renewable on such terms and conditions as

shall be mutuaily accepted by the Company and the lessors. These leases are accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. x

- Office Furniture and Equipment - This furnifure and equipment are used by the Company in
conducting its daily operations and being depreciated over an estimated useful life of 3 years.
These assets are located at the Company's Head Office in 20/F East Tower, PSE Centre,
OrtigasCenter, Pasig City and various branches all over the Philippines.

Software License and Software Development — These pertains to the accounting software
used by the company and amertized over a period 3 years accounted for on a straight line
basis.

eBiz Financial Services, Inc. — 100% ownership

The Conlwpany does not own any properties.

iCurrencies, Inc. — 100% owners.hip

The Comparlly does ot own any properties and already effectively stopped its business of
buying and selling of currencles in May 2001 as a result of BangkoSentralngPilipinas Circular
MNo, 264, issued on October 26, 2000,

Philequity Balanced Fund, Inc. - 160% ownership

The Fund is not yet offered to the public and does not own any properties.

Philequity Foreign Currency Fixed Income_Fund, Inc. — 100% ownership

The Fund is not yet offered to the public and does not own any properties,

Yehey! Corporation — 68.35% ownership
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Server and Network Equipment - These equipments are used by the Company in conducting
its daily operations and being depreciated over an estimated useful life of 3 years. These
equipments are located at 38/F Discovery Centre, 25 ADB Avenue, Pasig City.

Furniture, Fixture and Office Equipment - These equipments are used by the Company in
conducting its dally operations and being depreciated over an estimated useful life of 3 years.
These equipments are located at 38/F Discovery Centre, 256 ADB Avenue, Pasig City.

Transportation Equipment - As of December 31, 2011 these equipment are ‘alread‘y fully
depreciated but still in use by the Company.

Leasehold improvement - The Company is leasing its office space from Vantage Equities,
Inc. (the Parent Company) located at 38/F Discovery Cenfre, 25 ADB Avenue, Pasig City. For
the year 2011, Vantage Equities, Inc. waived its rental fee amounting to P2,132,088
evidenced by an Office Memo signed by the Mr.Edmundo Marco P. Bunyi, President and
CQOO of Vantage Equities, Inc. and Mr, Jose Carlos Arellano, President and CEO of Yehey!
Corporation.

Software License — This pertains to Microsoft licenses and software used for “Kaban Project’
and is being amortized over a period of 3 years and accounted for on a straight line basis,

Philequity Management, inc. — 51% ownei'ship

IT Equipment- These equipments are used by the Company in conducting its daily
operations,

Leasehold Improvement - The Company is leasing its office space from ASIA PACIFIC
BUILDWARE CORP. located at Unit E-2004A 20/F, East Tower, PSE Centre, Exchange
Road, OrtigasCenter, FPasig City at monthly rate of P96,706.14 exclusive of VAT and net of
withholding. The term of the contract is for a period of five (5) years from April 1, 2012 to
March 31, 2015 with P3,000 increase in the monthly rental starting on the 3rd year beginning.
April 1, 2012.

Office Equipment - These equipments are already fully-depreciated but still in use by the
Company in conducting its daily operations and are depreciated over the estimated useful life
of 5 years. These are office equipments are located at 2004A East Tower, PSE Centre,
Exchange Road, OrtigasCenter, Pasig City

Office Furnifure - These equipments are used by the Company in conducting its dally
operations and being depreciated over an estimated useful life of 5 years. Said office
furniture are located in 2004A East Tower, PSE Centre, Exchange Road, OrtigasCenter,
Pasig City

These properties are free from martgage or lien. The Company has no plan of acquiring a
property in the next twelve months.

Legal Proceedings

3.1. G.R. No, 190477, |
captioned “Sure Express World Wide Corp. vs Hon. Court of Appeals and e-Business Setvices Inc.

el. al”Supreme Court, Manila

On 10 Octobér 2005, e-Business filed a case for specific performance againstSure Express to comply
with its obligations under the Money Transfer Service Agreement entered by the parties. On 28
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September 2007, RTC Branch 214 of Mandaluyong City rendered a decision in favor of E-Business
prompting Sure Express to appeal before the Court of Appeals and Supreme Court.

A petition for certiorari was filed by Sure Express World Wide Corp. on 11 January 2010 against the
Court of Appeals and e-Business. The Supreme Court rendered a decision on 3 February 2010
dismissing the petition. The aforesaid resolution became final and executory on 12 April 2010. Parties
were furnished copies of the Entry of Judgment on 3 August 2010.

e-Business filed a Motion for Execution of Judgment on February 2012 before RTC Branch 214 in
Mandaluyang City to execute aforesaid resolution of the Court of Appeals. The motion is still pending
for hearing and resolution

3.2. Civil Case No. 71390,
captioned “e-Business Services Inc.vs. Prudential Guarantee Assurance, Inc.”,
RTC 182, PasigCity

This is a complaint filed by e-Business on 6 November 2007 against defendant for the latter's refusal
to settle andfor pay E-Business insuranceclaim as a resulf of loss of money due to robbery or
brigandage. e-Business claims for the aggregate amount of 21,880,085.98 and US $25,860.00 plus
interest at the rateof 12% per annum from 22 January 2007, attorney’s fees of not less than 20% of
the claims, £500,000.00 as damages and the cost of suit. The case is pending pre-trial.

3.3.Criminal Case No. 12822,

captioned “People of the Philippines vs.NorielRequiso”; for. Qualified Theft

RTC 214, Mandaluyong City

This is a criminal case filed by e-Business as private complainant against accused NorielRequiso on

9 December 2008. The accused left for Bangkok on November 2008 and his whereabouts remain
unknown since then. The instant case was archived in 2000.

OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

Stock Prices (as adjusted)

1 Quatter | 1.91 1.83 i.88 1.43 1.46 1.26
2 Quarter| n/a nia 171 17 132 142
5 Quarter | n/a n‘a 1.46 146 144 1.37
4% Quarter | n/a n'a 1.71 1.67 144 14

As of 11 July 2012, there were 669 shareholders of the 2,100,535,133 common shares issued and
outstanding (net of 134,855,500 treasury shares). As of the close of trading on 11 July 2012, the
Registrant's shares were traded at the price of 21,71 per share in Philippine Stock Exchange.

On November 10 2009, the BOD approved the proposal to buy back from the market up to Three

Hundred Million Pesos (R300,000,000.00) warth of shares of the Corporation. As of March 31, 2011,
the total number of shares repurchased from the market is 134,855,500 worth £188.52 million .
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On June 4, 2008, the BOD Increased the Company’s authorized capital stock frorn 21.98 to 22.25B,
as well as the issuance of 25% stock dividend to all stockholders. This increase in capital stock was
approved by the SEC on 12 January 2009, while the stock dividends were distributed to stockholders
as of record date of 10 February 2008 on 06 March 2008.

In 2007, the Parent Company declared a five percent (5%) property dividend in favor of its
shareholders-of-record as of 18 May 2007, payable in the form of common shares of Yehey!
Corporation worth 289,415,629, In February 2008, the Parent Company distributed the property
dividends declared.

There is no sale of unregistered securities within the past three (3) years.

As of 30 June 2012, the Company has 669 shareholders of its 2,100,535,133 commeon shares issued
and outstanding (net of 134,855,500 treasury shares).

Top 20 Shareholders as of 30 June 2012:

STOCKHOLDER'S NAME Ehl;ll:%gf NO. OF SHARES PERCENTAGE
1 | PCD NOMINEE CORE. Common 2,129,789,769.00 95.28%
2 | PUA YOK BING Common 23,862,500.00 1.07%
3 | TRANS- ASIA SECURITIES, INC. Comumon 6,830,000.00 0.31%
4 | SYSMART CORPORATICN Common 5,800,000,00 0.22%
5 | EAST PACIFIC INVESTORS CORPORATION Common 4,520,000.00 0,20%
6 | PCD NOMINEE CORPORATION (NON-FILIPINO) Comman 4,351 000.00 0.19%
7 | A. BROWN COMPANY, INC. Common 3,441,250.00 . 0.15%
8 | SYSMART CORP. Common 3,428.375.00 0.15%
9 | LUCIO W. YAN &/OR CLARA YAN Commion 3,406,250.00 0.15%
10 | RICARDO L. NG Common 1,624,375.00 0.07%
11 | AGAPITO C. BALAGTAS, JR. Common 1,437,500.00 0.06%
12 | APRICINIA B. FERNANDEZ Common 1.437,500.00 0.06%
13 | SUZANNE LIM Common 1,437,500.00 0.06%
14 | HARLEY 8Y Common i,437,500.00 0.06%
15 | CYGNET BEVELOPMENT CORPORATION Common 1,406,250.00 0.06%
16 | JERRY TIU Common 1,365,625.00 0.06%
17 | CAMPOS, LANUZA & CO., INC. Common 1,161,500.00 0.05%
I8 | WILSON L.S8Y Common 1,150,000.00 0.05%
19 | DAVID GO SECURITIES CORP, Common 935,000.00 0.04%
20 | JOHN PETER YU &/OR JUAN YU Common 800,000.,00 0.04%

There is no acquisition, business combination or other reorganization that would affect the amount
and percentage of present shareholdings of the Company's common equity owned beneficially by:

(0 any beneficial owner of more than five percent (5%} of the Company's common
equity;

(if) each directar and nominee; and

{iii) all directors and officers as a group, and the Company’s present commitments to

such persons with respect to the issuance of shares.
Dividends

The Company has not declared any cash dividends for the past two years.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATIONS

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE FIRST QUARTER OF 2012 COMPARED TO THE FIRST

QUARTER OF 2011
In milliones Marck201Z Decomber 20011  Decerber 2010
BalanceSheat i
Mssets 6.235.29 3.542.93 330133
Liabilitizs 235,98 309.62 455.20
Stockholders' Eqwity 3,995.51 3.533.36 4,863.33
Book Value par 8hars 23 adjpstzd v
25% steck disidang & Treasvry Shares 273 2.63 2,31
Income Statement Mareh 2012 Pewpmber201]l  Decembeae 2011
Revernsey 23447 1,052.52 1,226.1%
Exymnzes 120,97 511.79 508.%4
Othar Income * {Chargss) {108 (10.51% 10.73%
Mst Icome 102,31 52082 716,62
Earninz: parSham : 05 0.23 .33

The Company posted a consolidated net income of Php 102.3 million for the first semester of Y2012.
It slid down by 36% compared toc same period last year of Php 159.6 million. On a per share basis,
the company earned 0.05 centavos compared to .07 centavos for the periods under review.

Partial easing of global liquidity conditions in the first quarter, especially in Europe, has fueled
investors' risk appetites and resuited to hefty gains in equities. In particular, the EU came up with
twin solutions to address the debt crisls in the region: a fiscal pact that tackled the problems of highly-
indebted EU countries, and a long-term refinancing operation of the ECB to provide liquidity to EU
banks. Apart from the EU, the US Fed likewise announced that they are gaoing to maintain near zero
rates through 2014 coupled with a possibility of another round of quantitative easing. As a result, the
S&P 500 and the MSC! World Index registered returns of 11.5% and 11.4% respectively for the first
quarter of 2012 compared to 5.4% and 4.6% same period last year. Locally, the 30-company
Philippine index gained 16.8% in 1Q12 compared to -3.5% same pericd last year. The Company’s
equity portfolic meanwhile pasted returns of 14.9% in 1Q12 compared to 2.7% a year ago.

On the fixed income side, local long-term yields were onh a downtrend for the first part of the quarter
as the BangkoSentral cut its overnight rate to 4% amidst a benign inflation envirenment. However,
yields backed up in March due to a 50-cent fare hi{(e that could eventually exert upward pressure to
consumer prices. With this, the Company’s fixed income portfolio gained 1.7% in 1Q12 compared to
-0.3% same period last year. 1t modestly outperformed the HSBC Local Bond Index which gained
1.4% in 1Q12 compared to -1.0% same period last year.

The following summarizes the operating results of the Company’s subsidiaries:

eBusiness Services, Inc. (“eBiz”})

eBiz continue to achieve record money transfer volume, hitting over a million transactions
worth in excess of USD 233 million for the first quarter of 2012. However, despite trans_achon
growth, revenues fell 9.7% to Php 79.4 million due to the contractual reduction in the
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Company's share of fees from Western Union and an appreciating currency. This decline in
money transfer revenues was cushioned by revenues from other products which doubled to
P11.7 million from P5.7 million same period last year. Meanwhile, operating expenses fell
by 3% to Php 74.5 milion as the company continued to rationalize its costs. After
depreciation and taxes, eBiz posted a net income of Php 10.3 million for the first quarter of
2012, up 18% from Php 8.7 million same period last year.

Yehey! Corporation (“Yehey”)

Total assets increased by P3 million. Current assets by P9.3 million due to increase in
Company’s trade receivables. Non-current assets increased by P&.7 million due to decrease
in loans and Available-for-sale securlties.

Total cost and expenses decreased by P1.51 milion due to decrease In Salaries and
Wages and other costs such as depreciation, subscription and writer's fee, among others.

Total revenues of the Company decreased by P.86 million from P9.6 million to P10.56 million
as of March 31, 2012 and 2011 respectively. This is due to substantial decrease web
development, e-commerce and start revenues.

As such, net income of the Company is P2.2 million in2012 from 1.65 million in 2011.
Philequity Management, Inc. (“PEMI”) |

Net revenues in 1Q12 climbed to Php23.7 million from Php 15,3 million in 1Q11 or a 656%
increase. In line with the increase in investors' risk appetites, the funds that the Company
manages experienced net subscriptions of Php 134.9 million for the first three months of
2012 compared to net redemptions of Php 177.6 million same period last year. Furthermore,
total assets under management as of end-March 2012 increased 43% to Php 5.8 billion from
Php 4.0 billion as of end-March 2011.

Expenses for the first three months of the year were 11% higher vs. last year. YTD net profit
increased 46% to Php 12.7 million from Php 8.7 millicn last year.

There is no material commitment for capital expenditure as of report date.  There is no
unusual nature or amount of item that affect the financials. There are no changes in the
estimates of amount reported in the prior periods. There were no issuance, repurchases and
repayments of debt and equity securities for the period. No material events subsequent to
the end of the interim period that have not been reflected in the financial statements for the
interim period. No significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the issuers
continuing operations.

The Company will continue to operate as an investment and management firm to help

improve the performances of its subsidiaries. There is no seasonal aspect that had a
material effect on the financial condition or results of operaticns.

Causes for any material changes (+/- 5% ar more) in the financial statements

Income Statement items — three-month period ending 31-Mar- 2012 versus 31-Mar-2011

20% increase in money fransfer service
Mainly due to increase in volume of remittances during the period.

16% decrease in internet sales and services
Mainly due to lower media sales, web development and dpr revenue.
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20% increase in inferest income
Mainly due to additional fixed incorne securities.

63% decrease in frading gain/loss _
Mainly due to AFS selling transactions for the period.

' 35% increase in mutual fund income
Mainly due to increase in assets under administration,

6% decrease in general and adminisirative expenses
Largely due to management cost reduction effort.

368% increase in cost of services and sales
Mainly due to increase in volume in transactions during the period.

20% decrease in depreciation and amortization
Lesser acquisition of property, plant and equipment for the year.

Balance Sheet items ~ March 31, 2012 versus end 2011

67% increase in cash and cash equivalents
Mainly due to outstanding placements for the period ended.

31% decrease in receivables
Mainly due to Western Unian transactions.

23% decrease in Financial Assets af Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVPL)
Primarily due to lower currency forward contracts.

31% increase in prepaid taxes and other current assets
Mainly due to higher amount paid for municipal permits for the current year.

8% increase in available-for-sale securities
Largely due to increase in equities and mutual fund investments.

87% increase in deferred tax assels
Additional set-up made for the period.

13% increase in other non-current assets ‘
Mainly due to rental deposits paid for the current period.

36% decrease in accounts payable and other current !iabilities
Mainly due to lesser outstanding dues to suppliers for the cut-off period.

100% increase in notes payable o
One of the Company's subsidiaries entered into a loan agreement with a financial institution
during the year. .

62% increase Iin income tax payabfe
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Mainly due to increase in revenues earned subject to tax and certain non-deductible expenses.

10% decrease in deferred tax liabilities
Decrease s due to lesser AFS acquired with less than or equal to 5 years of maturity from
original issuance.

5% decrease in accrued retirement cost
Mainly due to lower accrual of retirement cost for this year.

60% decrease in cumulative unrealized gain-on change in fair value of available-for-sale
" investments
Mainly due to revaluation of fixed income and equities securities.

The Company sets certain performance measures to gauge its operating perfermance periodically to
assess its overall state of corporate health. Listed below are the major performance measures, which
the Company has identified as reliable performance indicators.

De De
Current Ratio 6.2 4.87 5.3
Assets to Equity 1 1.1 i1
Liabilities to Equity 0.04 0.1 0.1
Return on Average Assets 2.00% 9.50% 14.60%
Return on Average Equity ‘ 2.00% 10.20% 15.90%

The manner by which the Fund calculates the above performance indicators for is as follows:

Current Ratio Current Assets / Current Liabilities

Assets to Equity Total Assets / Total Equity
Liabilities to Equity Total Liabilities / Total Equity
Return on Average Assects Net Income / Average Total Assets
Return on Average Equity Net Income / Average Total Equity
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 2011 (Y2011 VS Y2010)

In Millions 2011 2010 2009

Balance Sheet '

Assels 5,842.98 5,301.53 4,491.29

Liabilities 309.62 |  436.20 256.78

Stockholdér's Equity 5,533.36 4,865.33 4,234.51
Income Statement

Revenues ‘ , 1,052.52 1,226.19 383.42

Expenses 511,79 508.84 511,30

Other Income / (Charges) (10.91) (0.73) (6.93)

Net Income 529.82 716.62 365.19

Earnings per Share - 0.25 0.33 0.16
Key Perfomance Indicators

Current ratio (Current Assets/Current Liabilities) 4.88 5.29 532

Leverage Ratio {Total Debt/Total Equity) 0.06 0.09 0.09

Comprehensive Return on Equity 0.10 0.15 0.09

{Comprehensive Income/Total Equity)
Book Value Per Share | 248 2.18 1.85

The Company posted a consolidated net income of 2529.8 Million and R716.6 million in 2011 and
2010 respectively. On a per share basis, this translates to a R0.25 income in 2011 compared to
£0.33 income in 2010.

2011 proved to be a volatile year for most equities markets. The Fed's second round of quantitative
easing during the latter part of 2010 spurred a rally in developed markets in 1Q11. However, equities
were hammered for most of the second half as the European debt crisis continued to unrave] and as
developed economies continued to experience lackluster growth. The S&P 500 and the MSCI| World
Index posted returns of 0.4% and -7.8%, respectively in 2011 compared to 12.8% and 9.6%,
respectively in 2010.

Meanwhile, ASEAN markets have fared relatively better due to healthier fiscal positions and more
robust domestic economies. In particular, the Philippines continue to enjoy a healthier business
climate and a stronger external position. lts domestic-driven economy has likewise insulated it from
external shocks such as the global slowdown and the EU crisis. As a result, the Phisix posted a
return of 4.1% in 2011 while the Company's equity portfolio gained 4.8% during the same period. In
2010, the Phisix gained 37.6% while the Company’s equity portfolio posted a return of 46.3%.

Political stability and an improved fiscal and monetary environment have prompted debt ratings
agency S&P to upgrade its outlook on the Philippines’ long-term foreign currency debt to positive. As
a result, interest rates trended lower especially on longer-dated securities. The 10-year benchmark
fell by aimast 70 bps from 6.1% in 2010 to 5.4% in 2011, The Company's fixed income portfolio
gained 13.4% in 2011, outperforming the HSBC Local Bond Index which rose 12.8% during the same
period. In 2010, the same portfolio posted a gain of 13,.5% compared to a12.1% gain of the
benchmark.

The following summarizes the operating results of the Company's subsidiaries:
eBusiness Services, Inc.
eBiz achieved another record volume in 2011, hitting over 4.2 million transactions worth in

excess of USD 960 million. Value of international transactions grew 5.7% in 2011 compared
to industry growth of 7.2%.
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Despite volume and value growth, net money transfer revenues in 2011slid 3.7% to R357
million from R371 million in 2010. The decline can largely be attributed to the contractual
reduction in the Company's share in Western Union's money transfer charges last September
2011. Furthermore, the continued appreciation of the Philippine peso against the US dollar
from an average of 45.06 in 2010 to 43.30 in 2011 dampened the Company’s earnings.

Meanwhile, eBiz's efforts to raise operating efficiencies have resulted to cost savings of about
R4 million, as expenses declined to R354 million in 2011 from R358 million in 2010.
However, because of weaker top line growth, 2011 net income fell 45.0% to R37 million from
P67 million in 2010.

Yehey! Corporation

A quasi reorganization which involved a re-alignment in management and rationalization of
personne! was started sometime in the middle of 2010. Likewise, cost cutting and production
efficiency measures were introduced that year and continued to 2011. Thus in 2011, Yeheyl's
financial performance Improved substantially, posting net profit of 211.4 million from a net
loss of B9.45 million in 2010.

Revenues In 2011 registered an 11% increase at 833.9 million, from £30.4 million in 2010.
Biggest contribution to revenue came from Web Davelopment and Digital PR Services with
combined revenues of about 228 million. Digltal Strategy services also contributed &
respectablie amount of £3.3 million, considering that this service was relatively a new product
offering of the Company. The improvement in revenue generation must be due to more
consistent requirements from existing clients and new clients who have been happier with the
delivery of Yeheyl's services.

Another improvement in the financial performance of the Company was the remarkable
decline in Cost of Services from £30.2 million in 2010 to 217.8 million in 2011, when full
impact of the personnel rationalization was realized, By the end of 2011, personnel count was
at 30 from a high of 88 in 2008.It could be said that a most efficient ratic of sales to
production has been achieved.

Meanwhile, General and Administrative Expenses also decreased by 16% to 220 million as a
result of continuous and prudent management of all company resources. Also, lower
provisions were made in 2011 for credit losses and impairment due to an Improved collection
period. ‘

Noteworthy, are the other contributors to Net Income, as follows: [1] 2.2 million income
recognized from the reversal of prior years provision for commission which was never
distributed as revenue targets were not met year on year;[2] 21.1 million representing 50%
share of the 2011 Net Income of Media Contacts, a joint venture undertaking of Yehey! with
Media Contacts, S.A

Philequity Management, Inc.

PEMI's 2011 revenues increased from 243.6 million in 2009 to 269.7 million. In line with the
strength of ASEAN economies and their relative outperformance vis-a-vis developed
economies, the mutual funds that the Company manages posted net subscriptions of 8197
million in 2011 while total assets under management further increased to £4.9 billion as of
end-2011 from B4.4 billion as of end-2010,

PEMI's operating expenses amounted to £25.0 million and 212.5 million in 2011 and 2010
respectively. This resulted to a net income of 223.6 million in 2010 from R16.3 million in

2010.
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There is no material commitment for capital expenditure as of report date, There is ro
unusual nature or amount of item that affect the financials. There are no changes in the
estimate of amount reported in prior periods. There were no issuance, repurchases and
repayments of debt and equity securities for the period. No material events subsequent to the
end of the year that have not been reflected in the financial statements. No significant
elements of income or loss that did not arise from the issuers continuing operations.

The Company will continue fo operate as an investment and management firm to help

improve the performances of its subsidiaries. There is no seasonal aspect that had a material
effect on the financial condition or results of operations.

- Other Matters

The Parent Company and its wheolly-owned subsidiary, e-Business Services, Inc., continuously enter
into currency forward transactions with bank counterparties to hedge their foreign exchange risk. The
nominal amount of these contracts are off-balance sheet while revaluation gains or losses are
recognized as Miscellaneous Asset or Miscellaneous Liability respectively.

Causes for any material changes (+/-5% or more) in the financial statements

Income Statements items -Y2011 versus Y2010'

11% increase in internet sales and services
Mainly due to higher media sales, web development and dpr revenue.

26% decrease in money changing and foreign exchange
Profit opportunities are not as attracted as last year.

8% decrease in interest income
Mainly due to selling a portion of fixed income securities,

34% decrease in Trading gain
Mainly due to selling of equity securities.

50% increase in mutual fund income
Mainly due to increase in assets under administration.

5% Increase in general and administrative expenses
Mainly due to increase management cost.

45% decrease in cost of services and sales
Primarily due to decrease in internet sales and services.

Balance Sheet items — Y2011 versus Y2010

 31% decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Primary due tc lower short-term investments.

101% increase in receivables
Mainly due to Western Union transaction.

24% decrease in Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVPL)
Primary due to lower currency forward contacts.
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10% increase in available-for-sale securities
Largely due to increase on equities and mutual fund investments.

14% decrease in property, plant and equipment
Mainly due to depreciation cost and no major capital expenditure for this year.

34% increase in accounts payable and othar current liabilities
Mainly due to increase in current operations.

100% decrease of current portion of long term debt
Mainly due to debt was fully paid this year.

33% increase in cumulative unrealized gain on change in fair value of available-for -sale

investments
Mainly due to revaluation of fixed income and equities securities.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 2010 (Y2010 VS Y2009)

The Company posted a consolidated net income of R716.6 million and R365.2 million in 2010 and
2009 respectively. On a per share basis, this franslates to a 0.33 income in 2010 compared to
£0.16 income in 2009. ’

The unprecedented fiscal stimulus from governments worldwide and the continued guantitative
easing by the US Federal Reserve have resulted to a global economy bottoming out in 2008 after
suffering from the worst financial crisis since the Great Depression. This, in turn, has set the stage
for a more sustained recovery in 2010, wherein valuations came closer to their fair value levels. The
S&P 500 and the MSC! World Index posted more modest returns of 12.8% and 9.6%, respectively in
2010 from 23.5% and 27.0%, respectively in 2009.

On the domestic front, the smooth transition of power after a successful national elections has
resulted to an improved business confidence and cutiook. The Company's equity portfolio gained
46.3% in 2010, outperforming the Phisix which rose 37.6% during the same period. In 2009, the
same portfolio posted a return of 50.6% compared to a 63.0% gain of the benchmark.

Investors were also optimistlc that the present government can rein in the fiscal deficit while still
promoting economic growth. As a result, the yield curve has flattened and interest rates have gone
down. The Company’s fixed income portfollo gained 13.5% in 2010, modestly outperforming the
HSBC Local Bond Index which rose 12.1% during the same period. In 2009, the same portfolio
posted a gain 13.2% compared to an 8.3% gain of the benchmark.

For 2011, the Company maintains its positive outlook on the back of a strengthening US economy.
Inflation will be a key watch out as commodity ptices continue on the uptrend.

The following summarizes the operating results of the Company’s subsidiaries:

eBusiness Services, Inc.

eBiz achieved another record volume in 2010, hitting over 4.0 million transactions worth in
excess of USD 900 million. Value of international transactions grew 8.2% in 2010, modestly
outpacing industry growth of 8.2%.

Despite volume and value growth, net money transfer revenues in 2010 slid 3.3% to R371

million from R383 million in 2009. The modest decline was malnly due to Western Union
discounting the fees charged in some of its remittance corridors to enhance competitiveness.
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Furthermore, the strengthening of the Philippine peso against the US dollar dampened eBiz's
earnings as the average exchange rate moved to 45,06 in 2010 from 47.61 in 2009.

Meanwhile, eBiz's efforts to raise operating efficiencies have resulted fo cost savings of about
P19 million, as expenses declined fo R358 million in 2010 from R377 million in 2009. Due to
lower costs, net income in 2010 even grew 18.0% toR67 million from 56 million in 2009.

For 2011, eBiz expects OFW remittances to further strengthen. The Company likewise
expects to reap the benefits from its investment in various strategic programs in 2010 and be
able to take advantage of the growing remittance industry.

Yehey! Corporation

The consistent losses of Yehey! Corporation during the previous years, prompted the
shareholders to exercise a quasi-reorganization which involved a re-alignment in
management and rationalization of personnel. The re-organization which started middle of
- 2010, resulted in an improved financial performance of the company.

Gross Revenues of Yeheyl in 2010 declined by 20%, from 238 million in 2009 to £30.4
millfen in 2010. The decline in gross revenues is largely attributed to the lower revenues
contributed by the web development segment in 2010 of about £19 million from R28 million In
2009. Likewise, Portal and E- commerce segment contributions decreased by B1.5 million.
Only the Medla Sales and Digital PR segments showed improvement in revenues, Media
Sales revenues increased to R6 million in 2010 from £2.3 million in 2009 while Digital PR
revenues marginally improved to R4.7 million in 2010 from £4.4 million in 2009.

A number of factors contributed to the general decline in revenues, as follows; a) a more
prudent account acquisition taking into account credit-worthiness of the clients,. b) focus
made on operational effictency which in the long-term, should improve client satisfaction and
therefore increase client retention ratio. The decline in revenues was expected and seen as
temporary in 2010. The trend should improve in 2011. '

While revenues declined, more efforts were exerted in bringing down the total costs of the
company. Cost of services decreased by 27%, from B41.5 million in 2008 to £30.2 million.
The decline is a result of reduction in cost Salaries and Wages, as personnel count went
down to 35 from 68 in a perlod of 1 year. Freeze hiring was initiated, thus no replacements
were made for resigned employees. This mandate is still currently in place until a most
efficient ratio of sales to production is achieved. General and Administrative Expenses
likewise decreased from R17 million in 2009 to R11.5 million in 2009 as savings from rent,
utilities, transportation and travel were achieved. '

- However, bigger provisions were made for Doubtful Accounts to reflect the existing collection
probability. Said allocation resulted in a bigger operating loss for the Company from £B23.5
million in 2009 to 228 million in 2010,

Yehey's investment in Media Contacts likewise reflected a loss of £3.1 million in 2010, thus,
widening the gap of net loss from 2009.

Philequity Management, Inc.

PEMI's 2010 revenues increased from R31.4 million in 2008to R43.6 million. In line with the
global econcmic recovery and improved business outlook locally, the mutual funds It
manages posted net subscriptions of R760 million in 2010 while total assets under
management further increased to R4.4 billion as of end-2010 from B2.5 billion as of end-

2009.
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PEMI's operating expenses amounted to B12.7 million and 210.5 million in 2010 and 2009
respectively. This resulted to a net income of R16.3 mllllon in 2010 from E14.2 million in
2009. .

During the first half of 2010, the General Manager of PEMI tendered his resignation, which
resulted to expansion plans being temporarily put on hold. However, the asset management
and servicing teams of the. Company remain intact such that clients can continue to expect
only the highest standards of professionalism with respect to management of their
investmenis,

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 2008 (Y2009 vs Y2008)

The Company posted a consolidated net income of RB365 million, reversing the 2436 million
consolidated net [oss registered in 2008. On a per share basis, this translates to a £0.16 income, in
2009 compared to £0.19 loss in 2008.

After suffering from the worst financial crisis since the Great Depression, global asset markets
recovered in 2008. The rebound can largely be attributed to the unprecedented fiscal stimulus from
governments worldwide to avert a prolonged recession. The S&P 500 and the MSCI World Index
were up 23% and 27% in 2009, respectively, compared to a drop of 39% and 42% in 2008,
respectively. lLocal markets likewise staged a rebound wherein the Phisix gained 63% in 2008
compared to a 48% drop the previous year. The Company’s equity portfolio posted a more modest
gain of 31% after incurring a 27% [oss in 2008.

Fixed income markets likewise stabilized as credit spreads narrowed and returned close to their pre-
crisis levels. The Company's fixed income portfolio gained 11.3% ih 2008, outperforming the HSBC
Local Bond Index which rose 8.2% during the same period. In 2008, the same portfolio posted a loss
of 1.2% compared to a 1.6% gain of the benchmark.

© After a fantastic run-up of financial markets in 2008, the Company expects more modest returns in
the equities and fixed income markets moving forward. It will continue to exercise prudence with
respect to its investments especially in the face of uncertainties surrounding the 2010 national
" elections and a possible sovereign debt crisis in Europe. '

The following summarizes the operating results of the Company’s subsidiaries:
eBusiness Services, Inc.

eBiz achieved another record volume in 2009, hitting over 3.5 million transactions worth in
excess of USD 800 million, Transaction value grew 32% last year, far outpacing industry
growth of 6%.

Revenues increased by 22% to 2458 million in 2008 from B373 million in 2008, This was
mainly due to a marketing campaign launched by eBiz during the latter part of 2008 to
capture and convert clients of Western Union’s former principal agent. USD/PHP was also
higher on average: 47.64 in 2009 vs. 44.50 in 2008, raising eBiz revenues by 7%.

Operatin'g Cost increased by 8% from £354 million to £381 million due to additional benefit
given to employees and rationalizing higher service cost to service providers; whileinterest
expense and bank charges declined by 51% to R9.8million from R20million.mainly due to

better management of operating cash.

2009 posted a Net Income of R56.6 million from R10.0 million in 2008 brought about by
fortifying risk management practices and raising operating efficiencies for the past two years.
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After these actions, eBiz is now poised to expand its network of branches and take
advantage of the growing remittance industry.

!

Yehey! Corporation

The Company posted revenues of 238 million for the whole year 2009, 3% iower than R38.2
million revenues posted for the year 2008. The decline in revenues was brought about by a
general decline in advertising spend from 2008 fo 2009. Revenues from media sales
decreased by about 43%, from B4.0 million to £2.3 million. Web Development revenues,
meanwhile, posted small growth of 2% from R28.4 million to R28.9 million. Portal revenues
also decreased by 84% from R6 miillion in 2008 to 1.3 million in 2009, as the Company has
been slowly been migrating systems from Regular Search to Vertical Search. The Portal
Streams are likewise recently launched and are expected to vield higher page views and
revenues in the next few months still. Despite said revenue decline in media sales, web
development and portal revenues, the latest addition to the stream of revenues, Digital PR,
posted revenues R4.4 million. E commerce revenues likewise increased by 44% from £0.66
million to £0.94 million

Cost and Operating Expenses increasad by 9% from 260 million in 2008 to 266 million in
2008, Note that 2009 figures reflect the full cost of the expansion at approximately 65
employees, while 2008 figures still reflect pre-expansion cost with approximately 45
employees.

Although costs have been managed at minimum levels, revenues are not able to cover for
the full costs resulting in a net loss of 216.5 million vis-a-vis net loss of R7.4 million in 2008,
In 2009, however, income from Media Contacts of about B8.6 milion has improved the
bottom line of Yehey, bringing down the Net Loss to about 210 million.

Philequity Management, Inc.

PEMI's 2008 revenues slightly increased from £34.8 million in 2008 to £35.1 million. The
mutual funds it manages posted net redemptions of 2321 million in 2009 while totat assets
under management increased to £2.5 billion at end-2008.

PEMI manage to reduce its operating expense by 14.5% from 212.3 million (n 2008 to P10.5
million in 2009. This resulted to a net income of B14.4 million in 2009 from £11.7 million in
2008.

"Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

There have been no changes in or disagreements with accountants on accounting and financial
disclosure, -

DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Please refer to the discussion on "Directors and Executive Officers" in the main body of the
Information Statement.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has been monitoring compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular No. 6, Series of
2009, as well as other relevant SEC circulars and rules on good corporate governance. All directors,
officers, and employees complied with all the leading practices and principles on good corporate
governance as embodied in the Corporation’s Manual. The Company complied with the appropriate
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performance self-rating assessment and performance evaluation system to determlne and measure
compliance with the Manual of Corporate Governance.

The Company is unaware of any non-compliance with or deviation from its Amended Manual of
Corporate Governance during the previous year, The Company will continue to monitor compliance
with the Revised Rules on Corporate Governance, and shall remain committed in ensuring the
adoption of other systems and practices of good corporate governance to enhance its value to its

shareholders.
* £ *

UPON WRITTEN REQUEST OF ANY SHAREHOLDER OF RECORD ENTITLED TO NOTICE
OF AND VOTE AT THE MEETING, THE COMPANY SHALL FURNISH SUCH
SHAREHOLPER WITH A COPY OF THE COMPANY’S INFORMATION STATEMENT (ON SEC
FORM 20-1S) AND ANNUAL REPORT (ON SEC FORM 17-A) WITHOUT CHARGE. ANY SUCH
WRITTEN REQUEST SHALL BE ADDRESSED TO:

A. BAYANI K. TAN :

THE CORPORATE SECRETARY

VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC.

2704 EASTTOWER

PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE CENTRE
EXCHANGE ROAD, ORTIGASCENTER
PASIGCITY, METRO MANILA, PHILIPPINES

c:iusers\dsoMropboxivantage definitive 20-Is 2012_07 (1 {2.docx
213-2-3S\ABKTVCNW §O\Lea .
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o e : SyGlp Gorras VGlnyo & Go,
8760 Ayala Avenye '
1220 Makail Clly

]HWHHHI [ smvece SRS

Fax:  (837) 81..1{]379

T ERNST & Youme . Wivr8gY.com.ph

BOAIPRC Rag. MNo. oo,
January 28, 2010, valid unlil Decamber3 1, 2013
SEC Aceraditalion No, 0012-F]R-2 (Group A,
Febryary 4, .2010 valid umlli February 3, 2019

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Dirceotors
Vantage Equities lng,

2703 Bast Tower, PSE Centre
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center
Pasig City

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accomparying consolidated financial siatements of Vantage Equitles, Inc. and
Subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise ihe consolidatetl statements of {inancial position as at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the consolidated statements of income, consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, consolidated statements of chauges In equity and consolidated staternents of
cash flgws for each of the three years in'the period ended Deccmber 31, 2011, and & summary of
significant accouniing policies and other explanatory inf mmdticm.

Management's Responsibiliiy jor the Financial Statemen(s

Management is responsible for the preparation and falr presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, an¢ for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to cnable the preparation of financial statements that are freo
from material misstatement, whethor due to fraud or error,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibllity is 1o express'an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordanae with Philippine Standards on Audllmg Those standards require
that we cornply with ethicnl requirements and plan and perform the audit Lo abtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are (ree from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence aboul the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgnient, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the finaucial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessmenis, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Group’s
prepamtion and [air presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedurces that are

_appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an apinion on the effectivericss
of the Group's internal control. An audit also includes evatuating the approprialeness of accoutiting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as wcll as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

- B (T

A mgnpar Aan of Tinsl & Young Glons! Linkted
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Opinton

In our opinion, the cousaliduted fnancial stufements present [airly, in all material respeets, the
financial position of Vantage Equities, Ine, and Subsidinriesas at December 31,201 and 2010, nnd
their financin) performance and their ensh ows for ench of the three years.in the period ended
December 31, 2011 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards,

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Viekyf|B. Lee-Salas
Partndr
CPA Certilleaie No, 86838
" $BC Acereditation No. 0115-AR-2 (Group A),
February 11, 2010, valid until Februnry 10,2013
Tax Identification No. 129-434-7335
BIR Accreditation No. 45-001998-33-2009,
~ June 1, 2009, valid until May 31, 2052
PTR No. 3174802, Jatuary 2, 2012, Mukati-Cily

April 10, 2012
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VANTAGE

EQUITIES, INC,

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONS[BI[.J'I‘Y
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management ol Vantage Equities, Inc, is responsible for the plcpm ation and fair presentation ol the
nancial statements lor (he years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, including the additionul
components atlached therging in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepled in the
Philippines as prescribed in Nole 2 (o the finanefal statements, This responsibitily ineludes designing and
implementing intermal controls relevant w0 Ahe prepacation and [air presentalion of financial statements
that ave firee from material imlssiatement, whelher due Lo fraud or evrar, scluclinb and applying appropr[utu
accounting policies, and making ﬂcuoun{mg, eslimates thal are reasonable in lhe circumstances.

The Board of Direotors reviews' and approves the financial statements wrid submit the same 1o the
stockholders.

Sycip, Gorres, Velayo antl Co., the independent auditors, appointed by the stockholders, has examined the
linancial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine Standurds on Audiing, and in ils
yeport 1o the stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the faimess ol presentation upon completion off
such examination, '

VALFN'I INO ¢/SY A JURYLL JR.

Chalrman d gg?ﬁy

CTC Neo. 25977454 / [C No.: 17608337

Febroary 23, 201 2/Pasig Cily- January 11, 2012/ Naniln Tanuaey 3, 2012/San Juan Cly

TIN: 122-335-5336 : TIN: 107-184:956 , TING: 118-789-4127

[ -J-II‘,

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN o me belore this ___ Pnsxg, Cny, alTiants
exhibiting 1o me their Comnumity Tax Cerlilicates,

Doc. No. '3@‘?"
I’age No,
Book No. __}R'

Series of 2012. .




VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

1
t

December 31
2011 2010
ASSETS
Current Assets ‘ . :
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 7) B540,411,971 B778,376,824
" Loans and recelvables (Note 8) 324,397,007 409,798,441
Financlal assets at falr valise through profit or Ioss (Note 9) 86,739,792 114,861,429
Prepzid expenses and other current assets (Note 1) - 13,899,226 20,970,304
Total Current Asscls 1,465,447,996 1,324,006,998 °

" Noncurrent Assets

Avatlable-for-sale investments (Note 10)

4,299,216,023 ' 3,892,396,507

Investment in an assoclate and a joint venture (Note 12) 4,957,780 3,820,708
Property and equipment (Note 13) - 44,331,659 51,698,209
Goodwill® © 3,654,985 \ 3,654,985
~ Deferred tax assets (Note 25) 2,040,989 ., 6,202,186
Other noncurrent assets (Note 14) 22,290,539 19,754,982

4,376,491,975  3,977,527,571

Tota} Noncurrent Assets .

P5,841,939,971\  P5,301,534,575

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and other current fiabilities (Note 15)
Income tax payable

Current portion of long-term debt (Note. 16)

R288,465,032~. B215,142,448
12,073,051 32;143,608
2,925,490

300,538,083

Total Current Liabilities 250,211,546
Noncurrent Liabilities .
Retirement payable (Note 23) 7,030,626, ~ 6,809,806
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 25) 1,003,292 175,030,767
Asset retirement obligation (Note 17) — 4,145,582
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 8,033,918 185,986,155
Total Liabilities - 308,572,001 436,197,701

(Forward)
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December 31

Equity
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company
: Capltal stock (Note 24)
Stock issuance cost of a subsidiary
Cumulative net unrealized gain on change in fair value of‘
available-for-sale investments (Note 10)
Retained earnings
__Treasury stock (Note 24)

2011 ‘ 2010

£2,235,390,633  $2,235,390,633
(3,209,910) ,  (3,209,910)

558,384,899 § 420,177,574
2,801,387,551  2,286,681,994
(188,520,838) .  (188,520,838)

Non-controlling interest

5,403,432,335  4,750,519,453
129,935,635 114,817,421

Total Equity

5,533,367,970 . 4,865,336,874

‘B5,841,939.971  25,301,534,575

See accompanying Notes (o Consolidated Financial Statements,
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VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31

‘ 2011 2010 2009
REVENUE (Note 18) P1,052,517,622 P1,226,185,874 "P883,421,970
" COST QF SERVICES AND SALES (Note 19) 23,230,959 42,449,147 53,310,388 . '
G‘ROSS INCOME 1,028,286,663 1,183,736,727 830,111,582
GENERAL AND ADM INISTRATIVE .
EXPENSE (Note 20) (488,549,521 {466,378,537) (457,992,512)
MARI-TO-MARKET GAIN (LOSS) ON )

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE .

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Note 9) (3,523,955) 2,589,968 5,563,518
EQUITY IN NET EARNINGS (LOSSES)

OTF AN ASSOCIATE AND JOINT .

VENTURE (Note 12) 1,149,083 (3,104,763) - 1,935,156
INTEREST EXPENSE AND BANK :

CHARGES ‘ (2,569,'793) (1,733,020) (3,561,964)
OTHER INCOME (Note 21) 25,344,520 46,200,150 23,755,434
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 561,136,997 761,310,565 369,811,214
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) ' ) ‘

INCOME TAX (Nate 25) .

Current 33,396,329 46,885,488 31,157,634

Final 2,189,813} 1,071,976 164,965

Deférred {4,272,914) {3,269,15%) 3,293,665

31,313,226 44,688,305 y 34,6!6,2_64
NET INCOME R529,823,771 ©  B716,622,260 P365,194,950
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company P514,705,557 P713,647,678 £361,430,972
Non-controlling intersst 15,118,214 2,974,582 3,763,978
' ) . R529,823,771 B716,622,260 P365,194,950
Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share Attributalle
to Equity Holders of the Parant Company
(Note 27) R0.2450 P0.3344 PO.1619

See accompartying Notes to Consolidated Financio! Statantents.
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VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Yeurs En;ind i)eccmberal

¥

2011 . 2010 2009
NET INCOME R529,823,771 B716,622,260 £365,194,950
. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Net changes in falr value of available-for-sale .
irpvcstments. nel of tax (Note 10) 138,207,325 176,700,309 281,487,532
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCO.ME P665,031,096 P§93,322,569. P646,682,482
Attributable to: - . ‘ )
Equity holders of the Parent Company . R652,912,882 P390,347,987 Pa42,918,504
Non-controlling interest 15,118,214 . 2,974,582 3,763,978
' ' 668,031,096 893,322,569 PGA6,682,482

See agcompanying Nates to Consolidated Finanelal Stataments
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VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Yedrs Ended Decermmber 31
. . 2041 2010 2009
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING '
ACTIVITIES . .
Income before income tax R561,136,997 P761,310,5G5 P399,811,214

Adjustments for:
(3ain on sale of:
Avallable-for-sale investments

{Notes L0 and 18) (333,150,050) (504,049,829) . (141,910,113)
Financial nssets at fair value through profit or :
loss {304,992) - -
Property and equipment (Note 21) (21,070) (302,946) (621,372)
Interest income (Note 18) (125,477,127) {114,324,691) (112,821,679)
Dividend income (Note 18) (35,610,251) (45,775,327) (61,716,274
Depreclation and amortizatlon ‘ :
(Notes 13 and 14) 22,852,071 32,526,632 40,576,185
Provision for credit and |mpairmmt
losses (Note 20) 13,836,393 16,519,143 7,484,931
Net warealized foreign exchange loss (gnin) 756,336 21,303,159 (28,049,973)
Reversal of asset retirement obligation '
‘(Note 17) (4,145,582) - -
Mark-to-market loss (gain) on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (Note 9) 3,523,955 (2,589,968) (5,563,518)
Recovery of allowanée for credit lasses (Note 8) 2,172,113) .- -
Interest expense and bank charges 2,569,793 1,733,020 1,318,699
Equity In net losses (earnings) of an agsoclate : ,
and jolnt venture (Note 12) (1,149,083) 3,104,763 1,935,156
QOperating income before warking capital changes 102,645,277 169,454,021 100,373,256
Decreage (increase) in:
Loans and recelvables {109,440,407) 44,415,366 24,451,328
Prepaid expenses and other current asscts 11,909,064 2,782,203 19,970,443
Other ussets - - (5,309,547)
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 72,656,716 1,497,557 (5,314,566)
Retiremont payable 220,820 {852,728) (1,317,568)
Net cash generated from opcratlons 77,991,470 217,296,419 132,853,346
Inferest recelved 110,577,878 121,203,650 164,074,716
Income tax paid (65,345,603) (31,140,945} (21,001,951)
et cash provided by operating activities 123,223,745 307,359,124 280,926,111

(Fgrward)
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Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING '
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of: _
Available-for-sale investments R5,983,126,972  P3,026,884,130  B2,062,963,100
Financial assets at falr value through ' : .
profit or loss 25,858,590 253,832,998 -
Property and equipment 401,200 2,959,890 361,217
Acquisitions of: _ .
Available-for-sale investments’ (6,085,290,870) (2,496,432.577) (2,212,648,939)
" Ungquoted debt securitics (296,979,500) .- ' -
Property and equipment (Mote 13) {15,865,651) (14,143,103} (33,137,990)
Financial assets at fair value through '
profit or loss - (88,507,950) -
Mutuel funds - (594,000,000} -
Investments in an associate
. and joint venture {Note 12) : - 2,000,000 (10,751,664)
Dividends received 35,610,251 45,775,827 74,716,674
In¢rease in other noncurtent assets {2,535,556) (1,101,708) 1,726,704}
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities . (355,674,564) 137,262,507 (120,224,306)
CASH FLOWS FROM FlNANCING
ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of treasury shares (Note 24) - (153,372,002) (35,148,836)
Payments of: ,
Long-term debt {2,925,490) (3.138,510) - (4,824,598)
Interest and bank charges (2,569,793) (1,893,608) {14,701,646)
Bonds payable - - - {45,000,000)
Dividends fo non-controlling Interest . - - {12,495,000)
Cash used in financing activities (5,495,283) (158,404,120} (112,170,080)
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES
ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (18,751) 6,534,949 28,049,974
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH_ ) ‘
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (237,96G4,853) 292,752,460 76,581,699
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS . _
AT BEGINN ING OF YEAR 778,376,824 485,624,364 409,042,665
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ’ ' ’
AT END OF YEAR ) R540,411,971 P778,376,824 - 485,624,364

See acconpanying Notes to Consclldated Financial Statements.
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VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARIES :
. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

l. General Information

Corporate Information

Vantage Bquities, Ino, (the Parent Company) was incorporated in the Philipplnes and régistered
with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on October 20, 1992, The
primary business of the Parent Company is to invest in, acquire by purchase, sxchange,
assignment or otherwise; or to hold, own, use for investment or otherwise shares of the capital
stook, bonds, debentures, promissory notes, or other securities or obligations created, negotiated or
issued by any corporation, association or other entities, whether foreign or domestic, including but
nat limited to information teclinology companies and related ventures, holding companies and
companies engaged in financial services, investments and real property development, Its
investments consist of shares in: (a) entities involved in inward remittances and financing services;
(b) an Information Technology (IT)-based entity; and (c) an entity involved in management of
mutual funds, - , \ ‘

v

On April 8, 2008, the SEC approved the Parent Company’s change of corporate name from
iVantage Corporation to Vantage Equities, Inc, '

The Parent Company’s shares are publicly traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).

Tl{e registered office address of the Parent Company is 2703 East Tower, PSE Centre, Exchange
Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City. : . ‘

'

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Parent Company and the
following subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group™): - ‘

Percentage of Ownership

Name of Subsidiaries Place of Incorporation 2011 2010
e-Business Services, Inc, (e-Busingss) Philippines — 100.60 100.00
¢BIZ Financial Services, Inc. ' ' ‘ - :

(eBIZ Flnancial)* Phitippines 100.00 ~100.00°
iCurrencies, Ine. (ICumeneies) Philippines 100,00 100.00
Philequity Balanced Fund, Inc. Philippines 100.60 100,00
Philequity Foreign Currency Fixed Incaime. ' . ;

Fund, Inc, N Phillpplnes 100,00 100.00
Yehey! Corporation (Yehey!) Philippines S 6835 68.33
Philequity Managemeint, Inc. (PEMI) Philippines 51.00 5100

* Indirectly owned througl e-Business

The Parent Company is the ultimate parent of the Group.

e-Business
¢é-Business is involved in fund transfer and remittance services, both domestic and abroad, of any

form or kind of currencles or monies, as well as in conducting money exchange transactions as
may be allowed by law and other allied activities relative thereto, ¢-Business has an existing
Representation Agreement (Agreement) with Western Unlon Financial Services, Inc. (Western
Union) covering its fund transfer and remittance services for a period of seven years from
September 1, 2007 to August 31, 2014. e-Business shall receive rermuneration for the services
provided to Western Union in accordance with the terms sti[?ulated in the Agreement,

L



eBiz Financtal

eBiz Financial is wh(?lly owned by ¢-Business. ¢Biz Financial was incorporated an April 11, 2005

;nd.staned commetcial operations on May 9, 2005, eBiz Financial is engaged in financing
usiness, -

iCurrencies :

iCurrencies, Inc, was ingorporated on February 3, 2000 and started commeroial operations on
May 31, 2000, iCurrencies is organized primarily to engage in the business of buying and selling
of foreign currencies.

In May 2001, the iCwrrencies offectively stopped its business of buying and selling currencles as a
result of Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas Circular No. 264, issued on October 26; 2000, Among
others, the new circular required additional documentation for sale of foreign currencies and
required Foreign Exchange Corporations (FxCorps) to have & minimum paid-up capital of

£50.0 million,

The Circular effectively aligued the regulations under which FxCorps are to operate to that of
banks. To avoid duplication and direst competition with its previous major stockholder,
iCurrencies decided to stop its business of buying and selling foreign currencies, The stockholders
likewise decided not to increase its paid-up capital. '

"~ Inthe meantime, iCurrencies is sustained by income on its invqsfments and interest income on its
funds while awaiting for regulatory changes.

Yehey|
_Yehey! is engaged in the business of internet online related products relating to database search
engine, such as, but not limited to, conceptualizing, designing, fllustrating, processing and editing
web sites. It Is also engaged in pre-production and post-production work on web sites in internet
and sell and market said products in the form of advertising of finished products in the domestic or
export market, Co : -

PEMI ‘ o
PEMI was incorporated in the Philippines and is primarily engaged in management of mutual
funds. - .

Approval and Authorization for Issuanice of Financlal Statements
The accompanyitg consolidated financlal statements were approved and authorized for issuance
by the Board of Directors (BOD) on April 10, 2012,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basls of Preparation

The sccompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis,
excépt for financial assets at falr value through profit or loss (FVPL) and available-for-sale (AFS)
investments, which are measured at fair value, The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Philippine peso and all values are rounded 10 the nearest peso unit, except when

* otherwise indicated.

Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and the items included in the
financial staternents of each entity are measured using that functional currency. The functional
curtency of each of the Parent Company and subsidiaries is the Philippine pese.
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Statement of Compliance . .

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared in compliance with the
Philippine Financial Reposting Standards (PFRS). -

Basis of Congolidation ' .
The consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared for the same reporting year as the
Parent Company, using consistent accounting policies.

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Parent Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting
rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or

~ convertible are considered when assessing whether the Parent Company controls another entity.

All significant intra~group balances, transactions, income and expenses and profits and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full,

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Parent Coropany.
Control is achieved when the Parent Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Consolidation of subsidiaries

. ceases when control is transferred out of the Group.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of income from the date of acquisition up to the date of disposal, as appropriate.

When a change in ownership interest in a subsidiary ocours, which results in loss of control over
the subsidiary, the Parent Company: .

Derecagnizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;
Derecogiiizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest;
s  Derscognizes the related other comprehensive Income recorded in equity and recycle the same
to profit or loss or surplus; ‘ .
e Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received;
Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained; and
+ Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss.

In a separate or parent company financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are carried at
cost, less accumulated impairment in value. Dividends earned on these investments are
recognized in the Parent Company’s separate statement of income as declared by the respective
BOD of the investees,

Non-Controlli erest ' i
Non-controlling Interést represents the poriion of profit or loss and net assets not owned, directly
or indirectly, by the Parent Company. ’ :

Non-controlling interests are presented separately in the consolidated statement of income,
consolidated statemenit of comprehenstve income, and within equity in the consolidated statement
of financial position, separately from parent shareholders' equity, Any losses app}icable to the
non-controlling interests are allocated against the interests of the non-controlling interest even if
this results in the non-controlling interest having a deficit balance. Acquisitions of non-controlling
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interests that does not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transaction, whereby
the difference between the consideration and the fair value of the share of the net assets acquired is
recognized as an equity transaction and attributed to the owners of the Parent Company.

Related Party Transactions

Patties are considered related if one party has the ablhty to, directly or indirectly, control or
exercise siguificant influence over the ather party in making financial and operating decisions.
Partiesare also considered to be related if they are subjected to common control or common
significant Influence. Related parties may be Indlviduals or corporate entities, Transactions
between related parties arc based on terms similar to those offered to nonrelated parties.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

‘The accounting policies adopted are conslstent with those of the previous financlal year except for
‘new and-amended Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS), PFRS and Philippine Interpretation
which were adopted as of January 1, 2011, The following new, amendments and improvements to
,existing PFRS and Interpretatluns whwh became effective in January [, 2011, did not have a
sigmﬁoant impact on the accounting policies, financial position or parfonnance of the Group.

New and amended standords and interprem{ians

PAS 24, Related Party Transactions (Amendment)

The amendment clarifies the definitions of a related party. The new definitions emphasize a
symmetrical view of related party retationships and clarify the circumstances.in which persons and
key management personnel affect related party relationships of an entity, In addition, the -
amendment introduces an exemption from the general related party disclosure requirements for
transactions with government and entities that are controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by the same govemment as the reporting entity.

PAS 32, Finanaial Insrrumenrs Presentation (Amendment) ’

The amendment alters the definition of a financial liability in PAS 32 to enable entitics {o classify
rights Issues and certain options or warrants as equity instruments. The amendment is applicable
if the rights are given pro rata to all of the existing owners of the same class of an entity’s non-
derivative equlty instruments, to acquire a fixed number of the entity’s own equity instruments for
a fixed amount in any currency.

Philippine Interpretation [FRIC 14, Pr epaymems of a Minintum Fw:ding Requirement
(Amendment)

The amendment vremoves an unintended consequence when an entity is subject to minimum
funding requirements and makes an eacly payment of contributions to cover such requirements.
The amendment permits a prepayment of future service cost by the entity fo be recognized as a
pension asset, ' .

Improvements io PFRSs 2010

The amendments to PFRS were issued primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and
clarify wordings. There are separate transitiona) provisions for each standard, The adoption of the -
amendments resulted in changes in accounting policies but did not have any |mpact an the
financial position or performatce of the Group.

» PFRS 3, Business Combination

o PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures -
* PAS |, Presentarion of Financial Stgtements
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PAS 27, Consdlidated and Separate Financial Statements
PAR 34, Interim Financial Statements
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC13, Customer Loyalty Programmes

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 19, Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity
Instruments

£ & & 8

Significant Accounting Policies -

Foreign Currency Transactions '

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the Group*s functional currency using
the exchange rates provailing at the dates of the transactlon. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency using the Philippine
Dealing System (PD8) closing rate prevailing at the statement of finapcial position date, All
differences are taken fo the statement of comprehensive income. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost In a foreign currency are translated vsing the prevailing
¢losing exchange rate as of the date of initihl transaction,

Financial Instruments - Initial Recognition apd Subsequent Measureraent

Date of recognition S

Purcliases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace are recoguized on the settlement date,
Recelvables, accounts payable and other noncurrent liabilities, and long term debt are recognized
when cash is received by the Group or advanced to the borrowers. '

Initlal recagnition of financial instruments

All financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value. Except for financial insturments at
FVPL, the initial measurement of financial assets includes transaction costs, The Group classifies
ts financial assets in the following categories: financlal assets at FVPL, held-to-maturity (HTM)
investments, AFS investments, and loans and recelvables. Financial linbilities are classified as
gither derivative liabilities, financial liabilities at FVPL or financial liabilities carried at amortized
vost, The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired and
whether they are quoted in an active market. Management determines the classification of its
investments at initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evafuates such
designation at every reporting date.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Group does not fiave HTM investments.

Determination of fair value ‘ _ '

Tlie falr value of the financial instruments traded in active markets at the consolidated statement-of
financial position date is based on their quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price
for long positions and nsk price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.

. When current bid and ask prices are not available, the price of the most recent transaction provides
evidence of the current fair value as long as there has not been a significant change in economic
circumstances since the time of the transaction.

For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market, the fair value is determined by
using appropriate valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical models. Valuation
techniques include net present valus techniques, comparison to similar instruments for which
market Gbservable prices exist, optlon pricing medels, and other relevant valuation models. The -
inputs to these models are derived from observable market data where possible, but where
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observable market data are not available, judgment is required to establish fair values.: The
- judgments include considerations of liquidity and model inputs such as volatility for longer dated
derivatives and discount rites.

‘Day 1’ difference

Where the transaction price in a2 non-active market is different to the fair value from other
observable current warket transactions in the same insttument or based on a valuation technique
whase variables include only data from observable market, the Group recognizes the difference
between the transaction price and fair value (a ‘Day 1' difference) in the congolidated statement of
income under ‘Miscellaneous expense' unless it qualifies for recognition ag some other type of
assef, In cases where transaction price used is made of data which is not observable, the
difference between the transaction price and model value is only recognized in the statement of
. income when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecogmzed For each
transaction, the Group determines the appropriate method of recognizing the ‘Day 1° ' difference
amount.

Financial assets at FVPL represent securities which are designated as at FVPL and free standing
derivative (vurrency forward contract). Financlal assets and financial liabilities at FVPL are
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value. Subsequent changes in

. fair value are recognized in ‘Mark-to-market gain on financial assets at FVPL’ in the consolidated
statement of income, Interest eartied or incurred is recorded in *Interest income® or ‘Interest
expense’ in the consolidated statement of income, respectively, while dividend income is recorded
in ‘Dividend income’ in the consolidated statement of income according to the terms of the
contract, or when the right to receive payment has been established.

Financial instruments gt FVPL | |
Financial instruments at FVPL include financial assets and financial liabilities that are:

acquired and held for trading purposes
designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL; and

» .stand-alone or bifurcated embedded derivative finencial instruments not designated as
effective hedging instruments

Financial assets and fi nancial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acqu:red f‘or
the purposes of selling and repurchasing in the near term,

Financial assets and (inancial liabilities may be desngnated by management on initial recognition
at FYPL when the following criteria are met:

 The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognizing gains or losses on them
on & different basis;

»  The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, liabilities or both which are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or lnvestment strategy; ot

«  The finanelal instrument contains an embedded derivative, unless the embedded derfvative
' does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is cléar, with little or no analysis, that it
would not be separaiely recorded.
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Derivative financial instrunients are initially recognized at fair value on the date in which a
derivative transaction is entered into or bifurcated, and are subsequently re-measured at fair value,
Derlvatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair

. value is negative. ' ‘

An embedded derivetive is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a
fon-derivative host contract, with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined
instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alotie derivative. An embedded derivative is
separated from the host contract and accounted for as derivative if all the following conditions are
met:

* the economioc characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to
the economic characteristic of the host contract; : ‘

* .a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of the derivative; and : .

» the hybrid or combined instrument is not measured at fair value with fair value changes
charged through profit or loss.

The Group assesses whether embedded derivatives are required to be separated from host

~ contracts when the Gronp first bacomes party to the contract. Reassessment only occurs if there -
is a change in the terms of the contracts that signlficantly modifies the cash flows that would |
otherwise be required, o :

The Group bifurcated embedded derfvatives as of De;:ember 31, 2011 pertaining to Unquoted
debt securities under “Loans and receivables’. The value of the bifurcated embedded derivatives
is not significant.  The Group has no bifurcated embedded derivatives as of December 31, 2010,

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Group’s financial assets at FYPL comprise of
investments in corporate bonds and currency forward coritracts.

Loans and receivables '

This accounting policy relates to the consolidated statement of financigl position captions 'Cash
and cash equivalents’, ‘Loans and receivablées® and ‘Refundable deposits’ (included under Prepaid
expenses and other current assets). These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturitics that are not quoted in an active market. They are not
entered into with the intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not designated as ‘AFS
investments' or ‘Financial assets designated at FVPL’, '

- After initial measurement, loans and receivables are subsequently measured at ¢ost or amortized
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for oredit losses. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees and costs that
are an integral part of the effestive Interest rate (BIR). The amortization is included in ‘Interest
income’ in the consolidated statement of income, The losses arising from impairment are
recognized in ‘Provision for credit and impairment lossos’ in the consolidated staternent of
income.

AFS investments

AFS investments are nonderivative financial assets which are designated as such or do-not qualify
to be classified as designated at FVPL, HTM investments or loans and receivables. They are
purchased and held Indefinitely and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes
in market conditions. They include equity investments, money market papers and other debt
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After initial measurement, AFS investments are subsequently measuied at fair value. The
effective yield component of AFS debt securities, as well as the impact of restatement on foreign
* currency-denominated AFS debt securities, is reported in the consolidated statement of income.
The unrealized gains and Josses arising from the fair valuation of AFS investments are excluded,
net of tax, from the reported eamings and are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as *Net unrealized gain in changé in fair value of AFS investments’.

When the security is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in
conyolidated staternent of comprehensive income is recognized in the consolidated statement of
income. Where the Group holds more than one investment in the same security, these are deemed
to be disposed of on & first-in first-out basis. Interest earned on holding AFS debt investments are
reported in the consolidated statement of income as “Interest income” using the EIR, Dividends
earned on holding AFS equity investments are recognized in the consolidated statement of income
as ‘Dividend income’ when the right to recaive payment has been established. . The |osses arising
from impairment of such investment are recognized as *Provision for ¢redit and impairment
losses’ in the consolldated statement of income, ‘

i}

Financial Liabilitics

Financial liabilities are classified as at FYPL when the finanoial liability is either held for trading

or it is designated as at FVPL. ~
. . |

A financial Hability is held for trading if:

» it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near torm; or

« on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that thie Group
manages together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it Is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial
guarantes, : ' '

Management may designate a financial liability at FVPL upon inital recognition when the

following oriteria are met, and designation is determined on an Instrument by instrument basis;

¢ The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the ligbilities or recognizing gains or losses on them on &
different basis; or '

v The liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities which are managed and their
performance evalualed on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy; or

e The financial instrument contains an embedded derivative, unless the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear, with little or no analysis, that it
woulld not be separately recorded.

Financial liabilities at FVPL are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair
value. Subsequent changes in falr value of financial instruments are recorded in ‘Mark-to-market
gein (loss) on financial assets at FVPL' in the consolidated statement of income, Intorests
incurred are recorded in ‘Interest expense’ in the statement of income using the effective interost
method, .
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Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabiljties

Financial assets
. A financial asset (where applicable, a part of a financial asset, or part of a group of financial
‘assets) is derecognized when: '
+ the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or - :
* the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation
to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement;
or ~ '
¢ the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transfetred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risk and rewards of the asset but has transferred the control over
the asset, ‘ ‘
Where the Group has transfefred its riglits to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
- pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control over the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset, Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities _
A financial [lability is derecopnized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or

" cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial lability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, sich an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the consolidated statement of income,

Offsetting Financial Instruments . ,

Financigl assets and financial Habilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated statement of financlal position if, and enly if, there is a currently enforceable lepal
right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously, This Is not generally the case with master netting
agreements, therefore, the related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the consolidated
statement of financial position. :

[mpairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of finanoial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed
to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that
loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
.group of financial assets that can be relisbly estimated. Evidence of impairment may includs
indications that the borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencing significant financial _
difficulty, defauit or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the pmbah.ility that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and where observable data indicate that there is
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in amears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults,
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Impairment of financial assels carried at amortized cost

For financial assets carrled at amortized cost, which includes cash and cash equivalents,
receivables and deposits, the Group first assesses whether abjective evidence of impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant, For individually assessed financial assets, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows (excluding future cradit losses that have not been incurred). The
present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original EIR.
If 2 loan has a variabie interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment Joss is the
current EIR, adjusted for the original credit risk premium. The calculation of the present value of
the estimated future cash flows of a collateralized financial asset roflects the cash flows that may
result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not
foreclosure is probable, ‘

Financial assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues 10 be, recognized are not inoluded in a collective assessment for impairment. The

‘cartying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of
loss is charged against the statement of income, Interest income continues to be recognized based
on the original BIR of the asset. Loans, together with the associated allowance accounts, are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realized. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss decreases because
of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment
loss is reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered, any
amounts formerly charged are credited to the ‘Provision for credit and impatrment losses’ in the
consolidated statement of income.

If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impalrment exists for individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses for impairment. Those characteristics
are relevant to the estimatlon of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of
the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets belng
evaluated,

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis
of credit risk characteristics such as industry, collateral type, past-due status and term. Future cash
flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on
the basis of historical loss experience for assets with oredit risk characteristics similar to those in
the group. Historica! loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data to reflect
the effects of current conditions that did not affect the period on which the historical loss
experience is baged and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not exist
currently. Estimates of changes in future cash flows reflect, and are directionally consistent with
changes in related observable data from period to period (such changes in property prices,
payment status, ov other factors that are indicative of incurred losses in the Group and their
megnitude), The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are
reviewed regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss

experience.
AFS investments

For AFS investments, the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective
evidencs that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
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In ¢ase of equity investinents classified as AFS investments, this would include a mgmficant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investments below its cost. Where there is evidence of
impairment, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized int the

- consolidated statement of income - is removed from consolidated statement of compreliensive,
income and recognized in the consolidated statement of income. Impairment losses on equity
investments are not reversed through the consolidated statement of income. Increases in fair value
after impairment are recogmzed directly in consolidated statement of comprehenswe income,

In the case of debt instruments c[asmf ed s AFS investments, impairmeat {s assessed based on the
same criteria as financial assets carried at amortized cost. However, the amount recorded for
impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortized cost and the
current fair value, less any impalrment loss on that investment previously recognized in the
statement of income. Future interest income {5 based on the reduced carrying amount and is
accrued based on the rato of Interest used to disoount future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring Impairment loss. Such accrual is recorded us part of *Interest income’ in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. If, in subsequent year, the fair value of a debt
instrument increases and the ingrease can be objectively related to an event occurring afier the
impairment loss was recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
impairment loss is reversed throngh the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Cash cash equivalen .

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in banks and short-term investments, Cash
equivalents are shost-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash with original maturities of three months or less from the dates of placement and
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

[nvestments in associate and joint venture

JTnvestrment in assaclaie

Associates are entities which the Group has significant influence but not control, generaily
accompanying a shareholding of between 20.00% and 50.00% of the voting rights. In the
consolidated financial statements, investment in associates is accounted for under the equity
method of accounting,

.

“‘Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is carried in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost plus post-acquisilion changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the
associate., Goodwill relating to an asscciate is included in the camrying value of the investment and
Is not amortized. The Group’s share In an assoclate’s post-acquisition profits or losses is '
recognized in the consolidated statement of incorne, and its share of post-acquisition movements
in the associate’s equity reserves {s recognized directly in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The cumulativé post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investments, When the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognize further losses, unless it hias incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate, Profits and losses resniting from transactions between the Group and an associate are

" eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate,

Investment in foint venture

Investment in joint venture s accounted for undet the equlty method of accounting, The
investment in joint venture is carried in the consolidated statement of fi nancial position at cost
plus post-acquisition changes in the share of net assets of the joint venture, less any allowance for
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Investments in joint ventures in the Group’s financial statements are carried at cost less any
allowance for impairment losses. .

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in
valu_:e. The initial cost of property and equipment consists of its purchase price, including import
duties, taxes and any costs directly attrlbutable to bringing the property and equipment to its
working condition and location for its intended use., Expenditures incurred after the property and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are normally charged to
income in the year in which such costs are incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits
expected 10 be obtained from the use of an ifem of property and equipment beyond its originally

- assessed standard of performance, the expendifures are capitalized as additional costs of property
and equipient, '

The cost of an item of property and equipment also includes costs of dismantlement, removal or
restoration and the related obligation that the Group incurs at the end of the useful [ife of property
and equipment. '

When each major'repairs and malitenance Is performed, its cost is recognized In the carrying
amount of the item of property and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are
-satisfied. Such costs are capitalized and smartized over the next major repairs and maintenance
activity. . :

Depreciation and amortization are computed using, the straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the property and equipment as follows: :

Furniture and fixtures 2-10 years
Office improvements ‘ 10 years
Transportation equipment 3 years
Office condominium - 20 years
Server and network equipment 3 years
Leasehold improvements - 5 years or term of lease, whichever

period is shorter

The useful lives, residual values, and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed
pericdically to ensure that the periods, residual values, and method of depreciation and
amortization are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property
and equipment, .

Fully depreciated assets are setained in the accounts untif they are no longer in use and no further
depreciation are credited or charged to consolidated statement of income. S

When property and equipment are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated
depreciation, amortization and any impalrment in value are eliminated from the accounts an_d any
resulting gain or foss is credited or charged to consolidated statement of income.
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Software and Website

Development costs of software and website included under "Other noncurrent assets” account in
the consolidated statement of financial position are capitalized and treated as intangible assets
becayse thelr costs are not an integral part of the related hardware. Amortization is computed
using the straight-line method over their estimated useful life of 3 years for software and 2 years
for website.

Jmpairment of Property and Equipment, Software and Investment in Assoclate and Joint Venture
The Group assesses at cach reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired, If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset iy requlred,
the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is
the hmgher of an asset’s or cash- generating unit’s falr value less costs to sell and its value in use
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, Where the carrying amount of |
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount, In assessing value in uss, the estimated future cash flows are discousited to

their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time
" value of money and the risks speoit‘ o to the asset. Impairment losses are recognized in the
consolidated statement of i income in the expense category consisient with the function of the
impaired asset.

. An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previcusly .
recognized Impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased, If such indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated, A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognized, Ifthat is the case, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to its recoverable amount, That increased amount ¢cannot exceed the carryinj; amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, had no impairment loss
been recopnized for the agset in prior years, Such reversal is recogmzed in the consolidated
statement of income unless.the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is’
treated, as a revaluation increase, After such a reversal, the depreclatlon and amortization charge is
adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value,

" on a systematic basis over its temaining useful life.

Qoodwill ’
Gaodwill acquired in a business combination is initial Iy measured at cost being the excess of the
.cost of the business combination over the Parent Company’s interest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent tiabilities of the acquired business. Following initial
recogmition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment fosses, Goodwill is
reviewed for impalrment, annually or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances
Indicate that the carrying value may be impaired,

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverabls amount of the cash ganeratmg
unit, to which the goodwill relates, Where the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is
less than the carrying amount of the cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated, an
impairment loss ig recognized. Impairment loss relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future
periods. .
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Revenue Recognition .

‘The Group assesses its revenue arrangermients against specific criteria in order to determine if it is
acting as principal or agent. Revenue Is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and tlie revenue can be reliably measured. The
following specific recognition criteriz must also bo met before revenue is recognized:

Commission income

This represents the commission received by the Group from Western Union. The Group recelves

commission from Western Union for every advance dollar remittance service provided by the

former for the latier, Revenue is recognized when the remittance service has been rendered which
_is when Western Union acknowledges the transaction,

Trading gains . .
Revenue is recognized on trade date upon receipt of confirmation of sale of investments from
counterparties, ' '

Interesi Income : . |
Revenue is recognized as the interest accrues, using the effective Interest rate,

‘Share in Foreign Exchange Differential :
Income from foreign exchange differential is recognized when service is rendered and foreign
currency denominated cash is converted into Philipplne peso,

Management fee .
Revenue is recopnized as services are rendered and in accordance with the management and
- distribution agreement. :

Service Income ‘
Service income is recognized when the services are rendered.

Money Changing Gain

Money changing gains are related to-the Group’s retail foreign exchange operations in the
branches, The Group provides money changing services to its clients which includes buying and
selling of foreign currencies. Revenue is recognized when the service is rendered,

Dividend Income : _

Revenue is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

Advertising, Web Development and Internat Service o
Revenue from advertising and web development is recognized based an Percentage of Completion
Method. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to surveys of the work performed.
Revenue from internet service is recognized at the time services are rendered, '

Expense Recognition ‘ -
Expenses are recognized when decrease in future cconomic benefits related to a decrease in an

asset or an increase of a liability has arisen that can be measured reliably.
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‘Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangemient and requires an assessmont of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to uge the
asset. A re-assessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

(a) There is a change In contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;

(b) A renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless that term of the renewal or
extension was initially included in the lease term;

(¢) There is a change In the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified
asset; or

(d) There is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a re-assessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances gave rise to the re-assessment for scenarios a, ¢ or d above, and at the
date of renewal or extension period for scenario b.

Group as a Lessee. Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownetship of the assets are clagsified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are
recognized as expense in the consolidated statement of income on & straight-line basis over the
term of the lease agreement, .

Retirement Costs - .
e-Business has funded, noncontributory defined benefit reticentent plan covering substantially all
of its regular employces. The Parent Company and Yehey! have unfunded, noncontributory
‘defined benefit retirement plan coverlng substantially all of its regular employees. The obligation
and costs of retirement benefits are actuarially computed by an independent actuary using
projected unit credit method, Actuarial gains and losses are recognized as Income or expense
when the net cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains and losses for the plan at the end of the

" previous reporting period exceed 10.00% of the higher of the defined benefit obligation and the
fair value of the plan assets at that date. These gains or losses are recognized over the expected
average remaining working lives of the employees participating in the plan,

The past service cost is recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis aver the average period
until the benefits become vested. If the benefits are alroady vested immediately following the
introduction of, or changes to, & pension plan, past service cost is recognized immediately.

The defined benefit lisbility is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit obligation.
and actuarial gains not recognized reduced by past secvice cost not yet recognized and the fair
value of plan assets out of which the obligafions are to be seitled directly. If such aggregate is
negative, the asset is measured at the lower of such aggregate or the aggregate of cumulative -
unrecognized net actuarial losses and past service cost and the present value of any economic
benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in the future contributions to
the plan, :

If the asset is measured at the aggregate of cuinulative unrecognized net actuarial losses and past
servico cost and the present value of any econcmic benefits avallablo in the form of refunds from
the plan or reductions in the future contributions to the plan, net actuarial losses of the current
period and past service cost of the current period are recognized immediately to the extent that
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they exceed any reduction in the present value of those economic benefits. If there is no change or
an increase in the present value of the economic benefits, the entire net actuarial losses of the
current period and past service cost of the current perlod are recognized immediately. Similacly,
net actuarial gains of the current period after the deduction of past service cost of the current
period exceeding any increase in the present value of the economic benefits stated above are
recognized immediately if the asset is measured at the aggregate of cumulative unrecognized net
actuaria] losses and past service cost and the present value of any economic benefits available in
the form of refunds from the plan or reductions n'the future contributions to the plan, If there is

- no change or a decrease in the present value of the economic benefits, the entire net actuarial gains
of the current period after the deduction of past service cost of the current period are recognized
inmmediately. ' '

Income Taxes

Current Tox .

Current tax. assets and liabllities for the current and prlor years are measured at the amounts
expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authority. The tax rates and tax laws used to’
-compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferved Tax : ' .

Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability method, on all temporary differences and
carryforward benefit of unused net operating loss carry over (NOLCO) and excess of minimum
corporate income tax (MCIT) over regular corporate income tax (RCIT) at the reporting date.
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes. '

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences with certain
exceptions, Deferred tux assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences,
carryforward benefit of unused NOLCO and excess of MCIT over RCIT, to the extsnt that it Is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences
can be utilized. ‘ : . _—

The carrying smount of deferred tax assets s reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficlent taxable income will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax assels to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at
each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
income will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered. ‘ :

Deferred tax relating to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income and not in the
consolidated statement of income is recognized in other comprehensive income,

Deferred tax assets and labilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
periods when the asset is realized or the lability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Def’erred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to

offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same tax authority. - :
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Equity ‘ . :
Capital stock is measured at par value for'all shares Issued and outstanding. 'When the shares are
sold at a premiurn, the difference between the proceeds and the par value is credited to ‘Capital
paid-in excess of par value’ account. Direct ¢osts incurred related to equity issuance, such as .
underwriting, accounting and legal fees, printing costs and taxes are chargeable to ‘Capital paid-in
excess of par value’ account. If the ‘Capital paid-in excess of par value’ is not sufficient; the
excoss is charged against the ‘Retained carnings’. ;

When the Group issues more than one class of stock, a'separate account is maintained for each
class of stock and the number of shares issued. -

Own equity instruments which are acquired (treasury shares) are deducted from equity and
accounted for at weighted ayerage cost. No gain or loss Is recognized in the statement of income
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Parent Company’s own equity instruments, .

‘Retained earnings’® represents accumulated eamings of the G‘ro'up less dividends declared.

Basic/Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share .

Basic/diluted earnings (loss) per share is determined by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the year with vetrorotive adjustments for any stock
split and stock dividends declared,

Provisions

General : ..

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event; it is probable thit an outflow of resources embedying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Ifthe effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash fiows at a pretax rate that reflects current market assessment
of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where
discounting is used, the increase in the provisions due to the passage of time is recognized as an
interest expense, Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate, Ifit is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to seitls the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Asset Refirement Obligation . . - ,

The Group recognizes proyision arising from legal and/or constructive abligations associated with
the cost of dismantling and removing an ltem of property and equipment and restoring the site
where it is located, the obligation for which the Group incurs cither when the asset is acquired or
as a consequence of having used the asset during a particular period for purposes other than to
produce inventories during that period, A corresponding asset is recognized as part of property
and equipment, Decommissioning costs are provided at the present value of expected costs to
settle the obligation using estimated cash flows. The cash flows are discounted at a current pretax
rate that reflects the risks specific to the decommisstoning Hability.

The unwinding of the discount is expensed as Incurred and recognized In the consolidated
statement of income ag an interest expense. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are
reviewed annually and adjusted prospectively. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the

discount rate applied are added or deducted from the cost of property and equipment. The amount
. deducted from the cost of property and equipment shall not exceed its carrying amount.
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Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets :

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the cansolidated financial statemnents. These are
disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial statements unless the probability of an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is remote, Contingent assets are not recognized in the
consolidated financial statements but disclosed in ihe notes to consolidated financial statements
when an inflow of economic benefits is probable, ,

Events after the Reporting Period -
Events afier reporting date that provide additional information about the Group’s financial position
at the-reporting date (adjusting events), if any, are reflected in the consolidated financlal
statemerits. Events that are not adjusting events, if any, are disclosed in the notes to consolidated
financial statements, when material, ‘ ' '

Dividends on ¢common shares
Dividends on commeon shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when

approved by the respective BOD and shareholders of the Parent Company and ifs subsidiaries
while stock dividends are deducted from equity when approved by the respective BOD and
shareholders of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries. Dividends for the year that are approved
after the consolidated statement of financial position date are dealt withi as an event after the
consolidated statement of financial position date. '

Segment reporting : ‘ .

The Group's aperating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature
of the products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit
that offers different products and serves different markets. Financial information on business
segments is presented in Note 6, The Group’s assets producing revenues are located in the
Philippines (i.e., one geographical location), Therefore, geographical segment information is no
longer presented. -

. Future Changes in Accounting Policies | :
Standaxds issued but not yet effective up to the date of {ssuance of the consolidated financial

statements are listed befow, This listing is of standards and interpretations issued, which the Group
reasonably expects to be applicable at a future date. The Group intends to adapt those standards
when they become effective,

Effective in 2012 .

PAS 12, Income Taxes - Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets

The amendment provides a practical solution to the problem of assessing whether recovery of an
asset will be through use or sale, [t introduces a presumption that recovery of the carrying amount
of an asset will, normally, be through sale, - ‘

PAS 1, Financial Statement Presentation - Presentation of liems of Other Comprehensive Income
The amendments to PAS 1 change the grouping of items presented in other comprehensive ‘
income. Items that could be reclassified (or “recycled”) to profit or loss at a future point in time
(for example, upon derecoguition or seitlement) would be presented separately' from items that
will never be reclassified. The amendment affects presentation only and has therefore na impact
on the Group's finanelal position or performance. The amendment becomes effective for annual
periods beginning on or after July 1, 2012,
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Effective in 2013 :

PAS 19, Employee Benefits (Amendment) ,
Amendments to PAS 19 range from fundamental changes such as removing the corridor
mecg_anism and the concept of expected returns on plan assets to simple clarifications and re-
wording. : ‘

PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements (s revised in 2011) . .

As a consequence of the new PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statement and PERS 12,
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, what remains of PAS 27 is limited to accounting for
subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities, and associates in separate financial statements. The Group
will assess the impact of this standard as {t becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2013.

PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (as revised in 201 1)

As a consequence of the new PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements and PFRS 12, PAS 28 has been
renamed PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, and describes the application of
the equity method to investments in joint ventures in addition to associates. The Group will assess
the impact of this standard as it becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2013,

PERS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Enhanced Derecognition Disclosure Requirements
‘The amendment requires additional disclosure about financial assets that have been transferred but
not derecognized to ensble the user of the Group's financial statements to understand the
relationship with those assets that have not been derecognized and their associated liabilities. In
addition, the amendment requires disclosures about continuing Involvement in derecognized assets
to enable the user to evaluate the nature of, and risks associated with, the entity’s continuing
involvement in those derecognized assets, The amendment becomes effective for annual periods -
~ beginning on or after July [, 2011.

PFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures - Qffselting Financial Assels and Financial Liabilities
These amendments require an entity to dlsclose information about rights of set-off and related
arrangements (such as collateral agreements). The new disclosures are required for atl recognized
financial instruments that are set off in accordance with PAS 32, These disclosures also apply to
recognized financial instruments that ars subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or
‘similar agreement’, frrespective of whether they are set-off in accordance with PAS 32, The
amendments roquire entltios to disclose, In a tabular format unless another format is more
appropriate, the following minimum quantitative information, This is presented separately for
financial assets and financial liabilitles recognized at the end of the reporting period:
a) The gross amounts of those recognized financial assets and recognized financial liabilities;
b) The amounts that are set off In accordance with the criterla in PAS 32 when determining the
net amounts presented in the statement of financial position; - :
¢) The net amounts presented in the statement of financia) position; : .
d) The amounts subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement that
are not otherwise included in (b) above, including:
i. Amounts related to recogpized financial instruments that do not meet some or all of the
offsetting criterla in PAS 32; and
~ii. Amounts related to financial collateral (Including cash collateral); and .
@) The net amount afier deducting the amounts in (d) from the amounts in (o) above,
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The amendments to PFRS 7 are to be retrospectively applied for annual perfods beginning on or

‘after January 1, 2013, .
PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements
PFRS, 10 replaces the portmn of PAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that
addresses the accounting for consolidated financtal statements. It alsa ineludes the issues raised in
SIC-12, Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities, PFRS 10 establishes a single control mode] that
applies to all entities mv!udlng special purpose entities. The changes introduced by PFRS 10 will
. require management to exercise significant judgment to determine which entities are controlled,
and therefore, are required to be consolidated by a parent, compared with the requirements that
were in PAS27. The Group will assess the impact of this standard as it becomes effective for
annual periods beginning on or aﬂer January §, 2013,

PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements :

PFRS 11 replaces PAS 31, Interests in Joint Ventures and SIC.13, Jomtly-controlled Entities -
Non-monetary Contnbutmns by Venturers. PFRS 11 removes the option to account for jointly
controlled entities {JCBs) using proportiouate consolidation, Instead, JCEs that meet the definition
of 2 joint venture must be accounted for using the equity method. This standard becomes effective
for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. :

PFRS 12, Disclosure af Tnterests with Other Entities

PFRS 12 includes all of the disclosures that were previously in PAS 27 related to consolidated
financial statements, us well as all of the disclosures that were previously included in PAS 31 and
PAS 28. These disclosures relate to an entily’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
assoointes and structured entities. A number of new disclosures are also required. ‘The Group will
assess the impact of this standard as it becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2013,

PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurament

PERS 13 establlshes 2 single source of guidance urider PFRS for all fair value measurements.
PFRS 13 does not change when an entity s required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance
on how to measure fair value under PFRS when fair value is requited or permitted. The Group will
assess the impact of this standard as {t becomes efiective for annual periods beginning on or efter
January 1, 2013.

Philippine Intcrpretahﬂn IFRIC 20, Stripping Costs in the .Producnan Phase of a Surface Mine
This interpretation applies to waste removal costs that are inourred in surface mining activity
during the production phase of the mine (“production stripping costs”) and provides guidance on’
the tecognition of productmn stripping costs as an asset and measurement of the stripping activity -
asset. This interpretation becomes eﬂ‘ective for annual perfods beginning on or after

January 1,2013.

Liffective in 2014
PAS 32, Financlal Ins!rmnems Presentation - Qffsetting Financial Assels and Financial
liabilities
These amendments to PAS 32 clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable rght to
set-off* and also clarify the application of the PAS 32 offsetting eriteria to settlement systems

" (such as central clearing house systems) which apply gross settlement mechanisms that are not
simultaneous, The Group will assess the impact of this standard as it becomes effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January i, 2014,
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Effective in 2015 .

PERS 9, Financial Instraments: Classification and Measurement

PFRS 9 as issued reflects the first phase on the replacement of PAS 39 and applies to classification -
and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities as defined in PAS 39, The standatd is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015, In subsequent phases, hedge
accounting and Impairment of flnancial assets will be addressed with the completion of this project
expected on the first half of 2012, The adoption of the first phase of PFRS 9 will have an effect on
the classification and measurement of the Group’s financlal assets, but will potentially have no
impact on classification and measurements of financial liabilities, :

Philippine Interpretation [FRIC 15, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

. This interpretation covers accounting -for revenue and associated expenses by entities that
undertake the construction of real ‘estate directly or through subcontractors; The interpretation
requires that revenue on construction of real estate be recognized only upon completion, except
when such contract qualifies as construction contract to be accounted for under PAS 11,
Canstruction’ Contracts, or involves rendering of services in which case revenue is recognized
- based on stage of completion. Contracts involving provision of services with the construction
materials and where the risks and reward of ownership are transferred to the buyer on a continuous
basis will also be accounted for based on stage of completion. The SEC and the Financial
Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) have deferred the effectivity of this interpretation until the
final Revenue standard is issued by International Acecounting Standards Board (IASB) and: an
evaluation of the requirements of the final Revenue standard against the practices of the Philippine
© real estate Industry Is completed. h .

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the consclidated financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires the
Group to make judgments and estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and contingent liabilities. Future events
may occur which will cavse the judgments and assumptions used in arriving at the estimates to
change. The effects of any change in judgments and estimates are reflected in the consolidated
financial statements as they become reasonably determinable. '

Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are beliéved to be reasonzble under the
-circumstances.

I udgmlcntg . ' : o N
The following are the critical judgments and key assumptions that have a significant risk qf
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assels and liabilities within the next financial year:

a) Going concern : C ‘
The management of the Group has made an assessment of the Group's abi!jty to continue as a
going convern and is satisfied that the Group has the resources to continue in busfmess forthe
foreseeable future, Furthermore, the Group Is not aware of any material uncertainties that may
cast signlficant doubts upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the
consolidated financial statements continue to be prepared on a going concern basis.

v
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b)

d)
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Determination of functional currency

Each entity in the Gmup has determined its functional currency to be the Philippine peso. It is
the currency of the primary economic environment in which each entity operates and the
curnancy that mainly Inﬂuances the income and expenses, °

Operarmg lease commitments - group as.a lessee

The Group has entered into a [ease for some of its office spaces and branches. The Group has
determined that it has not acquired all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
leased propetties because of the following factors: (s) the Group will not goquire the
ownership of the leased asset upon termination of the lease; (b) the Group has no option to
purchase the asset at a prico that is sufficiently lower than the fair value at the date of the
option; and (¢) the lease term is enly for a period of one year, renewdble annually.
Accordingly, the Group accounts for the lease as operating leases.

Fair Value of financial instrumenis

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the consohdated
statement of financial position cannot be derived from active markets, these are determined
using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical models. The

inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not -
feasible, a degree of judgment Is required in establishing fair values, The judgments include
considerations of liquidity and model inputs such as correlation and volatility for longer dated
finanoial instruments (Nots 5),

Financial assets not quoted in an active market

The Group classifies financlal assets by evaluating, among others, whether the asset is quoted
or not in an aotive market. Included in the evaluation on whether a financial asset is quoted in
an active market is the detarm{nation on whethet quoted prices are readﬂy and regularly
available, and whether those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm'’s length basis,

Determination of whether the Group is acting as a principal or an agent

The Group assesses its revenue arrangemets against the following critcrm to determiine
whether it'is acting as a principal or an agent: :
¢ whether the Group has primary responsibility for providing the goods and services;
»  whether the Group has inventory risk;

e whether the Group has discretion in establishing prices; and

e  whether the Group bears the credit risk, :

Ifthe Group has debermmed it is acting as a principal, revenue is recognlzed on a gross basis

with the amount remitted to the other party being accounted for as part of costs and expenses.

If the Group has determined it is acting as an agent, only the net amount retained is recognized
as ravenue, .

The Group assessed its revenue arrangements and concluded that it is acting as principal in
some arrangements zmd as an agent in other arrangements,
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Estimates , ‘
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the

~ balance sheet date that have a significant risk of causing a materlal adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and Habilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

a)

b)

Fair value of financial instruments

'PFRS requires that certain financial assets and liabilities be carrled and disclosed at fair vatue,
which requires the nse of accounting estimates and judgments, While significant components
of fair value measurement are determined using verifiable objective evidence (i.e. foreign
exchange rates, interest rates, volatility rate), the timing and amount of changes in fair value
would differ if the Group utilized a different valuation mettiodology. Any change in the
“assumptions could affect the falr values of these financial assets and liabilities.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the fair values of financial assets aﬁd financial liabilities
are disclosed in Note 5.

Allowarce for credit losses

The Group maintdins az allowance for credit losses at a level considered adequate to provide
for potential uncollectible receivables. The level of allowance is evaluated by the Groupon
the basis of factors that affect the collectibility of the accounts. These factors include, but are
not limited to, the length of the Group’s relationship with the customers, average age of

. accounts and collection experienco. The Group performs a regular review of the age and

status of these accounts, deslgned to identify accounts with objective evidence of impalrment
and provide the appropriate allowance for Impaltinent losses. The review s accomplished
using specific assessment and colléctive approaches. The amouat and timing of recorded
expenses for any perfod would differ if the Group made different judgments or utilized
different methodologies. o

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, receivables net of allowance for credit losses are
disclosed in Note §, '

Impairment of AFS equity investments .

The Group determines that AFS equity investments are impaired when there has been a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost. This determination of what is
significant or prolonged requires judgment. The Group treats ‘significant’ generally as
decrease by more than 20.00% of the original cost of investnient, and ‘prolonged’ as greater |
than 12 months, In making this judgment, the Group evaluates among other factots, the
normal volatility in share price. ' :

[n addition, impairment may be appropriate when there is evidence of deterioration in the
financial health of the investee, industry and sector performance, changes [n technology, and
operational and financing cash flows, In 2011, the Company recognized impairment losses on
unquioted equity investments (Note 10). No impalrment loss was recognized In 2010. As of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, the carrying value of AFS investments are disclosed in Note 10.
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d) Estimated usefidl lives of property and equipment, software and website costs
The useful lives of the property and equipment and software and website costs are estimated
based on the period over which the property and equipment and software and website costs are
expected to be available'for use and on'the collective assessment of industry practice, internal
technical evaluation and experience with similar assets. The estimated useful lives of property
and equipment and software and website costs are reviewed perlodically and updated if
expectations differ materially from previous estlmates due to physical wear and tear, technical
or commereia] obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the property and
equipment, software and website. However, it is possible that future results or operations
could be materially affected by changes in the estimates brought about by changes in factors
mentioned above. The amounts and timing of recording of expenses for any period would be

. affected by changes in these factors and circumstances,

There is no change in the estimated useful lives of propetty and equipment, sofiware and
website during the year. As of December 31,2011 and 2010, the carrying values of property
and equipment are disclosed in Note 13. As of December31, 2011 and 2010, the carrying
value of software and website costs is disclosed in Note 14,

e) [Dmpairment of nonfinancial assets (except Goodwill)
PAS 36, Impairment of Assets, requlres that an Impalrment review be performed when certain
impaimment indicators are present. Determining the value in use of property and equipment
and other nonfinancial assets, which require the determination of future cédsh flows expected 10
be generated from the continued use and ultimate disposition of such assets, requires the
Group ta make estimates and assumptions that can materially affect the consolidated financial
statements,

As of the reporting dates, the property and equipment and software do not have any indication
" of impairment. .

Fifth Agency Unified Services, Inc. (FAUSI) stopped Its normal operations in 2008. FAUSI
sufferéd consecutive years of losses which the management believes may lead to non-recovery.
of their Investment, As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Group recognized allowance for
impairment on its investment in FAUS] ag disclosed in Note 12, The carrying values of
investment in an asscciate and 2 joint venture as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 are disclosed
in Note 12, : ‘ :

f) Impairment of Goodwill
The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-penerating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Bstimating the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash
flows from the cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. o

Key assumptions used in value in uso caloulations
The caloulation of value in use for both cash-generating units are most sensitive to the
following assumptions explained as foltows:
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Discount Rates, Discount rates reflect management's estimate of the risks specifio to the cash
generating unit. ‘This is the benchmark used by management to assess operating performance
and to evalvate future investment proposals. The discount rate used for the cash-generating
unit is based on the estimated cost of equity, This rate is further adjusted to reflect the market
assessment of any risk specific to the generating unit for which estimates of cash flows have
not been adjusted.

Growth Rate. Growth rate reflects management’s estimate of the cash generating unit’s
earnings potentlal as a function of economic and industry growth and the unit’s strategic
position relative to its competitors, For purposes of the projection, a growth rate of 5.0% was
used,

Goodwill armounted to £3. 65 million as of December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Assel retirement obﬂgaﬂan

The determination of asset retirement obligation requires estimation of the costs of
dismantling installations and restoring lensed properties to their opiginal condition. While the
Group believes that the assumptions used in the estimation of such costs are reasonable,
significant changes in these assumptions may materially affect the recorded expense or
obligation in the future period.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, asset retirement obligation is disclosed in Note 17, |

Retirement costs : ,

The determination of the Group’s.retirement cost is dependent on selection of certain ,
assumptions used by the actuary in calculating such amount. Those assumptions are described
in Note 23 and include, among others, discount rates, rates of future salary increase, expected
rate of return on plan assets and averago remaining working lives of employses. Actual
results that differ from the Graup's assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future
periods and therefore, generally affect the Group's recognized expense and recorded
obligation in such future periods. While management believes that the assumptions are
reasonable and approprmte, significant differences in the Group’s actual experience or
significant changes in the assumptions may materially affect the pension and other retirement
obligation. ) i

As of December 31, 2011 and 201 0, retirement payable is disclosed in Note 23,
Deferred tax assets

The Group's assessment on the recognition of deferred tax asséts on deductible temporary
differences 1 based on the budgeted taxable incoms of the following period. This budget is

" based on the Group's past results and future expectations on revenue and expenses. The

i)

deferred tax assets and deferred tax Habilities recognized in the consolidated statements of
financial position as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 are disclosed In Note 25. Deferred tax
on temporary differences not recognized in the consolidated statements of financial posntlon as
of December 31, 2011 and 2010.are disclosed in Note 25,

Legal Contingencies

The estimate of probable costs, if any, for the resolution of possible clmms is developed in
consultation with outside Jegal counse! handling the Group!s defense in these matters and is
based upon an analysis of potential results. Based on management’s assessment, there are no
liabilities that require recognition arising from legal claims (Note 28). '
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"4, Financial Risk Management Qbjectives and Policies

'I'he Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents, AFS investments
financial assets at FVPL, accounts payable and other liabilities and long-term debt. The main
_purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the Group’s operations. The Group has:
various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables, deposits and accounts
payable and other current liabilities, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's fi nancial instruments are credit risk, quuidxty risk and

marfet risks. The BOD reviews and approves the pohcles for managing each risk and these are
summarized below.

Credit Risl ’

Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur a loss because its customers ar counterpa.mes failed
to discharge their contractual obligations, The Group manages and controls credit risk by trading
only with recognized, creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on oredit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, recelvable

balances are monitored on an ongomg basis with the result that the Group's exposure to bad debts
Is not significant,

-

There are no significant concentrations of oredit risk within the Group,

A |

Since the Group trades only with recognized third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company’s maximum cxposure to credit risk is limited to
- the carrying values of its financial assets since it does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements that will mitigate credit risk exposure,

The fair values of financial assets at FVPL and AFS investments represent the current oredit risk
cxposure but ot the maximum risk exposure that could aclse in the future as a result of changes in
fair value.

The table below shows an aging analysis of [oans and receivables:

. 201
Neillher Past - Pait Due but not Inpatred — °

Due noy Less theo Over 360
_Impalred 150 Dnys  151-L3D Days IHI«MB Daya Daya Subfotal Impalred Tutal
Due from;
' Wastem Union RI47,017,358 R~ P- i B P341017,698 B~ P347,017,598
Brokers 48,191,151 - - - - 48,201,151 - 48,290,151
Sub-ngenty : 15,205,588 - - - — 15283589 ] ~ 15285389
Affilistes 9,257,840 - - - - 9,257,840 - 9,257,840
"Busineys partnem. 2,195,168 - - - - 3,855,168 - 3,195,168
nqueted debt seeurities 296,979,500 - - - ~ 396,979,500 - 196,979,300
rade recefviblz T BDS47.483 - - - - 60,547,423 7,617,683 §8,175,145
Rwdwhlc from advertising and )
web development services 4,[56,810 - - - - 4,156,810 29,511,309 31,668,119
Accrued interesy 3008724 - - - - - 34,006,724 50,667, 305709
Advances to alficers . .
mnd emnployees . 1,441,284 - - - - 1,441,284 1,298,924 4,137,708
Other voeoivables 4,217,560 . - - - ~ 402,560 11475280 15,692,840
. . PB14,397,007 P Re P R~ FA4IST00T _ R49.960,843 PBi4,157,850
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2010
Nelitigr Past Past Dus but gl Impaired

Pue nor Laisthan QrerI6d - -
T | d 130 Dayy 151-180 Days  181-350 Days - Doyt Sublotal Irnpaleed Tala)
nt from: .

‘Waostern Unlon - 319,411,508 R3el336 F200,380 B P~ P209,913,824 B~ PX19,913,834

Hrokers 37,894,335 - : - - - 57,894,338 - 31,894,336

Subagenty 11,047,454 - - - ~ 17,047,454 - 17047454

Adliliatey 11395487 - - - - 11,396,487 - 14,396,487

Buslncsa Emnm 16,921,672 - - - - 16,921,672 - 16,921,671
Trady reecivabl - - - - - - 7,622,663 7,637,663
Reoejyable from advertsing

and wob dovelopmen :

servicos 16,046,194 B4, 285,960 680453 - 17,840,274 32,699,747 50,540,021
Acented Inierest 19,158,142 - - - - 19,158,342 - 19,158,142

. Advunoes to oficers : .

and employeer 140251 - - - 1,403 '190 1,243,541 321,048 . 1,564,589
Mizeclancour asscis 23,002,058 - - - 28,002,056 28, 002,056
Qiher recelvables IS.HS 6%0 13,345,690 9,760, 608 23, 30& 306,298

m 9é54 390 NEIZS ?33 I"ﬂ?g?ﬂ Fﬂﬂﬁe‘iﬂ Py, 103, 290 [l gé%]!ﬂﬁ Pi0.409,056 le!ﬂglﬁg

‘The table below shows the credit quality of the Group’s neither past due nor impaired financial
assets based on their historical experience with the corresponding third parties,

2014
‘ Grade A Grade B Giado C Total
Cash and cnsh equivalents® R165449,798 P B~ RIG5,449,798
Loang and reccivables; :
Due from:
Western Unlon 342,695,519 - 4,322,379 347,017,898
Broker 45,291,151 : - -~ 48291151
Sub-agents 15,285,589 - - 15,285,589
Affiliates . 9,458,877 - - 9,458,877
Buslnesy pantners - - 3,252,237 - 3,252.237
Unquoted debt scourities 296,979,500 C - — 256,979,500
Trade recelvable 60,547,483 - - 60547483
Receivable from advertisiag and , .
web dovelopment services , - 4,156,810 - 4,156,810
Acorued inferest - 34,006,724 - - 34,006,724
Advances to oMfcers and .
. employees . . 992,125 o= - 992,128
Others _ ’ - 4,217.560 - 4,217,560
AFS investments: : :
Quoted:
Government bonds 1,535,603,049 . - - 1,535,603,049
Equity securities 1,270,721,653 - - 270,721,653
Corporate bonds 55,568,743 - - 55,568,743
Ungquoted:
Corporate bonds 292,950,582 - - 292,950,592
Mutual fund 1,143,801,986 - - 1,143,801,986
Golf shores 570,000 - - 576,000
Financial assets ot FVPL: ’
Corporate bond 86,627,840 - - 86,627,840
Nondeliverable forward 111,952 - - 111,952
" Deposits {included in “Other aoncurrent
assels”) - 18,656,517 - — 18,656,517
. B5,575,319,098  #£11,626,607 F4.312 379 $5,594,268,084
*Excluding cosh on liand., ' :
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2010
. . _ Grade A Grade B Gragde C Total
Cash and cash uguivalenls® R351,873,517 - P-  B551,873,517
Loans and receivables: !
Due from; : .
Western Umion . 219,411,908 - 501,926 219,913,834
Broker 57,894,336 - - 57,894,336
Sub-agents ' 17,047,454 - - 17,047,454
Affiliates " 11,396,487 - ~ . 11,396,487
Business partaers -, 16,921,672 - 16,921,672
Recelvable from advertising and
web dovelopment services 17,840,274 - 17,840,274
Avcrued [nterest 19,158,142 - - 19,158,142
Advancos to officers and
employees ! 1,243,54} - - - 1,243,541
Miscellancous assets - 28,002,056 - - 28,002,056
Others ~ 13,545,690 - 13,545,690
AFS investments; o
Quated: )
Government bonds 1,007,897,993 . - - 1,007,897,993
Equity securities’ 1,145,316,846 - - 1,145316,846 .
Corporate bonds . 60,815,495 - - 60,815,495
-Unquoted: '
Corporate bonds 787,717,602 - -~ 787,717,662
Equlty securities 207,296 -~ - 207,296
Mutual fund 889,871,215 - - 889,871,215
Golf sharcs 370,000 - - 570,000
Finpnclol asscts at FYPL: .
‘Corporate bond 89,647,319 - - 89,647,319
Nondeliverable forward 25,214,110 - - 25,214,110
Deposits (included in "Other noncuront
assets") ' 13,461.8(2 - - - 15,46). 812"

. ' P4,928,747,18% ®48,307,636 1301,926 P4,977,556,751
*Exciuding cash on hand, ' '

Grade A financial assets pertains to those investments to counterparties with good credit standing
ar receivables from clients or customers that consistently pay on or before the maturity date.
Grados B and C include those receivables being collected on due dates with varying collection
efforts required, ranging from migimum 1o moderate that may require close monitoring.

Cash and cash equwalents are classified as Grade A baoause it is being deposited with reputable
banks.

ATS investments are classified as Grade A since these mostly pertains to mvestments in Hsted
compenies and govemmcnt-lssued bends.

Past due or impaired receivables perfain to those recelvables which are already outstanding
beyond their normal credit terms. A portion of which were already provided with allowance. For
those past due receivables without an allowance, the Group assessed them as still coltectible
granting that there will be continuous effort fo follow-up such receivables from thelr custoiners,

Liguidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group wnll be unable to meet its payment obligetions when they

fall due under normal and stress circumstances. To limit this risk, the Group closely monitors its
cash flows and ensures that credit facilities aro availablo to meet its obllgations as and when they
fall due. The Group also has & committed line of ¢redit that it can acoess to meet liquidity needs.
Auny excess cash is invested in short-term money market placements. These placements are
maintained to meet maturing obligations. :

‘|||N||||i[||||[1l||ﬂ”l“li!lllllll[llllilllﬂNIJUIlﬂﬂI]
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The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial instruments based on
contractual undiscounted payments: ‘

2011
. Lessthan Meore (ftan
Cn Demand 3 Manthe 3 to 12 Monthy 1 to § years § years Total -
‘Finanelal Assets
Cash and cash equivalents R71,438,116  P287,699,554 - B B R359,137,670
Loans and rceeivables o
Due from Westom Unlon ~ 347,017,898 — - - 347,017,698
Broker - 43,291,051 - - - 48,791,151
Sub-agents - 15,285,589 - - - 15,285,589
Alfiligtes 9,257,839 ~ - - - 9,257,839
Business parners 3,195,168 - - - - 3,195,168
Unquoted debt sccuritios - - . - 296,979,500 - 296,979,500
Future interest - L4271 7,199,488 14,398,975 - 23,026,184
Trade . 7,627,663 60,547,483 - ' - - (8,175,146
Receivable ftum advartizing and
wch dovelopment services 33,668,119 - R - - 33,668,119
Accred interest - 29,143,132 4,914,259 - - 34057391
Advances 1o officers and :
cmployees 2,737,208 - ' - - - 2,737,208
Others ‘ 15,692,480 - - - - 15,692,480
AFS Investments '
Quoted:
Qoverment bonds ~ - - 124,802,317 1| ,4l0,800.732 1,535,603,0449
Cdrporate bonds - - - ~ 55,568,743 55,568,741
Equity socurities 1,270,721,653 - - - - §,270,721,653
Unjuoted: . ‘
Cuorporate bonds - - 123,045,128 94054947 75,850,520 292,950,592
Equity seourdly 207,296 - . - , - — 207,296
Mutuoal funds 1,200,402,459 - - ~ -~ £200,402,459
Golf Shares 570,000 - ' - - - 570,000
Future interess - 3,437,979 62,282,688 349,024,150  B34,697,599  1,249,d42,414d
Financial assete al FYPL: ‘
Corporate bonds - - - - 86,627,840 - 86,627,840
Drerivative assels - 111,952 - - — 111,952
Future interest - 333,184 3,331,840 * 3442901 - 7,107,925
Othor non-guerent assels :
Rescivables 96,592,600 - - - - 26,592,660
Drposits - - - 18,656,517 - 18,656,517
F2,712,110,601  B793,295,643  P2GD,773,400 PRO87.087,147 £2,376,917,594 BY7,071,084,385
Finanetal Liabilitles ‘
Aceounts paysble and other
liabilitfes |
Due to sub-agents und - ; ‘
brokers P RI3527321 | P [ R135,273,271
Ackrued expenses - 13161313 56,174,130 - - 69,935,443
Trade -~ 9,160,739 47,395,157 - - 56,555,896
Derivative (iability - T17.820 - - - - 177,820
. B~ "RISSSTI  RI03,569,287 [ R R162,542,430
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T 2010
#58 (han ' Morc than
L On Demaid I Menths 3 to 12 Menths Lios
Elm;ncial Asstls , = S years y Totel
ash and cush cquivalents P45271,648  P506,601,8
Loans and recefyables ‘ " B e B~ PSSLET3SIT
Duc from Western Unlon - 219,913,834 - — -
Broker - 87.304336 - - - 2;33;2332
Suh-?gnms ~ 17,047,454 - - - 17,047,454
Affiliates 1,396,487 - ~ - - L3964
Business partners 16291,672 - - - - 16291672
Trade 7,627,663 - - - - 1,627,663
Recelvable from advertising
and weob dovelopment
services 17,840,274 - - - - 17,840,274
Accrucd interest - TL,739,772 TAIRI0 - - 19,158,142
Advances o officers and
cmployces 1,243,541 ) - - - - 1,243,541
Miscellancous assets - 28,002,056 - - - 28,002,056
Others 23,306,298 - - - - 23,306,208
AFS Investments
Quoted: .
Govarnment bonds - - ~ 211,985,850 793,912,143 1,007,897,993
Corporate bonds - - - - 60,815,495 60,815,495
Eauily securitles 1.145,316,846 - - - - - 1,145316,846
Unquoted:
Corporate bends - - 382,191,521 345,205,624 60,320,517 787,717,662
Equity security 207,296 - - - - 207.296
Muual funds 339,871,215 - - - - BODR7IZIS
Golf Shures 570,000 - - - - 570,600
Future interest - 4,858,987 69,294 286 250,742,333 508,963,131 833,958,737
Financlal assels &t FYPL .
Corporaie bands - - - 89647319 - 59,647,319
Drivative assels - 20,867,353 . 4,146,757 - - 25,214,119
Future Intcrest - 333,184 3,350,350 14,180,622 - 173,864,156
Other non-cursont asscls ‘ :
Receivables 94,592,600 ° - - - - 96,592,600
Deposhs . - - - 15,461,812 - 15,461,812
- 112,255,535,54)  PB07.258.844  PA66,601,284 RY23,273,560 P1,426,011,286 D5,938,630,515
2010 :
' Less than More than
QOn Demand 3 Months 3 Lo 12 Months: 1 0 § yuars 5 years Total
Finunctal Liabilides
Accounts payable and other
liabfliticy
Due to sub-agenls and N
brokers R }09,691,906 = P P~ 99,691,906
. Acorued cxpenses - ’ ~ 70,213,318 - - 70,213,338
Trade - 8,771,621 - - - 8,777,627
Derivatlve linbility - 17,484,757 3,186,182 — - . 20,670,919
P~ R125954.200 ~ B73,399.520 - P~ P199,353,810

*

a t 5

Market risk is the risk that movements of market prlce

' ’ '

s will adversely affect the Group’s financial

condition. In managing its market risk exposure, the Group focuses on managing price (risk of
lass arising from any change in the value of any asset or trading instrument) and foreign exchange

risks (risk of loss arising from fluctuations in exchange rates).

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash
flows or the fair values of financial instruments, The Group’s exposure to market tisk for changes
in interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s AFS investments and financial assets at FVPL.

T
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The sensitivity of equity is the effect of the agsumed changes in interest rates by rovaluing the
fixed rate AFS lavestments (sffect on equity) and fixed rate financial assets at FVPL (effect on
incame) held as of reporting date. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably '
possible change in interest rates with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s equity,

The table below shows simple sensttivity analysis as of Decermber 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively:

2011 2010
Changp in Effect Effect Effect Effect
Basis Polnts on Equity . ¢n Income on Equity on Income
Increase by 100 {P119,286,481) (R867,225) {Pa9,171,512) (P1,680,909)
Decrease byl00 132,830,826 840,397 76,198,671 1,722,588 -
Foreign Currency Risk ' .

The Group has transactional currency exposures. The Group’s financial instruments which are
denominated in foreipn currency include cash and cash equivalents, receivables, AFS investments,
financial assets at FVPL, and long-term debt. The Group maintains several U,S. dollar accounts to
manage ts foreign currency denominated transactions.

The Group’s financial assets and liabilitics'dqnom_inatéd in U.S. dollar are as follows:

2011 2010
Cash and cash equivalents ‘ ' 31,772,349 US$3,614,466
Recejvables : 7,915,554 4,898,642
. AFS investments 3,227,449 3,393,209
Financial assets at FVPL - Corporate bonds 1,976,000 2,044,875
Marginal deposit - 638,733
Advances/deposits to sub-agents - . 1,952
‘ 314,891,352 14,591,877
Accounts payable and other current labilities 976,130 1,075,889
Net foreign currency-denominated assets $13,915,222 - US$13,515,988
2011 2010

Cash and cash equivalents US$1,778,205  US3H3,614,466
Receivables ' 7,815,363 4,898,642
AFS investments ' 3,277,449 3,393,209
Financial assets at FVYPL - Corporate bonds 1,976,000 2,044,875
Marginal deposit ' | - 638,733
Advances/deposits to sub-agents 4,300 1,852 -
‘ . ‘14,851,317 14,591,877
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 979,380 1,075,889
Net foreign currency-denominated assets 13,871,937 13,515,988,
Currency forwards ' (13,450,000) (15,550,000)
Net exposure US$421,937 (US$2,034,012)

Ixi translating the foreign currensy denominated assets and Habilitles into peso amounts, the
exchange rate used was P43.84 to USH1 as of December 31, 2011 and 2010,

(G RMAL
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The following table presents the impact on the Group’s income before income tax due to change
in the fair value of its monetary assets and liabilitles, broughit about by a reasonably possible
change in the U.S. dollar to Peso exchange rates, with all other vatiables held constant. Thers is
no other impact on equity other than these affecting eamings.

2014 2010 .
Chongein Forelgn . EffectonNet  Change in Forelgn EfTect on Net
. Exchange Xete  Income before Tax Exchpnpe Rulo  Tncomic bofore Tax
lnpwasu +84% (P1535,381) +1.01% PB00,G28
Décrensa -0.84% 155381 -1.01% (900,628)

The increase in U.S. dollar to Peso rate means weaker Peso agalnst U.S. dollar while decrease in
U.S, doilar to Peso exchange rate means stronger Peso ajgainst the U.S. dollar.

Equity Price Risk .
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value of quoted AFS investments will fluctiate as the
result of changes in the value of individual stocks. The Group’s exposure te equity price risk
relates primarily to the Group's quoted AFS investments. :

The following table domonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in equity price,
with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s equity. The Impact on the Group’s equity
already excludes the impact on transuctions affecting the income before income tax. The possible
change in equity prices was determined using historical closing prices of the benchmark
30-company Philippine stock index (PHISIX).

2011 2010
% Variance on Effect an % Varinhce on Effect on
Equity Price ~ ~ Equity Equity Price Equity
[norease +2,706% P60,588,021 +3.690% - - . ) B63,404,765
Decrease -2.706% (60,588,021) -3.690% {163,404,765)

Capital emens

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard the entity's ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to meintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital. ‘ : 4

The Group manages its capital struoture and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
economic conditions, To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issus new shares,

~ The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity ratio. This ratic is calcl.zlated
as Interest-bearing long-term debts over total equity, excluding cumulative net unrealized gain or
loss on change in fair value of AFS Investments.

Tﬁe debt-to-equity ratio as of December 31,2011 and 2010 are as follows: -

2011 2010

Total debt (a) : : 2 P
Total equity (b) - 4,972,618,801  4,445,159,300

~ Debt<to-equity ratio (a/'b) 0,00:1.00 0.00:1.00

R
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying values of financial assets and fiabilitios as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 under

each category are shawn below:

2011

2010
Carrying . Carrying
- Amount fair Value Amount Falr Value
Loans and receivables: ’ '
Cash and cesh equlvalonts P540411,971  B540,411,971  B778,376,824  R778,376,824
Receivebles 824,397,007  BIL9BLST¢ 409,798,441 409,798,441
Deposits {ineluded under ‘Other
noncusrent assels”) 18,656,517 18,656,517 15,461,812 15,461,812
. 1,383,465,4%5 _ 1,381,051,058  1,203,637,077  1,203,637,077
AFS investments:
Quoted: o
Government boads 1,535,603,049  1,535,603,049  1,007,897,993  1,007,897,953
Equity securities 1,270,721,653  1,270,721,653  1,145,316,846  1,145,316,846
Corporale bonds " 55,568,743 55,568,743 60,815,495 60,815,495
Unquoted: .
Corporate bonds 292,950,592 292,950,592 787,711,662 787,717,662
Equity socuritles - - 207,296 207,296
Mutaal fund 1,143,801,986  1,143,301,986 889,871,215 889,871,215
Golf sharcs 570,000 570000 570,600 570.000
_ 4,209,216,023  4,209,216,023  3,892.396,507 _ 3,892,396,507
Financial assets at FVPL: . -
Designated at FVPL 86,827,840 86,927,540 89,647,319 89,647,319
Derlvative pssels 111,982 111,952 23,214,110 25,214,110
86,939,792 86,939,792 114,861,429 114,861,429
P5,769,621,310 B5,767,206,873 521,895,013 P5,210,895.013
2011 : 2010
Carrying Carrying
AoHRE Fair Value Amount Fuir Valuo
Qther finanéial llabilities:
Accounts payable and other current
Habilities* 262,542,430  B262,542,430  R199,353,810  P199,353,810
Long-term debt (Ineluding current .
partion) — — 2,925,490 2,764,107
P2G2,542,430  PB262,542430 R202,279,300 P202,117,917

¥ Excluding other current flabiities representing stotulory papables and other Rabilitles to varlous

governunent agencles.

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Receivables (excluding Unquoted debt seciwities), and Accounts
Payable and Other Current Liabilities _
The carrying amounts approximate fair values due to the short-term nature of these fi nancxal

instruments.

AFS Investments and Financial Assets at FVEL

Fair values are generally based on quoted market prices, For the Group’s equity and fixed income
investments, fair values are determined based on quoted shares in the PSE and fixing rates of the
Phlllppme Dealing Exchange, respectwely. If market prices are not readlly available or if the
securities are not traded in an active market, fair values are estimated using either values obtained
from mdependent parties offering pricing services or adjusted quoted inarket prices of comparable *
investments or using the discounted cash flow methodology. .

AT
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Unguoled debi securities (included under loans and recesvables)

Fair values of unquoted debt securities are estimated using the discounted cash flow methodology
using the. effective interest rate; ‘ '

Derivative instruments (inchided under FVPL)

Fair values are estimated based on quoted market prices provided by independent parties or
accepted valuation models (elther based on discounted cash flow techniques or option prioing
models, as applicable). : ‘

ﬁong-term Delt .
The fair value was obtained by discounting the financlal instruments® expected cash flows using
the prevailing credit-adjusted MART 1 rates as of December 31, 2010.

Fair valye hierarchy .
The Group uses the following hierarchy in determining and disolosing the fair value of financlal
instruments measured at fair value: ' '

Level 1; quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for Identified assets or liabilities.

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair -
value are observable, either directly or indirectly, - ‘

Level 3: teohniques which use inputs which' have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that
are not based on observable market data,

The fair value hierarchy as Aof- December 31, 2011 and 2010 follows:

2011
Level | Leyel 2 Total
Available-for-sale investments (Note 10)
Quoted: :
Govermment honds R1,535,603,049 P~ P1,535,003,045
Equity securities 1,270,721,653 1,270,721,653
Corporate bonds 55,508,743 - 55,508,743 .
Mutual fond 1,143,801,986 - ' 1,143,801,986
Unquoted; '
' Corporate bonds - 292,950,592 292,950,592
Financial assets at FYPL (Nate 9) . o
Corporate bonds - : 86,627,840 - 86,627,840
Nondeliverable forward _ - 111,952 111,952
! P4.092,323,271 B283,062,544  P4,385385,815
Financlal liabilities at FYPL (Note 15)
Derivative liabilitics [ R777,820 777,820

Nlll\lﬂlﬂllﬂlllllllllllllll\!lﬂﬂ|l|lIIII?lEHIﬂI[HHJ]



35 .

2010 -
Level 1 Level 2 Total
Available-for-sale investments (Note 10) ' . ‘
Quoted: ' : .
Government bonds P1,007,897,993 B- P[,007,897,993
Comporate bonds , 60,815,495 - 60,815,495
Equity securities 1,145,316,846 — 1,145,316,846
Mutual fund 389,871,215 - 889,871,215
Unquoted: :
: Corporate bonds - 787,717,662 787,717,662
Fihanclal assets at FYPL (Note 9) . -
Corporate bonds 89,647,319 — 89,647,319
Nondeliverable forward - 25214110 25,214,110

P3,193,548,868 _ P812,931,772 P4,006,480,640

Financial liabilities nt FVPL (Note 15) _
Berivative [iabilitics ) P £20,670,939 P20,670,939

There were no transfers made among the three levels In the fair value hlerarchy in 2011 and 2010,

. ‘Segment Information

For managemetit purposes, the’ Group is organized into major operating business segments as
follows:

a. Investment holdings
The investment holdings segment deals in the acquisition and sale of financial instruiments.

b, Remittance services
The remittance services segment provides the infrastructure and services as the largest direct
agent for money transfer of Overseas Filipino Workers, Beyond the remittance business, this
segment facilitates the fulfillment of e-commerce transactions and serves as a payment .
p!atform for any Business to Business (B2B) or Business to Customers (B2C) initiative.

c. Intemet services
The internet services segment is cngaged in the business of internet online-related products
relating to a database search engine. It also provides enterprise and consurer solunons via
products of the internet.

d, Mutual fund management
This segment deals in the management of mutual finds.

The Group mainly operates and gén‘erates revenue {n the Philippines. Thus, geographical 5egment
information is not presented,

A R
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The Group has no significant customers which contribute 10,00% or more of the consolidated

revenues. The following table presents eamin

presented in accordance with PFRS;

gs and other information of operating segments

2011
Investnent  Remlitance Interncl  Muntual Fumel .
Heldinga Survices Services Menngement | Ellminatlons Consolitinled
Enruings Informatlon | I
Revenucs 472,667,565 PAG2,058,902 R4SB52448  B72,160,928 (R231,221) R1,052,517,622
Equity in nct loss of an
- . ussocietefjoint venlure - - 1,149,083 - - 1,149,083
Depreciation and amartizatlon 4,199,264 16,798,411 1,501,038 353,358 - 12,852,071
Interest expense and bank chorges ' 59,758 2,686,185 4,866 9,608 (231,221} 2,569,793
Provision for hicome tax (4,401,140) 24,154,778 217,164 11,341,824 - 31,313,226
et income (foss) atifbutabls to )

cqulty holders of the Parent : .

Company 456394862 36,724,102 7656366 13,930,207 . - 514,708,957
Olher Informaion - .

Scgment assets 5194.243,526 682,530,537 261,433,225 181,977,154  (478,244471)  5,042,984,753
Segment labilitics 62,264,663 247,613,606 25,781,528 18,860,586 (45,958,692) 308,572,001
Costs to sequtfre propeity ' _ '

and cquigment 0,250 15,016,795 817,6BG 24,920 - 15,865,651
Net oash fiows provided ' .

by (used in): : : )

Qperating ectivitics 73459785  (43,155,610)  28,525544 41,946,936 21,647,090 123,223,745

Investing activitics (433,929,191)  {9,399,635) (1B,478,538) 59,875,080 . 46,157,721 (355,674,564)

Financing aetlvides - 13,157,634 - - (18,552,917) *(5,495,183)

2010 [
Investment Remiltance Internct  Mulual Fund
" Holdings Sorvices Serviees  Menagoment Ellminations i Consolldated
Earnings faformntlon '
Rovonues P1,053,873,085 PA32,487965 RI0406,652 43,623,335 (R389,725,138) RI,170,665.89%
Equity It net Joss of an
associate/joint venlure - - 3,104,763 - - 3,104,763
Depreciotion und amartizstion 5,660,827 22,310,208 3,595,102 960,495 - 32,526,632
Intevest expense and bank charges 147,982 4,626,125 11,931 - {3,053,018) 1,733,020
Provision for invome tax . 10,949,612 24,785,234 244,141 8,709,298 - 44,698,305
Net income (fosg) atiributetle to

equity holders of the Parent -

Compeny 649,328,354 66,853,655 (15904,033) 16,343,284 (2974,582) 713,647,678
Qther informatlgn - .7
Segment assots 4,730,258378 627,073,377 259,341,198 87,098,185 (402,836,563) 5,30{,534,575
Segment linbilites 205,131,818 228,780,252 31,222,737 3,774,195 32,711,321y 436,197,701
Cosls {o aequire property

and equipment 518,681 . 13471472 36,427 101,523 - 14,148,103
Net cash flows provided . :

by (uged in};

Qpetating acilvities 401,386,315 209,330,004 12,542,608 16,414,743  (332,814,636)  307.359,124

Investing activitics 2)6,925,040 (23,731,000  {11,954,715) 1,055,269 {65,031,988) 137,262,507

- Finaneing nctivitics (153,372,002) (180,632,117} - - 375,599,999 (158,404,120}

TG
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2009
Invostment  Romiitaneo nfemet  Mutupl Fund o
- Holdinps Services Services  Mamngement  Eliminations  Consolidated
Earnings information ' . ;
Revenues PIJ7255,868 157225962  P49.319,657 R3S, 130,390 (P37,736,284) P841,695,593
Equity ln net income of an
associatejoint vonturo - . - 1,935,156 - - 1,935,156
Dreprecintion wnd emostization 6,403,234 24,181,930 6,596,007 1,395,014 ~, 40,576,185
Interest oxpense and bank chages 38911 9,844,758 43,351 1,700 (6,367,256) 3,561,964
Provision for Income trx 5,009,824 23,628,336 295,853 5,682,289 ' ~ 34616264
Mel income (loss) ritributabie to ' '
equity lolders of the Paren
Company 320,861,544 56,626,177 (6,940,305) 7.262,546 {25,378,990) 361,430,972
Other Informatton ‘ ) )
Segment assels 3981572090 917,664,556  275011,507 69,003,480 (751,961,947) 4,491,201,690
Segment Tinbilitics 146,120,009 596,317,381 31,436,005 1,549,976  (409,526,988) 365,905,383
Coats 10 acquire properly .
rod cquipment 017,894 29,423,920 2,751,451 1,638,509 - M. 131,714
Net cash flows provided ‘
by (used in); )
Operuting netivitics . 495952642 148,183,422 (818370)  18983,996 (3B1,375,579) 280,926,111
TInvesting activilles (433,078,129) - (29,186,223} (3,401,755} B,941,801 386,500,000 (120,224,306)
Finanecing activities (35,048,836)  (46,396,823) Co— - (25,500,000  (5,124,421)  (§12,070,08M
7. Cash and Cagh Equivalents
This account consists oft
, 2011 2010
Cash on hand r181,274,301 £226,503,307
Cash in banks. 71,438,116 45,271,649
Short-term investments | ' 287,699,554 306,601,368

F540,411,971  R778,376,824

Cash in banks earn intorest at the prevailing bank deposit rates. Short-term investments are made
for varying periods of one to three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the prevailing short-term investment rates, Interest income from cash
and cash equivalents amounted to ®11.53 million, 13,85 mllllon and P14.93 million in 2011,
2010 and 2009, respestively (Note 18)..

VAL
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8. Leans and recelvables

This account consists of;

2011 2010

Due from:
Western Unlon - , P347,017,898, £219,913,834
Broker 48,191,151\% 57,894,336
Sub-agents : 15,285,589 17,047,454
Afﬁ.llates . 9,257,840 Y 11,396,487
. ~Business partners 3,195,168 16,921,672
Unquoted debt secarities 296,979,500, -
_Trade receivable : 68,175,146 N 7,627,663
etelvable from advertising and web , :
development services - 33,668,119 50,540,021
Accrued interest 34,057,391 « 19,158,142
Advances to officers and employees 2,737,208 . 1,564,589
Miscellaneous assets - 28,002,056
Others 15,692,840 23,306,298
. ' "874,357,850 453,372,552
Less allowance for credit losses 49,960,843 43,574,111

824,397,007 409,798,441

*Miscellangous assets represent marginal deposits refundable afier sellfement of non defivarabie forwards

Due from Western Union represents pay-outs from e-Business cbvering fund transfers and
remittance services, which were not yet reimbursed by Westerr Unlon as of reporting date,

Due from sub-agents arising from money transfer services are shown net of related payables to the
same sub-agent. Sub-agent accounts showing net payable balances are shown under ‘Accounts
payable and other current labilities® in the consolidated statements of financial position

{Note 15).

Unquoted debt securities represent investment in a credit linked note. This credit linked note is a
financial instrument structured with an embedded credit default swap in relation to the linked
obligation, a global bond issued by SM Investment Corporation to ING Bank. Aside from the
credit default swap, the note contains an embedded foreign exchange option whereln the Issuer has

- the option to pay interest in US dollar or in an equivalent amount of Philippine peso calculated at
the forelgn exchange period end rate. "The Group bifurcated the embedded derivatives as of

- December 31, 2011 pertaining to these unquoted debt securities. The value of the bifurcated
embedded derivatives is not significant,

Advances to officers and employees are either subject for liquidation or collectible through salary
deduction, '

The terms and ccnditibns of receivables are as follows:

* Due from sub-agents, business partners and Westorn Union are noninterest bearing and
generzlly have one to four days’ term.

»  Due from brokers pertains to the amount collectible for purchase a‘nd sale of quoted equity
securities. This fs noninterest-bearing and is ususlly collectible within three days.
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Receivables from advertising and web development services are normally collectible within
two to four months sfter completion of the contract while other receivables are due and
demandable upon completion of the transaction,

Accrued interests are generally collectible on a 180-day term.

Due from affiliates represents short-term noninterest bearin

requirements,

Other receivables such as business partners and prudential guarante

nature,

The moverments of allowance for credit losses are as follows:

£ advauces for working capital

as are all short-term in

2011
Rocelvable
fram
' adverilsing .
and web  Advances to Trade
: development officers and . and othay
_servlces employees recelvales Total
Balance at beglnning of year 126,692,736 P321,048  R16,560,327 P43 574,101 °
Provision far eredlt fogses (Note 20) 2,818,573 974,876 4,765,396 8,558,843
Recavery of allowance - - (2,172,213) (2,172,113
Balance at end of year -R29,511,309 R1,295924  P19,153,610  B49,960,843
gpcci fic nssessment B29,511,309 R1,295924 P19,153,610  PR49,960,843
Gross amount-of loans and vecelvables
individually impsired 29,511,309 R1,295924 RI19,153,610 R49.9G60,843
2010
Reeeivable
from
advertising
and web Advances 1o Trade
developmant officers and and other
: services “employees recoivables * Talgl
Balance &t beginning of year £12,593,164 321,048  BI16,560,327  P29,474,539
Provision for credit lossos (Note 20) 16,519,143 - - 16,519,143
Accounts written-off (2,419.571) - - (2,419,571)
Balance at end of year | ¥16,692,736 Bi21,048 PRL6,5360,327  P43,574,111
Specific apsosyment - 126,692,736 . 321,048 16,560,127 P43,574,111
Gross amount of loans and receivables :
individually impaired 132,699,747 . P321,048  PR17,385,271  PB50,409,066
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5. Financial Assets at FVPL

This account consists of investments in:

2011 2016

Designated at FVPL
Corporate bonds ' PB6,627,840 789,647,319
Derivative asset :
Currency forward contracts ‘ 111,952 25,214,110
' $86,739,792 £114,361,429 -
Corporate bonds

This account pertains to the Group’s investment in a puttable bond exercisable on January 19,
2011 with a coupon rate of 8% amounting to US$1.90 million due on January 18, 2013. The
Group did not exercise the right to sell the bonds back to the issuer at 100% of their principal
amount on January 19, 2011. This-investment is designated at FVPL since this is managed on a
total return basis.

Currency Forward Coniracis

This account periains to forward contracts entered into by the Group to economically hedge the
forelgn exchange risk on the aforementioned corporate bonds and to engage in onshore-offshore
arbitrage transaotions, The Group’s oulstanding currency forward contract used in hedging has an
aggregate notional amount of US$5.40 million and US$7.70 million as of December 31, 2011, and
2010, respectively, The weighted average forward contract rate Is P43.79 to US$I and #4587 to
US§1 on February 28, 2012 and April 25, 201 I, respectively, The Group is in a sell US dollar
position,

In 2010, the Group entered into forward contracts ugsed in arbitrage with aggregate notional
amount of $90.00 million for both buy and sell USD positions as of December 31, 2010, The
weighted average forward contract rate for both buy and sell positions is £43.64 to US$1 and
£43.70 to US$1, respestively, to be valued on Apsil 25, 2011, \

The positive and negative fair values of the. currency forwards as of December 31, 2010 are
classified as *Derivative asset’ under ‘Financial assets at FVPL' and *Derivative lmbi!lty under
*Accounts payable and other current liabilities’, respeotively, in the 2011 and 2010 consolidated
statements of financial position. ,

In 2011, the Group recoguized mark-to-market loss front its financial instruments held at FYPL
amounting to 83.52 million while mark-to~-market gain amountmg to £2.59 million and
P5.56 million in 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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The movements in the Group's derivative instruments are as follgws:

Derivative Assels _ 2011 2010
Balance at beginning of year 225,214,110 R15,555,176
Fair value changes 162,753,443 48,205,552
Settled transactions (87,855,601) . (38,546,618)
Balance atend of year ‘ 2111,952 $25,214,110
Derivative Liabilities .

Balance at beginning of year 220,670,939 PL1,920,000
Fair value changes 49,210,705 30,596,939
Settled transactions (69,103,824) {11,846,000)
Balance at end of year (Note lS) 771,820 £20,670,939

!

10. Available-For-Sale Investments

This account consists of investments in:

2011 2010

Quoted: , ' :

- Government honds R1,538,603,049 $1,007,897,993
Equity securities 1,270,721,653 1,145,316,846
Corporate bonds 55,568,743 60,815,495

Unquoted: : '
Corporate bonds ) p 292,950,592 787,717,662
Equity securities 207,296 207,296

Mutual funds 1,143,801,986 889,871,215

Golf shares 570,000 570,000

4,299,423,319  3,892,396,507

Allowancs for impairment losses (207,296) -

£4,299,216,023 13,892,996,507

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, governmcnt Bonds consist of Philippine domestic sovereign
bonds and USD—danominated bonds issued by Republic of the Philippines and Republic of
Indonesia, respectively. Corporate bonds are USD-denominated bonds.

Quoted equity securities pertaln to investments in stocks of companies listed in Philippine Stock
Exchange.

Unquoted equity security represents long-tetm investment of the Company and is not actively
traded in the market, In 2011, the Group assessed these unquoted equity securities to be impaired
and charged $0.21 million under ‘Provision for credit and impairment losses’. No impairment
loss was recognized in 2010,

Unquoted debt securitles represent long-term investments of the Group in bond issued by private

companles that are not actively traded in the tnarket, The Group does not intend to sell these
securities in the near future. ‘
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Income recognized from the sale of AFS investments are as follows:

2011 2010 2009

Equity Securitics B2138,808,123 P438,929,839 £135,951,113

Bonds - 84,935,046 65,119,990 5,959,000
Mutual Funds 29,406,881 —

: R333,150,050 P504,049,829 PI41,910,113

In 2011 and 2010, pesu-denommated AFS investments bear nominal annual interest rates ranging

from 5.88% to 9.13%,

In 2011 and 2010, foreign cunency-denomiﬁated AFS investments bear nominal annual interest
rates ranging 5.50% to 7.50% and from' 5,25% to 7.50%, respectively,

. Movement of ctmulative net unrealized gait on changes in the fair values of AFS investinents,
which are presanted as soparate component of equity in the consolidated statements of finanmal

position and in the consolidated statements of changes in equity, are as follows:

‘ ‘ 2011 2010
Balance at beginiing of year R587,388,710 R352,606,618
Fair value changoes taken to equity 305,149,531 738,831,921
Amounts taken to profit or loss (Note 18) (333,150,050)  (504,049,829)
Net change in fair value for the year (28,000,519 234,782,092
Balance at end of vear 559,388,191 587,388,710
Tax effect (Note 25) (1,003,292)  (167,211,136)
Balance at end of year, net of tax 1558,384,899  P420,177,574
\
11, Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets -
This account consists of;
2011 2010
Prepaid expenses 26,500,670 14,119,604
[nput value-added tax 6,733,312 4,567,528
Creditable withholding tax. 3,335,870 2,283,172
Others : 2,165,200 ' =
18,735,052 20,970,304
Less allowance for Impairment losses 4,835,826 -
' R13,899,226 £20,970,304
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12. Investment in an Associate and a Joint Venture

Details of investment in an associate and a jolnt venture follow;

Ownership 2011 2010

‘Acquisition costs:
Associate - : .
FAUSI 25% £300,000 £300,000
Joint Venture . ' ,
Media Contacts, Inc, S0 4,836,800 4,836,800
. ' 5,136,800 5,136,800
Allowance for impairment . (180,772} . {168,761)

4,956,028 4,968,039

Accumulated equity in net earnings

(losses): \

Balance at beginning of year (1,147,331 1,957,432
Bquity in net earnings (Josses) 1,149,083 (3,104,763
Balance at f:nd of year : 1,752 (1,147,331)

B4.957,780 3,820,708

The movements in the allowance for impairment {n the investment in FAUSI are as follows;

‘ 2011 2010
Balance at beginning of year £168,761 P£149,386
Provision for impaliment logses 12,011 19,375
Balance at end of year ' R180,772 - R168,761

Investment In an associate represents ¢-Business” 25.0% ownership in FAUSI FAUSI was
incorporated in the Philipplnes on August 10, 2004 and started commercial operations on

April 4, 2005, FAUSI is engaged in electronic commerce and trading, through the internet-based
facilities and other on-line transactions, including but not limited to the development and
marketing of goods and services and electrenic value or debit cards,

On February 4, 2008, the BOD has decided to stop and wind down FAUSI's operations effective
March 2008. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the BOD has not yet made any decision as to
the future operations or existence of FAUSI. These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about FAUSI's ability to continue as a going
concern,

On October 27, 2008, the Group entered into a joint venture contract with Media Contacts, 5.A, to
create of & new company named Media Contaots, Inc. The purpose of this joint venture is to
provide marketing, sales and promotional consultancy services, iticluding the conceptualization,
preparation, creation, supply and delivery of marketing, sales and promotional plans and support
services provided that the Group shall not engage in the buying of media time or space for its”
clients. The initlal investment of the Group comprised of share holdings in the joint venture which
amounted to B4.8 million while' Media Contacts, S.A.'s subscribed and paid for shares of the same
antount.
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On April 17, 2009, the Group entered into a joint venture contract with Havoe Digital, Inc, to
create a new company nared Tarantula Digitel Media, Inc. The purpose of this joint venture is to
engage in the business of media planning and buying online advertising and related services
including search engine marketing. The initial investment of the Group comprised of cash which
amounted to B2.0 million while Havoe Digitel, Inc.'s initial jnvestment comprised of cash of the
s{amse é(r:nount. As of December 31, 2009, Tarantula Digitel Media, Inc. remains to be registered in
the '

Qn August 13, 2010, Tarantula Digitel Media, Inc. returned to the Group its initial cash
investment of £2.0 milllon since the joint venture contract has been terminated,

Summagg. of Financial Juformation of FAUS!:

2011 2010
Total assats R858,004 B8361,852
Total liabilities 393,104 336,898
Net loss 60,054 75,405
'FAUSI has nil revenues in 2011 and 2010,
Summary of Financial Information of Media Contacts, Inc,
2011 : 2010
Total assets ‘ B35,082,687 £20,716,562
Total liabilities 20,862,286 . 13,337,624
Revenues 29,306,663 © 9,765,068
Net income (loss) - 6,841,463 (52,316)
13. Property and Equipment
This account consists oft
2011
Server
Puraluere Offlee  ‘Tramsportalion Omce and Nerwork Leaschold
apd Mxtures  Fprprovementy Equipment  Condomlnimn VE:guIEmml mprovements Taral
g:ll:rm of begluntng of yesr * FIGISI0  RIOAINIOL  RILAN0836  EMYIE6650 FEAI4SIS  BIISONNA2E  PIIN,1D7,640
Additlons 5261,595 - 203 - 701973 7,004,780 15,865,681
Dhposalsireclouificstion . (1303,188) - §4,833,535) - - (ZAUI06) (9,061,891}
Dalanice al end ofyer 130,102,760 10.81%,70% £9,194,530 37,756,680 PA691 £30,189,710 7 376912308
Aecursulated Bepresiallon
and Amiortlzation )
Babunce 8t btginalng of year 99,053,973 9,878,899 13,000,503 TLIVSIET | A9LHHS FRLIBTSS LA LPAT
Drepreclutivn and amgriization {Noles §9 .
mdilﬂl ' l::gg.:;:L m.”i (:.g.o;ss) I.MU.M_J_ x.mo.ssz 5’::3":;; ?{Thg?c:.m
Dalants n} ead alyear u‘_q.z‘;“'s;;s; BARN €10 12261507 [ [N 1] c“é‘m b1 ""olﬁ:"‘
Mt Dook Value P9 24808 FL1630 P6,513,99) PL3,I61,1E0 _ REOL3SH £3,760.841 FA4931,659
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2010
. - Server
Furnfiure Offlca  Transperiatign - Qffen sad Netwark Leaschold
o and Flxlures [mpravementa Eqiipment Crondamlnlnm _E_:‘r'.llgmzm Improvementa Tot=l
01 . .
Bafwnes a1 begiuning of year #113,923,960 F10,5t7,707 P2RY25,451 P37,156,6%0 FBS20,867  PI23,S28 4 BAITN69204
Addidons ' 12,015,119 - 1540662 - 99,670 2,388,652 H,I48,193
Dlspotals! reclaysificaslon {2.734,118) - 0,169470) - {85,402) - (11,2095
Halanee 21 end of year 116,184,201 10,517,701 21700438 TL156,500 8,314,935 125,913,428 320,197,680
Accumulated Depreciation .
D r‘ . Am;ﬂ}nltn" r 89,420,18 |
Alites nt b egingl L
Dc‘pruiulnnfn 3 ;?r?a:l lf:!'l-;“ ola 55 120,181 . BULT 7,890,152 , 1500454 §307,195 115,571,537 4525005
asd 20) 16,834, 501¢ 814,173 4,542,303 2193413 ?isbsz 6A16.317 31,866,694
Dispowls (1,250,805 - LAME7) = Q02 ~ (3,713,148}
Dalauce at eod ol yexr 99,083,673 - T RIEHTY "'Jn.ﬁ,m 17,193,367 FA AT 171987004 __ da8,409,471
Het Book Valwg Riz 10418 P518,52) 8,199,133 P20.441,013 P1,342,1%0 P3935,510 PS$1,698,209
14. Other Noncuirent Assets
This account congists of:
' 2011 2010
Réceivable from sals of investments 196,592,600 P06,592,600
Deposits 18,456,517 15,461,812
Software and website costs 3,261,053 4,041,026
Qthers 795,384 252,144
119,108,554 116,347,582
Less allowance for credit and impairment losses 96,815,015 96,592,600
‘ 122,290,539 £19,754,982

The Parent Company’s investment in Lucky Star (2 company incorporated to operate off- front on
betting stations In the Philippines), was sold In 2001 since management believes that there is a
significant uncertainty with respect to the recovesy of this investment due to the Supreme Court

" decision o shut down Jai-alai operations, -

The related receivable from the sale, which is collectible over ten years at a certain pre-agreed
installment terms until 2012, has bgen fully provided with atlowance for credit losses. As
ocollections are actually received, an equivalent amount of the allowance will be reversed and

i

credited to income.

The movement of software and website costs is as follows:

2011 2010

Cost ,
Balance at beginning of year 10,986,779 B11,640,914
Additions ‘ - 489,922
Disposals - (1,144,057)
Balance at end of year 10,986,779 10,986,779
Accumulated Amortization
Balance at beginning of year 6,945,753 6,287,765
Amortization (Note 19 and 20) 779,973 657,988
Balance at end of year 7,725,726 6,945,753

. ’3,201,053 24,041,026

AR AR
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The movement in the allowance for credit and impairment losses follows:

2011 . 2010
Balance at beginning of year 194,592,600 P96,592,600
Provision for impairment losses 222415 -
Balance at end of year 906,815,015 R96,592,600
15. Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities
This aceount consists of: '
2011 2010
Due to sub-agents and brokers " R135,273.271 199,691,906
Accrued expenses 69,935,443 Q 70,213,338
Trade . 56,555,896 N 8,777,627
Qutput value added tax 6,804,155 6,195,569
Derivative liability (Note 9) 771,820 20,670,939
Due to home office/branch - 153,058
“Accrued interest - 6,933
Others 19,118,447 9,432,178
#288,465,032 B215,142,448 -

Terms and cqnditions and nature 6{" financial labilities follow:

Due to sub-agents and brolcers are nonin

on a two to four days’ term.

terest-bearing and are normally seitled

Acerued expenses consists of acoruals for profit sharing costs, VL/SL conversion, insurance,
security services, cash delivery services, utilities, media buys and others

Trade payables include amount due to counterparty for purchase of government bonds.

Trade payables, accrued expenses and other payables are noninterest-bearing and are normaily
settled on a 60 to 90-day term. '

»  Others include dus to intercompany, withholding taxes payable, documentary stamp tax
payable, merchant deposits, sundry credits and others,

16

-

Loﬁg—tcrm Debt

E-Business availed of U.S. dollar denominated loans from Western Union Network (Canada)
Limited (Western Union ~ Canada) amounting to US$160,000 in 2005 and another US$160,000 in
2006 and in 2008. The loans ate payable in 30 equal monthly instaliments commencing from the
first repayment date and bear an arinual interest rate equal to LIBOR plus 1.00%.

Qutstanding balance as of December 31, 2010 amounted to $66,731 or B2.93 million. The loan is
secured by the Company’s fund in the Settiement Account or from funds owed by Western
Union - Canada amounting to £219.9 million as of December 31, 2010. The loan was fully settled

in 2011,

TR
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Interest sxpense related to these lozns amounted to 80,07 million, £0.30 million and 20.60 miiIion
in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively,

17

Asset Retirement Qbligation

The Group established provision to recognize estimated liability for dismanatlement of its leasehold
improvements. Summary of the provisions follows: ' '

2011 2010
Balance at beginning of year 24,145,582 -P3,837,665
Reversal (4,145,582) -
Accretion expense - 307,957
Balance at end of year ) : , - 84,145,582

The actual decommissioning oost could vary substantially from the above estimate because of new
regulatory requirements, changes in technology, increased cost of labor, materials, and equipment
and/or actual time required to complete all decommissioning activities.

18,

Revetnue
This account consists oft
2011 2010 2009
Commission income £334,087,049  R350,326,588  P351,245,290
Trading gains (Nofe 10) 333,150,050 504,049,829 141,910,113
Interest income from: )
AFS investments ‘ 103,282,875 93,852,163 79,283,201
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 7) . 11,535,280 13,850,853 14,927,210
Financial assets at FVPL 6,583,120 6,621,675 17,764,766
Unquoted debt secutitics 4,075,852 - ~-
Others - — 846,502
Share in forelgn exchange differential . §5,573,235 75,767,180 73,882,915
Management fee and setvice income 65,414,284 43,623,335 32,631,160
Money changing pain 36,485,920 59,577,996 71,273,614
Dividend income 35,610,25Y 45,775,827 61,716,274
Advertising, wel development . !
and internet service 33,851,638 30,406,652 37,940,925
Income from business partners 2,868,068 2,333,776 -

B1,053,517,622 P1,226,185,874  F883,421,970

| !Illﬂlll?NI!Ilﬂlllﬂilllﬂllﬂl|lﬁ|lllﬂlllllﬂ‘l|lﬂ||||[lll



-48 -

19, Cﬁst of Services and Sales

This account consists of:

2011 ' 2010 2009
Personnel costs RIGO50,227  P32,088,587  P42,159,353
Service connection fee 1,127,748 2,480,287 3,314,264
Subscription 948,284 © 81,000 273,148
Deprociation and amortization (Notes 13 and
1) 884,273 2,712,181 3,930,219
Advertising and web development 669,146 2,311,568 . 2,099,316
Provision for retirement costs (Note 23) - 400,933 (94,342) 234,238
Others 2,250,348 - 1,769,866 1,299,850
F23,230,950 : PAZ,449,147 P53 310,388
20. General and Administrative Expenses
This aceount consists of:
2011 2010 2009
Personnel costs R154,199,889 PR127,582,788  P122,394,674
Rent and utilities (Nate 22} 77,960,333 74,919,875 75,174,615
Qutside services 64,150,913 63,885,951 68,302,998
Commission expense 61,879,343 55,519,975 41,726,377
Professional fees ' 22,063,160 12,979,469 13,491,942
Pepraciation and amortization (Notes 3 and L
14) ’ ' 21,967,798 29,814,451 36,645,966
Transporiation and communication 15,876,117 29,530,532 30,562,911
Office supplies 14,006,383 18,912,791 20,478,640
Provision for credit and Impairment losses
(Notes 8, 10, 11, 12 and 14) 13,836,393 16,519,143 7,484,931
Advertising : 12,252,274 5,747,651 8,645,213
Taxes and licenses 11,811,586 9,543,786 10,162,056
Entertainment, amusement and recreation 3,631,565 4,029,316 5,632,842
Repairs and maini¢nance 3,010,177 3,391,826 5,092,834
Insurance 2,970,288 5,430,448 1,679,737
Membership fees and other dueg 1,414,709 - 404,060 235,225
Provision for retirement costs (Note 23) (180,213) (758,380) (1,551,806)
QOthers | : 7,701,706 8,924,861 5,833,357
o ' P488,549,521  P466,378,537 _ P457,992,512
21; Other Income
This account consists of?
2011 2010 2009
Foreign exchange gain 117,332,026 £46,275,786 R17,897,293
Gain from sale of property and equipment 21,070 302,946 345,686
Miscellaneous income (loss) 7,990,524 (374,542) 5,512,453
B25,344,520 46,200,160 23,755,434

HﬁﬂllllﬂlﬂlIIEIIIIlIlNIIIWHIHNIﬂ!lH[HIIEHII
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Miscellaneous income is mainly comprised of recoveries of allowance for credit losses. In 2011,
this includes the P4.15 million reversal of asset retirement obligation (see Note 17).

22,

Lease Commitments

e~Busmass leases its office space and the space occupled by its bmnohes with varying periods of
up to 15 years and, renewable on such terms and vonditions which shall be mutually acceptable by
e-Business and the lessors. Rent expense charged to operations amounted to £57.47 million,
£52.08 million and #56.6 million in 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.

The minimum annual rental commitments under the aforementioned lease agreements are as
follows;

Year 2001 2010

Within one year - . 38,612,768 $30932,773
After one year but not more than five years 43,979,380 126,882,926

After five years ' - 6,328,849

T
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Amounts for the current and previous years follow:

2011 2010 , 2009

Fair value of plan assets ’ P11,506,635 P9,633,031 B8,919,473
Present value of defined benefit obligation . 7,263,406 5,036,264 | 3,642,534
Funded status; 4,303,229 4,596,767 5,276,939
Experience adjustments on plan labilities ' 1,008,028 - ‘ 428,577

Changes in the fair value of e-Business plan assets are as follows:

2011 2010

Balance at beginning of year £9,633,031 B8,919,473
Benefits paid - -
Actuarial gain 1,451,952 C-
Expected réturn on plan assets 481,652 , 713,558
Balance at end of year . _ P11,506,635 £9,633,031
Actual retum on plan assets R451,652 R713,558

The major categorles of e-Business plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan asscts
are a5 follows: : ' '

o 2011 : 2010
Investment in common trust fund 51.79% 41.81%
Cash/Deposits : - 40,46% - 0.75%
Investment in government scourities . 195% 5740%

The principal assumptions used in determining retirement benefits obligation are as follows:

2013 2010 _pa09
Pareat Parent Paront
Company _ Yeheyl o-Business Company  Yohoy! c-Business Company Yrhoyl e-Business
Dispount mta : S547% 620% 6,10% 16.47% 9.00% 8.50% 16.47% 15,05% 18.75%
Future snlory inerease 4.00% 4.00% 400%  10.00% 400%  4.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
Expoated mie of retwn on plun asycls - - 500% - - B.00% - - 3.00%
Average remaining service pevlod qymrs  dymra  Byearn  Gyoas dyears  Gyomis 8 ycem 5 yeurs 8 years

The expected rate of return on plan assets represents the expected long-term rate of return on the
retirement fund investment.

T
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24. Equity
Capital Stock - Bl par value of common shares

The details of this account are shown below:

2013 2010 , 2009

Shinrey Amount Shares Aznount Shigres Amount
Authorized shares 2.7.5!].(}{][],000 R2,250,000,000 2,250,000,000  #2250,000,000  1,900,000,000 11,900,600,000
.lssmed shareg ‘ :
Balance at beginning of year  2,235,390,633 2.,235,390,633 2,235,390,633  2,235,390,63) 1,788,312,570 1,788,312,570
Stock dividends - - - ~ 447078063 447,078 063
Balance at end of year 2,235390,633  2,235.390,633  2235390,633 2235390633  2,235,390,633  2,235.390,633
Tigasury slock . (134,895,900) ° (188,520,838)  (134,855.500)  (188,520,838)  (26,863.750) {35,148,336)

On various dates in 2009, the Parent Company reacquired a total of 26.9 million shares for an
aggrepate price of #35.] million. The aggregate amounts are presented in the conselidated
financial statements as *Treasury stock’. In addition, on varions dates in 2010, the Parent
Company reacquired & total of 134.9 million shares for an aggregate price of £153.4 million,

The track record of the Parent Company’s registration of securities in compliance with the

Securities Regulation Code Rule 68 Annex 68-D I{I) follows:

8. Authorized Shares

. Authorized Number

Date of SEC Approval - , Type of Shares of Shares
January 12, 2009 Common 2,250,000,000
1,900,000,000

Qctober 20, 1992 _ - Common
b. Stock Dividends |

Date of SEC Approval _ ‘ Percentage

January 12, 2009 : 25%
c. Number of Shareholders

Year Fnd Number of shareholders

December 31, 2011 085

December 31, 2010 ‘ 709

In the consolidated financial statements, a portion of the Group's retained earnings corresponding
to the accumulated net earnings of the subsidiaries amounting to £299.60 million and

£240,68 million as of December 31,2011 and 2010, respectively, is not avaitable for dividend
declaration. This accumulated equity in net earnings becomes available for dividend declaration

upon receipt of dividends from Investees,

|l|ll||||ll|HlHIIIINIIN.II!MIN.II!IIﬂlHlIﬂlllHIlﬂ\lyMl
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25, Income Tax

The provision for current income tax represents the RCIT of the Parent Company, PEMI,
c-Business, Yehey! and iCurrencies and MCIT of eBiz Financial,

Components of the net deferred tax assets of the Group follow:

2011 . 2010

Deforred tax assets:
Retirement payable

B1,235,740 $1,344,305

Allowance for credit losses 1,795,794 1,296,815
Cost of dismantlement - - 81,141
Allowance for impairment of investment 54,231 50,628
Unrealized forelgn exchange losses L - 1,849,933
Asset retirement obligation - 1,243,674
Unamortized past service cost — - 335,690
3,085,771 6,202,186

Deforred tax ligbilitles: :
Prepnid rent 1,044,782 -
Net deforred tax assets $2,040,989 86,202,186

Components of the deferred tax liabilitles of the Group follow:

2011 2010

Deferred tax liabilities

Net unrealized gain on changes in fair value of

AFS Investments :

r1,003,292 P167,211,136
L ~ 7,065,721

Net unrealized forgign exchange gain

B1,003,292 175,030,767

The details of deductible temporary differences end carryforward benefits of NOLCO and MCIT
for which no deferred tax asset had been recognized in the consolidated statements of financial
position as management believes that there will be no sufficient future taxable income against

which these can be applied with, are as follows:

: 2011 2010

Allowance for credit losses ‘ R136,73'7,523 P173,903,152
Unrealized foreign exchange losses 9,530,961 28,598,697
Accrued rent 5,741,881 5,741,881
Retirement payable 2,417,513 2,328,788
Leave credits for employees 1,471,250 968,174
Allowance for impairment 1,230,730 -
204,333 17,395,340

NOLCO

P157,340,191 __ P228,936,032

Excess of MCIT over RCIT

214,242 P1,021,799

QT
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Movements in NOLCO and MCIT are as follows:

2011 2010
' NOLCG  Excess MCIT "NOLCO  Excess MCIT
Balance at beginning of year R17,516,014 ®628,722 * P17,610,318 £806,958
Addition . - - 262,327 - 622,160
Application/expiration (17,311,681) (614,480) (477,305) (407319)
Balance et end of year ®204,333 , B14,242 B17,395340 BL,021,799

Details of the Group’s NOLCO are as follows:

Inception Year Amount  Used/Expired Balance Expiry Year
2008 B12,772,449 - (R12,772,449) P~

2009 ‘ 4,361,448 {4,276,905) 84,543 2012
2010 314,416 (262,327) . 52,088 2013
2011 : 67,701 67,701 2014

R17,516014  (R17,311,681) B204,333

Details of the Grqup’s excoss MCIT over RCIT are as follows:

Inception Year Amount  Used/Expired Balance Expiry Year

2008 ‘ 7140,859 (B140,859) P 2011

2009 249,345 ~(249,345) - 2012

2010 229,622 (224,276} 5,346 2013

2011 : 8,896 - 3,896 2014
P628,722 (B614,480) 14,242

The reconciliation of income before income tax computed at the statutory income tax rate to the
provision for income tax as shown in the consolidated staterments of income is as follows:

2011 2010 2009
Statutory income tax ' 168,341,099 R228,393,170 119,943,364
Income tax effects of: ' '
Trading gains ‘ (98,384,483) (151,214,919)  (45,000,067)
Interest income subjected to final tax "
and exempt from tax (26,051,316)  (24,692,400) (22,163,335)
Dividend income exempt from tax , (10,683,075) (13,732,748) (18,513,502)
Mark-to-market loss (gain) on financial
assets at RVPL, : 1,057,186 (776,990) -
Changes in unrecognized deferred tax '
asgets (8,758,802) (13,416287) 1,199,084
Others - . 5,792,617 20,128,479 {848,780)

Effective income tax . B31,313,226  R44,688,305  R34,616,264

TR
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26,

Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. This
includes: (a) individuals owning, directly ot indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
cantrol, or are controlled by, or under common control*with, the Group; (b) assaciates; and,
{c) individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Group that
_gi;tlss'?ar;l significant influence over the Group and close members of the family of any such
individual. :

a. Due from affiliates pertains to short-terms advances by PEMI to Philequity Fund, Inc., a
related party, which are presented under ‘Loans and receivables’ in the consolidated statement
of financial position (Note 8). E ' '

b, PEMI has a consuftancy agreement with a board member of the Company. In 2011, a total
“annual retainer fee of B1.8 million was accrued and was subsequently paid in February 2012
as compensation for his skills in marketing and corporate strategy which contributed to the
business of the Company.

e. In2011, Yeheyl, eBiz Financial Services, Inc., and Philoquity Fund, Inc. participated in the
Parent Company's investment in a credit-linked note by purchasing #359.32 million at face
value, The Company serves as the receiving agent of all coupon interest for the entire
duration of the participation, ‘

d. In 2011 and 20190, the Company waived the collection of rental for the lease of office space of
Yeheyl. » . e

e. In2011, 2010, and 2009, the Parent Company paid certain expenses of e-Business, Yehey!,
PEMI, and iCurrencies, which were later billed for reimbursement,

f. Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

: , 2011 2010 2009
Salaries and wages P15,555,985 P16,445,855 17,880,831

Retirement benefits - 848,770 220,140 - 141,738
‘ - R16,404,755 R16,665,995 P18,022,569

27.

Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share

2011 2010 2009

| (a) Net income atiributable to equity ' , -
holders of the Parent Company B514,705,557 P713,647,678 P361,430,972
(b) Weightad average outstanding shares 2,100,535,133  2,134,334,104 2,232,524,571

(¢) Basle/Diluted eamings ([oss) per share .
) /b | R0.2450 103344 £0.1619

On June 4, 2008, the BOD increased the Parent Company’s authorized capital stock from
£1,900,000,000 to £2,250,000,000, as wetl as the issuance of 25.0% stock dividend to its
stockholders, This inorense in capital stock was approved by the SEC and PSE on

Janvary 12, 2009, while the stock dividends were distributed to stockholders as of record date of

- lﬂilllﬂlm||||I'|HIHIIIU|IIIIIHIIIIIEHMﬂllllﬂlﬂ!lﬂ-

- February 10, 2009 on March 6, 2009.
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On various dates in 2009, the Parent Company reacquited a total of 26,86 million shares for an
aggrepate price of 11%135.15 million.

In addition, on various dates in 2010, the Parent Company reacquired a total of 134 9 million
shares for an aggregate price of #1534 milllon. ‘

28.

Contingencies
In the normal course of operations of the Group, there are outstanding cornmitments and

contingent liabilities which are not reflected in the financial statements. The Group does not
anticipate losses that will materially affect its assets and liabilities as a result of these transactions.

AR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT:
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULLES

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Vantage Equitics Inc:

2703 East Tower, PSE Centre

Exchange Road, Grligas Conter

Pasig City

We have audited, in accordance with Philippine Sinudards on Auditing, the consolidated (ianclal
statements of Vantage Equitics, Ine, and Subsidiaties (the Group) as al Docomber 31, 2011 and 2010
included in this Form 17-A and have issucd our report thereon dated April 10, 2012, Our audits were
made tor the purpose of forming ant opinion on the basic {inancinl statements twken as n whole. The
schedules listed in the {ndex 10 Financiul Statements and Supplementary Scheclules are the
responsibility of the Group's management, These sohedules are presented for purposes ol complying
with Securities Regulation Code Rule No, 68, as Amended (201 1) and are nat part of the bnsic
financial statements. These sehedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applicd in the
audit of the basic financial stitements and, in our opinion, fuirly state in all material respeet the
financinl data.required Lo be set forth therein in retation to the basic financinl statements taken as a

whole,

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Ik P 00,
Vicky{/B. Lee-Salas
Partner
CPA Certificaie No. 86838
SEC Accreditation Na. 0115-AR-2 (Group A),
February [1, 2010, vaulicd until February 10, 2013
Tax Identification No, 129-434-735
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-53-2009,
June 1, 2009, valid until May 31, 2012
PIR No, 3174802, Jnnuary 2, 2012, viakati City .

April 10, 2012

[
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VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC., AND SUBSIDIARIES
INDEX TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES
DECEVIBER 31, 2011,

Schedules Reqdimd under Securities Regulation Code Rule 68

Schedule Contant Page No
Y
Part 1
t Schedule of Retalned Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration 1
{Part 1 4C, Annex 68-C)
I Schedule of all effective standards and mterpretations under PFRS 2-5
(Part 144}
11 Map showing refationships batween and among parent, subsidiaries, an 6
associate, and joint venture (Part 1 4H}
Part 2
A Financlal Assets {Part If 6D, Annex 68-E, A) 7
B * Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties 8
and Principal Stockholders (Other than Afﬂllates}
(Part il 60), Annex 68-E, B)
C Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are eliminated durlng the 9
consolidation of financial statements {Part i 6D, Annex 68-E, C)
D Intangible Assets - Other Assets (Part I} 6D, Annex 68-E, D) 10
E Long-Term Debt (Part if 6D, Annex 68-E, E) 11
F Indebtedness to Related Partles (included in the consolidated statement 12
of financial position) (Part il 60, Annex 68-£, F)
G Guarantees of Securitles of Other Issuers (Part I 6D, Annex 68-E, G) 13
" H Capital Stock {Port I 6D, Annex 68-E, HJ 14



C SCHEDULE |
RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS
AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION

DECEIVIBER 31, 2011

Vantage Equities, Inc.
2703 East Tower, PSE Centre
Exchange Roatl, Ortigas Center
Paslg City

Unappropriated retained earnings, beginning ' 12,046,003,093.00
Add:  Net income actually earned during the year : 455,781,648.00
* Retained earnings available for dividend distribution, ending R2,501,784,741.00
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SCHEDULE Il

LIST OF PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (PFRS} .

EFFECTIVE AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011

PFRSs and PIC QRAS

Adoptéd/Not Adopted/

Not Applicable

PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Phifippine Financial Reporting Standuards
PFRS 2, Share-based Payment

PFRS 3, Business Combinations

PFRS 4, Insurgnce Contracts

PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
PFRS 6, Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

PFRS 7, Financlal Instruments: Disclosures

PFRS 8, Operating Segments

PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements

PAS 2, Inventories

PAS 7, Statement of Cush Flows

PAS 8, Accounting Pollefes, Changas in Accounting Estfmates and Errors
PAS 10, Events afterthe Reparting Perlod

PAS 11, Construction Contracts

PAS 12, Income Taxes

PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment

PAS 17, Leases

PAS 18, Revenue

PAS 19, Employee Benefits '

PAS 20, Accounting for Govemment Grants ond Disclosure of Government

Asslstance

PAS 21, The Effects of Changes in Forelgn Exchange Rates

PAS 23, Barrowing Costs

PAS 24, Related Party Disclosures

PAS 26, Accournting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plens

PAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financio! Statements

PAS 28, Investments in Assoclates

PAS 29, Alnanclal Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economles

PAS 31, Interests In Joint Ventures

PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation

PAS 33, Earnings per Shure

PAS 34, interim Financlal Reporting

PAS 36, impalrment of Assats ;

PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabliitles and Contfngent Assels

PAS 38, Intangible Assets

PAS 39, Financlal Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

PAS 40, Investment Properly

PAS 41,  Agriculture

Phillppine Interpretation IFRIC-1, Changes In Existing Decommissioning,

Rastoration and Similar Licbiiities

Philippine Interpretation {FRIC-2, Members’ Shares in Co-pperative
‘ Entitles and Sfrmilar Instruments

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-4, Determining whether an Arrangement

r

Adopted

‘Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Adopted
Adapted
Adopted
Not Applicable
Adopted
Adopted
Adopted
Not Applicable
Adopted
. Adopted
Adopted
Adopted
Adopted
Not Applicable

Adopted
Adopted
Adopted
Adopted
Adapted
Adopted
Not Applicable
Adopted
Adopted
Adopted
Adopted
Adopted
Adopted
Adopted
Adopted
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not applicable

Adopted



PFRSs and PIC QB:As

Adopted/Not Adopted/
‘Not Applicable

con tains o Lease
Philippine interpretation IFRIC-5, Rights to interests arising from

Recornmissioning, Restoration and Enviranmental
Rehabilitation Funds

Philippine Interpretation {FRIC-6, Liabilitles orising from Participoting in o

Specific Market - Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment
Phlllpplne Interpretation IFRIC-7, Applying the Restatement Approach
under PAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Econamies
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9, Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
Phillppine Interpretation IFRIC-10, /nterim Financial Reporting and
impuirment
Phiiippine Interpretation IFRIC-12, Service Concession Arrangements.
Phillpping Interpretation IFRIC-13, Customer Loyalty Programimes
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-14, PAS 19 - The Limit on @ Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requiremants and their
interaction
PhilippIne interpretation IFRIC-16, Hedges of a Net investment In a
Foreign Operatlion
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-17, Distributions of Non- cash Assets to
Cwners
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-18, Transfers of Assets fram Customers
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-19, Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments
Philippine Interpretatlon SIC-7, Introduction of the Euro
Phllippine Interpretation SIC-10, Government Assistance - No Spec{ffc
Relation to Operating Activities
Phllippine Interpretation SIC-12, Consolidation - Special Purpoese Entitias
Philippine Interpretation SIC-13, Jointly Controfled Entities - Non-
" Monetary Contributions by Venturers
Philipplne Interpretation SIC-15, Operating Leases - Incentives
Philippine Interpretation SIC-21, income Taxes - Recovery of Revalued
Non-Depreciable Assets
Philippine Interpretation SIG-25, Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax
Status of an Entity or its Shareholders
Philippine Interpretation $I1C-27, Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of o Lease *
Philippine Interpretation 5C-23, Service Concesslon Arrangements.
_ Disclosures
Philippine Interpretation $IC-31, Revenue Barter Transactions Involving
Advertising Services
Philippine interpretation SIC-32, Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs
-PIC Q&A No. 2006-01: PAS 18, Appendix, paragraph 9 - Revenue
recognition for sales of property units under pre-completion
contracts ' '
PIC Q&A No. 2006-02: PAS 27,10(d) - Clarification of criteria for
exemption from presenting consolidated financal statements
PIC Q&A No, 2007-03: PAS 40,27 - Valuation of bank real and other
properties acquired {ROPA}

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

' Adopted
Adopted

Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable .

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Adopted
Not Applicable
Not Appiicahle

Adopted

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable



PFRSs and PIC Q8As

Adopted/Not Adopted/

Not Applicable

PIC Q&A No. 2008-01. (Revised): PAS 19.78 - Rate used in discounting
post-employment benefit obligations
PIC Q&A No, 2008-02: PAS 20.43 - Accounting for government loans with

low interest rates under the amendmaeants to PAS 20

PIC Q&A No. 2009-01: Framework.23 and PAS 1.23 - Financial statements
' prepared on a hasis other than going concern
PIC Q&A No. 2010-03: PAS 39.AG71-72 - Rate used In determining the fair

value of government securities in the Phillppines
PIC Q&A No. 2010-02: PAS 1R.16 - Basis of preparatlon of ﬂnanclal

statements

PIC OQ&A No. 2011-01: PAS 1.106(f) ~ Requlrements for a Third Statement

of Financial Position

. Adopted
Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Adapted |
Adopted

Not Applicable

lrportant: If an entity has early adopted any of the following pronouncements, please take note of
the: {1) additional disclosures the entity has to make for the early adoption of the sald
- pronouncements and (2} the exlsting pronauncements that the entity may have to mark a5 “Not

appllcable™:
' Ch ‘ Appli Ble to annual Eari
Pronouncements issued but not ppiica Y
period beglnning on application Remarks
yet effective :
ar after allowed
Al-‘nendments to PFRS 7: ' To be adapted when
Disclosures-Tronsfers of Financlal July 1, 2011 Yes \
. effective
Assets
ts t : . ‘ ’
Ar.nendmen s to PFRS .7 - To be adopted when
Disclosures-Offsetting Financial January 1, 2013 Not mentioned effactive
Assets and Financial Liabilities
: To be adopted when
PFRS 9, Financial instruments January 1, 2015 Yes P .
effective
To be adopted when
PFRS 10, Consolldated Financial Jénuary 1, 2013 Yes o p .
Statements ‘ effective
PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements To he adopted when
January i, 2913 . Yes affective
PFRS5.12 'Dfsc!osure of interests it To be adopted when
’ - January 1, 2013 Yes )
Qther Entities i effective
PERS 13, Fair Value Measurement ‘ To be adopted when
7 January 1, 2013 Yes effoctive”
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Deemed Cost

Pranouncements issued but not Applicable to annual Early .
yet effective period beginhing on application Remarks
_ or after allowed
Amendments to PAS 1:
Presentation of Items of Other July 1, 2012 Yes To be adopted when
.| Comprehensive Income effective
Amendments to PAS 12-Deferrad To be adopted when
Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets fanwary 1, 2012 Yes effective
PAS 19, Employee Benefits To be adopted when
1
{Revised) January 1, 2013 Yes |, effective
PAS 27, Separate Financio ch.' be adopted when
Statements : fanuary 1, 2013 ves effective
b
PAS 28, investments in Associates T adopted when
! January 1, 2013 Yes obe pt.e hen
and Joint Ventures effective
A P 2 i '
mendments to PAS 32, Offseting J To be adopted when
Financial Assets and Flnancial January 1, 2014 Yes .
effective
Ligbilfties
Phillppine Interpretation IFRIC-15,
ferred by SEC
Agreements for the Construction of De errle R SYC and No Not applicable
Reql Estate -
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-20,
Stripping Costs In the Production January 1, 2013 Yes Not applicable
Phose of a Surface Mine '
PIC Q&A No, 2011-02: PFRS 3.2 -
Common Cantrol Business * January 1, 2012 Yes Not applicable
Combinations '
. 203 Account - To be adupted when
PIC Q&A Na. 2011-03: Accounting January 1, 2012 Yes o _
for Inter-company Loans effective
PIC Q&A No. 2011-04: Pl-‘*..S 32.37- . y To be ;adoptecl when
38 - Costs of Public Offering of January 1, 2012 es effective
Sharaes
PIC Q&A No. 2011-05; PFRS 1.D1-~ To be adopted when
DB - Fair Value of Revaluation as January 25, 2012 Not mentianed affective
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VANTAGE

EQUITIES, INC.

t

June 8, 2012

- DISCLOSURE DEPARTNENT
The Philipping Stock Exchange, Iney

3/F Philippine

Stock Exchange Plaza

Ayaln Trinngle, Ayalan Avenue

Makati City, 12

226 Philippines

- Re: Amendment of 2001 Annnal Report

Everyone:

We are transmitting the Amended 17A Repoﬂ of Vantage Equities, Tne. and Lis Subsidiarics Tor the year 2011 as

required by Sceurities and Exchange Commission,

The table below would summarize the amendments:

SUMMARY QF CONTENTS PAGE NO
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PART 111 — Control and Compensation Information
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|| liem 10 Exceutive Compensation a0-21
~ hem 12 | Certain Relationships and Related Transactions 22 -

Thank you very much.

Very truly you
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[tem 1.

PART I -~ BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION
Business

Vantage Equities, Inc., (the “Corporation”), formerly iVantage Corporation, was frncorporated in
20 October 1992 and is organized as an investment and financia) holding company, 1t has
authorized capital steck of One Billion Nine Hundred Million Pesos(®1,900,000,000), alf of
which are in common shares with a par value of B1.00 per share. Of the authorized capital
stock, 1,788,312,570 are outstanding and 111,687,430 remain unsubscribed. On 12 January
2009, Securities & Exchange Commission (SEC) approved the increase of authorized capital
stock of the Corporation to Two Billion Two Hundred Fifty Million PesosB2,250,000,000.00.

Furthermore, the SEC has authorized the Corporation to issue 447,078,142 common shares out

of its authorized but unissued capital stock to cover the twenty five percent (25%) stock
dividend declared by the Corporation®s Board of Directors en 4 June 2008 and ratified by its
sharcholders on 27 June 2008. As of 31 March 2011, the Corporatitn. has an authorized capital
stock of Two Billion Two Hundred Fifty Miltion Pesos (132,250,000,000.00) divided into
2,250,000,000 cormmmon shares with par value of ¥1.00 per share. Out of the authorized capital
stock, 2,235,390,633 shares are outstanding and 14,609,367 shares are unsubscribed.

The Corporationreverted to its oriinal name by majority vote of the Board of Directors in
November 2007, whick the Securities and Exchange Commission subsequently approved in
Aptil 2008, The change in corporate name is consistent with the Company’s re-alignment of its
investment focus towards the broad financial sector vis-a-vis its information technology focus
during the early 2600's. ‘

Purpose

The Company was originally organized with the primary purpose of oil and gas exploration, and
investments and developments as among its secondary purposes. On 3 October2000, the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) approved the change in the Corporation’s primary
purpose to financial holdings and investments, jncluding but not limited to infonmation
technology companies and related ventures. Since the Registrant is an investment holding
company, it is not competing in terms of sales and is not dependent upon a single customer or &
few customers, Also, it needs no government approval of principal products or services and no
cost and effect of-compliance with environmental laws,

Investments

In June 2006, the Corporationdivested its shareholdings in International Exchange Bank
(“iBank™), its largest single investment at that time. The iBank sale generated B 2.9 billion in
cash and a B1.6 billion gain, capping an 11-year investment period that yielded a 16%
compound annual return. ‘The PSE Index, by comparison, only broke even during the same
perled. The divestment was timely 1h light of the substantial decling in financlal markets in the
following years,

The Corporationdecided to invest its 82.9 biltion “war chest” in portfolio of equity and fixed-
Income securitles, The mandate Is to attaln above market returns while adhering to prudent risk
parameters, i.e. credit, lUquidity and market risk. For this purpose, the Company hired its
current President in October 2006 along with a team of finance professionals. The current team
is also tasked to further professionalize management of the Vantage Group of Companies,

The opemating subsidiaries that comprise the Vantage Group are the following:

e-Business Services, Inc, (“eBiz") - 130% ownership
Acquired in 2000, ¢Biz is involved in the money transfer and remittance business as a

direct agent of Western Union, Ing. (*WU™). WU is the global leader in the field with a
presence in over 200 countries through more than 410,000 agent locations worldwide.

[



The remittance marke in the Philippines is over USD 17 billion annovally based on
official figures in 2009. With its strong brand name, WU is the recognized leader ir this
highly competitive market.

eBiz is among the top three (3} direct agents of WU in the Philippines. Atend of 2011,
€Biz had over 1,000 locations nationwide: 157 in company-owned branches and the rest
in sub-agent locations. eBiz employs more than 400employees.

eBiz Financial - 100% ownership

eBiz Financial is wholly owned by e-Business. eBiz Financial was incorporated on 11
* April 2005 and started commercial operations on 9 May 2005. eBiz Financial is engaged
in financing business.

ICurrencies — 100% ownership

iCurrencies, Inc. was incorporated on 3 February 2000 and started commercial
operations on 31 May 2000. iCurrencies is organized primarily to engage in the business
of buying and selling of foreign currencies.

In May 2001, the iCurrencies effectively stopped its business of buying and selling
currencles as a result of Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas Circular No. 264, issued on 26
October 2000. Among others, the new circular required additional documentation for
sale of foreign currencies and required Foreign Exchange Corporations (FxCorps) to
have a minimurn paid-up capital of #50.0 million.

The Circular effectively aligned the regulations under which FxCorps are to operate to
that of banks. To avoid duplication and direct competition with its previous major
stockholder, iCurrencies decided to stop its business of buying and selling foreign
currencies. The stockholders likewise decided not to increase its paid-up capital.

In the meantime, iCurrencies is sustained by income on its investments and interest
income on its funds while awaiting for regulatory changes.

Philequity Balanced Fund, Ine, — 100% ownership

The Fund is engaged in selling its capital to the public and investing the proceeds in
diversified portfolio of peso-denominated fixed-income and equity securities. As of 31
December 2011, the Fund has not yet Jaunched its capital shares to the public.

Philequity Forelgn Currency Fixed [ncome, Inc, - 100% ownership

The Fund is engaged in selling its capital to the public and investing the proceeds in
diversified portfolio of foreign currency denominated fixed-income securities, As of 31
December 2011, the Fund has not yet launched its capital shares to the public.

Ychey! Corporatign {“Yehey™) — 68.35% ownership

. From a pioneering web portal in the [ate 1990's, Yehey has grown into a leading digital
on-line marketing solutions provider in the country, The company cutrently counts
several established corporation in its roster of customers.

To support its growth, Vantage infiused #8250 million capital in Yehey in 2007. The
following year, Vantage also declared and distributed a 5% property dividend in the
form of Yehey shares. This has reduced Vantage's ownership in Yehey to 68% from
99% pre-dividend. The balance of 32% is now owned by Vantage sharcholders by way
of said property dividend.



The property dividend has transformed Yehey into a widely-held company that qualifies
it to list by way of mtroducﬁon in the Philippine Stock Exchange. Such listing Is
scheduled in 2012, _

Philequity Management, [nc. (“PEM ") — 51% ownership

Vantage acguired 51% of PEMI in 2007 for P32 milllon. PEM! is an asset-management
company with about B3 billion in assets ynder managerment at end-2008, 1ts flagship
Philequity Fund Inc. has been the top performing equity mutual fund pver the past
decade g5 ranked by the Investment Company Association of the Philippines.

Competition

Vantage Equities Inc. is a public!ynlisled holding company whose main focus is to make
stratepic investments in companies that are in the financial services industry, Under the
Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) there are sbout seventeen companies that are classified as
holding firms with about P585-billion in ﬂcat—adjusted market capitalization, Most of the
holding companies ave owned by well-known familtes in the Philippines which have diversified
investmenlts ranging from properties, banking, food, power and retail, Most of the firms in this
industry can be labeled as mature and has a long track record of existence as such there are not
many changes in terms of additions in this industry, But the most recent addition to the holding
firm industry is the public [isting of GT Capital of the Ty family of Metrobank, '

Although Vantage Equities is not listed in this sector of the PSE, there are similar companizs
that we would consider its competitors and we think would be appmpriate to do a comparison,
Two main aspects where firms in this industry compete on are pricing and services, Firms
offering more competitive pricing coupled with excellent customer service normally increase
the populmty of their brand and thus their appeal to retail and institutional clients, In addition
companies with complementary businesses often win clients by packaging themselves as a one-
stop shap service provider.

The closest competitor of Vantage equities that have financial services business under their
compeny is Aboitiz Equity Ventures (AEV) which has UnionBank and CitiSavings under its
financial segment. AEV has a market capitalization of 2bout P116-billion as of June 7, 2012
and has three business segments namely power, financial services and food. It terms of size and
market capitalization, Vantage Equities pales in comparison but the main advantage of Vantage
Equities is its combination of two finanoial services business namely Philequity Managemerit,
Inc, and e-Business Services, Inc. with Philequity Management, Inc. having one of the best
performing funds this together with the extensive network of e-Business Services, Inc. branches
will enable Vantage Equities, Inc. to effectively market its products and services to its targeted
customers.

Competition of Subsidiaries
eBusiness Serviees, Ing, (“eBiz™) - 100% ownership

eBiz is characterlzed by a relatively strong competition among direct agents and sub-
agents of Western Union.Agents primarily compete through location and customer
service, It appears that the competition withother money transfer companles like
Moneygram, Xoom, iRemit does not substantially affect the business of the Corporation,

Philequity Management, Ine, (*PEMI"®) — 51% ownership

As of April 2012, the Philippine mutual fund industry is composed of 48 funds with
about B121.8 billion In assets under management (AUM), This in comparison to the
mutual fund industry situation during 2002 where there are only 22 funds with a
consolidated AUM of 824.6 billion. The mutual fund industry is sub-divided into four
categories —~ stack, balanced, bond and money market funds with 44% of the total AUM
invested in bond funds. In addition, whereas in 2002 there were about fourteen
companies offering twenty two mutual funds today we have about seven major players
offering forty-eight mutual funds. This is proof that the mutual fund industry is very



competitive with sizeable and bank-initizted funds persisting thru different economic
cycles. Tt is no surprise that the ebbs and flow of the mutwal fund industry is mainly
driven by the economic and capital markets condition of the country as the not to recent
financial crisis of 2008-2009 has shown.

Philequity’ Management Inc, (PEMI) kas four funds namely Philequity Fund (PEFT),
Philequity PSE Index Fund (PPSE), Philequity Pese Bond Fund (PPBF) and Philequity
Dallar Income Fund (PDIF) which mainly compete in the stock and bond. funds only.
The flagship fund of PEMI is PEF! which competes in the stock fund category of the
mutoal fund industry. PEMI's funds like any other mutual funds are marketed
throughout the Philippines but concentration is mostly in Metra Manila where disposable
and investable income is higher. PEMI mostly markets its funds throuph sales agents,
advertisement through website and print publication, '

The main area of competition is through return performance and pricing, On the return
performance, top performing funds continue to attract subscriptions while
underperforming ones continue to see redemptions. On the area of pricing, there are
three pricing points investors look at: Sales load, management fee and exit fees. The
mutual fund industry has varying degrees of sales load, exit fees but basically the same
management fees. In addition, duration of exit varies from one company to the next with
some compenies offering 6 months while others up to two years in order to have no exit
fees charged to investar.

PEMTI’s main competitors in the industry are First Metro Investment Corp., Philam Life,
Sun Life of Canada and Bank of the Philippine 1sland. Two out of four of these
companies are major banks or are subsidiaries of major banks while the other two
companies are well-recognized insurance companies offering mutual funds in addition to
their insurance products, Both banks are in the top five in terms of assets under
management while one the insurance companies is a 150-year old, Canadian-based
multi-national company with $494-billion in assets under management, The other jocal
insurance company has 65-year track record with a 8207-billion in assets under
management. In comparison, PEMI’s funds particularly PEFI has a 17-year track record
of consistent return outperformance against the Philippine Stock Exchange Index (PSE‘.;)
with about R5.9-billion (s of April 2012} in assets under management.

ehey! Corperation — 68,35% ownershi
Yehey! considers the following as competitors:

e Digital Agencies
e Advertising Apencies

The Company considers the digital agencies as their direct compemors while the
advertising agencies and media agencics are considered indirect competitors.

Digital Agencies are agencies that deliver services for the creative and technical
developments of internet based products. These services range from the more Common
services such as web design, e-mail markeiing and microsites etc, to the more specialist
such as viral campaigns, banner advertising, search engine optimization, podcasting or
widget development and more. Digltal agencies in the country include BBDO-Proximity,
Deploy and Havoc:

BBDO-Proximity

BBDO-Proximity creates breakthrough behavior changing ideas that cause active
engagement belween brands and consumers, They make insights, ideas and creative
works that are developed by many of the most talented people from around the world.
BBDO Proximity brings customers closer to brands with innovative "Beyond the Line"
strategic and creative solutions. Their services reflect their people's expertise in building



relationships, changing behaviors and deliver ng results across all marketing disciplines
and media.

Deploy

Deploy is a boutique digital solutions provider offering communications plannitig, media
planning and buying, anslytics, reputation management and digital consultancy with a
focus to delivering the best in class digital solutions underpinned by ROI,

Havoe

Havoc is a premier digital marketing company In the country with over 10 years of
experience in creating digital properties, it helps its clients strategize and develop
campaigns that will maximize their brand in the online space. They specialize
on advertising sales presentations, digital media planning and buying, web development,
online communities, blog marketing and e-commerce.

Advertising Apencies (Association of Accredited Advertising Agency): These agencies
are service businesses dedicated to create, plan and handle advertising for its clients.
They also provide an outside point of view to the effort of selling the clients products or
services. They also produce works for many types of media, creating integrated
marketing communications, The tap advertising agencies in the country are McCann-
Erickson Phillppines, Ogilvy & Mather, TBWA Santiago-Manganda-Puno, BBDO-
Guerrero, Ace Saatchi & Saatchi, Jimenez Basic and J. Walter Thompson.

The very essence of Yehey’s competitive advantage lies in its being the first to completo
the end-to-end digital marketing solutions offering, Almost all companies that are in the
business of digital marketing concentrate on either website development, or online media
buying, or search engine optimization, or ou digital PR, or their digital marketing
services remain as added service to their existing above the line advertising efforts.

Yehey!, with i1s complete suite of services ¢an offer its customers a more comprehensive
digital marketing solutions package at the best possible value and with best advertising
mileage in the digital space.



Item 2.

Fingnclal Performance

The Compeany derived its revenues from various activities;

Cominission income 354,087,049 350,326,588 351,245,290
Gain on sale of AFS invesments 333,150,050 504,049,820] 141,910,113
Tnterest income fron: '
AFS mvestments 105,282,873 03,852,163] 79,283,201
Cash and cash equivalents 11,555,280 13,850,853] ° 14,927310
Tinancial assets acFVPL 6,383,120 6,621,675] 17764766
Unqguoted debt securities 4,075,832 - -
Others C. - 346,502
Share in foreigﬁxchanae differential §5,573,235 35,767,180 73,582,915
Management fee and service income 65,414,284 13,623,335 32,651,169
Money changing gain 16485920 59,377,986] 71,373,614
Dividend income 35,610,251 45,775,827 61716274
Advertising, web development and intemer service. 33,851,638 30,406,632 37040925
Income from business parmers 1,569,063 2,333,776 -
TOTAL 1,052,517,622| 1,226,185,874| 883,421,970

As of December 31, 2011, the Company has a total of 482 employees as broken down below
and are not subject to Collective Bargaining Agreements (CBA).

Executive 1 -
Senior Officer 6| -
Manager 23 -
Supervisor 137 -
Staff 315 25
TOTAL 482 25

The Corporalion believes that it has maintained amicable relationships with the rank and file
and does not anticipate any labor-munagement issues to arise in the near term. The Corporation
believes that its relationship with its employees have been consistently good and productive.

Properties

Vantage Equities, Inc, - Parent

Office Condominium - These condominium units are located at 38/F Discovery Centre, ADB
Avenue, Paslg City and Unit 2005 East Tower, PSE Centre, Exchange Road, Ortigas Center,
Pasig City. These are deprecxated over an estimated useful life of 20 years and accounted for on’

a straight-line basis.

Office fmprovemenis - These are improvements made to the Co;rlpany‘s office space and being
depreciated over an estimated useful [ife of 10 years accounted for on a straight line basis,

Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment - These equipments are used by the Company ln conducting

" Its daily operations and localed at Unit 2703 East Tower, PSE Centre,Exchange Road, Ortigas




Center, Pasig City. These assets are being depreciated over an estimated useful life of 3-10
years and accounted for on & straight line basls.

Transportation Equipment - These equipments are used by the Company in conducting its daily
operations and depreciated over 5 years and accounted for on a straight line basis.

Leasehold Improvements - The Company is leasing iis office space from New Rosario Ortiges
Properties, Inc, located at 2703 East Tower, PSE Centre, Exchange Rosd, Ortigas Center, Pasig
City. The term of the contract is for a period of one year and renewable upon mutual agreement
of the parties involved.

eBustness Services, Inc. (“eBlz"}« 100% ownership

Transportation Equipment - These equipments are used by the Company in conducting its daily
operatlons and befng depreciated over an estimated useful life of 4-5 years.

Leasehold improvements - The Company leases the spaces occupied by its branches with
varying petiod of up to fifteen (15) years and renewable on such terms and conditions as shail
be mutually accepted by the Company and the lessors. These leases are accounted for on a
straight-tine basis over the lease term.

Cffice Furniture and Equipment - This furniture and equipment are used by the Company in
conducting its dally operations and being depreciated over an estimated useful life of 3 years,
These assets are located at the Company's Head Office in 20/F East Tower, PSE Centre,
Ortigas Center, Pasig City and various branches all over the Philippines.

Sofhware License and Software Development — These pertains to the accounting software used
by the company and amortized over a period 3 years acconnted for on a straight lice basis,

¢Biz Financial Serviess, Tnc. — 100% ownership
The Company does not own any properties,

iCurrencles, Ing. — 100% ownership

The Company does. not own any prupertles and already effectively stopped its business of
buyving and selling of currencles in May 2001 as a result of Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas
Circular No, 264, issued on October 26, 2000,

Philequity Balanced Fund, Inc. — 100% ownership

The Fund is not yet offered to the public and does not own any properties.

Philequity Foreiga Currency Fixed Income Fund, Ine, ~ 100% ownership

The Fund is not yet offered to the public and does not own any properties.
Yehey! Corporation — 68.35% ownership

Server and Nerwork Equipment - These equipments are used by the Company in conducting its
daily operations and being depreciated over an estimated useful life of 3 years, These
equipments are located at 38/F Discovery Centre, 25 ADB Avenue, Pasig City.

Furniture, Fixture and OQffice Equipment - These equipments are used by the Company in

~. cenducting its daily operations and being depreciated over an estimated useful life of 3 years.

These equipments are {ocated at 38/F Discovery Ceritre, 25 ADB Avenue, Pasig City.

Transporiation Eguipmant - AS$ of December 31, 2011 these equipment are already fully
depreciated but still in use by the Company.



Item 3.

Leasehold improvement - The Company is [easing its office space from Vantage Equities, Inc.
(the Parent Company) located at 38/F Discovery Centre, 25 ADB Avenue, Pasig City, For the
year 2011, Vantage Bquities, Inc. waived its rental fee amounting to P2,132,088 evidenced by
an Office Memo signed by the Mr. Bdmundo Marco P. Bunyi, Presidem and COO of Vantage
Equities, Inc. and Mr. Jose Carlos Arellang, Presideat and CEO of Yehey! Carporation.

Sojhmre License — This pertains to Microsoft licenses-and software used for “Kaban Project”
and is being amortized over a period of 3 years and accounted for on a straight line basis.

Philequity Management, Ine, —51% ownership
AT Equipment- These equipments are used by the Company in conducting its daily operations,

Leasehold Improvement - The Company is leasing its office space from ASIA PACIFIC
BUILDWARE CORP., located at Unit E-2004A 20/F, East Tower, PSE Centte, Exchange
Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City at monthly rate of B96,706.14 exclusive of VAT and net of
withholding. The term of the contract is for a period of five (5) years from April 1, 2012 to
March 31, 2015 with P3,000 iscrease in the monthly rental starting on the 3rd year begmning
Apnl 1, 2012,

Office Equipment - These equipments ere already fully-depreciated but still in use by ths
Company in conducting its daily operations and are depreciated over the estimated wsefil life
of 5 years. These are office equipments are located at 2004A East Tower, PSE Centre,
Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City

Office Furniture - These equipments are used by the Company in conducting its daily
operations and being depreciated over an estimated useful life of 5 years. Said office furniture
are located In 2004 A East Tower, PSE Centre, Exchange Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City

These properties are free from mortgage or lien. The Company has no plan of acquiring a
property in the next twelve months.

Legal Procecdings

3.1, G.R. No. 190477,
captioned “Sure Express World Wide Corp. vs Hon, Court of Appeals and e-Business Services
Ine. et. al”;Supreme Court, Manila :

On October 10, 2005, e-Business filed a case for specific perfortmance againstSure Express to
comply with its obligations under the Money Transfer Service Agreement entered by the
parties, On September 28, 2007, RTC Branch 214 of Mandaluyong City rendered a decision in
favor of E-Business prompting Sure Exptess to appeal before the Court of Appeals and
Supreme Court,

A petition for certiorari was filed by Sure Express World Wide Corp. on January 11, 2010
against the Court of Appeals and e-Business. The Supreme Coutt rendered a decision on
February 03, 2010 dismissing the petition. The aforesaid resolution became final and executory
on April 12, 2010, Parties were furnished copies of the Entry of Judgment on August 03, 2010.

e-Business filed a Motion for Execution of Judgment on February 2012 before RTC Branch
214 in Mandaluyong City to exccute aforesaid resolution of the Court of Appeals. The motion
is stilt pending for hearing and resolution

3.2. Civil Case No. 71390, _
captioned “e-Business Services Inc.vs, Prudential Guarantee Assurance, Inc.";
RTC 152, PasigCity

This is a complaint filed by e-Business on November 6, 2007 against defendant for the latter’s
refusal to settle and/or pay E-Business insuranceclaim as a result of loss of money due to
robbery or brigandage. e-Business claims for the aggregate amount of P1,880,085.98 and US



Item 4.

Item 5§,

$25,860.00 plus interest at the ratcof 12% per annum from January 22, 2007, attomey s fees of
nat less than 20% of the claims, P500,000 as damages and the cost of suit, The case is pending
pre-trial.

3.3.Criminal Case No. 12522,

captioned “People of the Ph:lipplnex Vs. Nar:elRequfsa ", for: Qualified Theft

RTC 214, Mandaluyong City

This is a criminal case filed by e-Business as private complainant against accused
NorlelRequiso en December 9, 2008, The accused left for Bangkok on November 2008 and his
whereabouts remain unknown since then. The instant case was archived in 2009.

Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matter was submitted to a vote of the security holders during the fourth quarter of 2611.

PART II - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

Stock Prices (as adjusted)

- -

1" Quarter | 191 1.85 1.88 143 1 14 1.26
2** Quarter| na na 171 171 1.52 1.42
3% Quarter | na na 146 1.56 1.44 157
= Quarter { na na 171 | 167 144 1.4

As of 31 March 2012, there were 677 shareholders of the 2,235,390,633 common shares issued
and outstanding. As of the close of trading on 31 March 2012, the Registrant’s shares were
traded at the price of 81.91 per share in Philippine Stock Exchange.

On November 10 2009, the BOD approved the proposal to buy back from the market vp to
Three Hundred Million Pesos (P300,000,000.00) worth of shares of the Corporation. As of
March 31, 2011, the total number of shares repurchased from the market is 134 855,500 worth
P188.52 mlllmn

On June 4, 2008, the BOD increased the Company’s authorized capital stock from P1.9B to
P2.25B, as well as the issuance of 25% stock dividend to all stockholders, This increase in
capital stock was approved by the SEC on 12 January 2009, while the stock dividends were
distributed to stockholders as of record date of 18 February 2009 on 06 March 2009.

In 2007, the Parent Company declared z five percent (5%) property dividend in favor of its
shareholders-of-record as of 18 May 2007, payable in the form of common shares of Yehoy!
worth P89,415,629, In February 2008, the Parent Company distributed the property dividends
declared.

There is no sale of unregistered secutitics within the past three (3) years,



Top 20 shareholders as of December 31, 2011

Top 20 Stockhotders of Vamtape Equities, dn,

as of December 31, 201

1|PCD NOMINEE CORP. 2,127.458,646.00 95.17%
2|PUA YOK BING 23,862,500.00 1.07%
3| TRANS-ASIA SECURITIES, INC. 6,830,000,00 0.31%
4|SYSMART CORPORATION 5,000,600.00 0.22%
S{EAST FACIFIC INVESTORS CORPORAT!ON 4,520,000.00 0.20%
6|PCD NOMINEE CORPORATION (N ON—FILIPINO) 4,271,000.00 : 0.19%
7|A. BROWN COMPANY, [NC., 3,441,250.00 0.15%
8|SYSMART CORP, , 3,428,375.00 0,15%
9|LUCIO W. YAN &/OR CLARA YAN 3,406,250.00 0.15%
1G|RICARDO L. NG 1,624,375.00 0.07%
11JAGATITO C. BALAGTAS, IR, 1,437,500.00 0.06%
12} APRICINIA B. FERNANDEZ 1,437,500.00 0.06%
13|SUZANNE LIM ‘ ,437,500.00 0.06%
14|HARLEY SY ,437.500.00 0.06%
5|CYGNET DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 406,250.00 0,06%
6]JERRY TIU 1,365,625.00 0.06%
17]CAMPQOS, LANUZA & CO., [NC. : I,161,500.00 0.05%
8| WILSON L. SY 1,150,000.00 0.05%
9|DAVID GO SECURITIES CORP. 935,000.00 (.04%
200JOHN PETER YU &/QR JUAN YU 800,000,060 0.04%
Dividends

Vantage Equities, Inc, has not declared any cash dividends the past two years.

Item 6. Management’s Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operatians

. In Millions 2011 2010 2009

Balance Sheet _ .

Assels 5,842.98 5,301.53 4,491.29

Liabilities 309.62 436.20 256.78

Stockholder's Equity - 5,533.36 4,865.33 4,234.51
Income Statement

Revenues C,08252(  1,226.19 883.42

Expenses 511,79 508.84 511,30

Other Income / (Charges) (10.91) (0.73) (6.93)

Net Income 529.82 716.62 365 19

Earnings per Share 0.25 0.33 0.16
Key Perfomance Indicators

Current ratio (Current Assels/Current Ligbilities) 4.88 5.29 5.32

Leverage Ratio (Total Debt/Total Equity) 0.06 0.09 0.09

Comprehensive Return on Equity 0.10 0.15 0.09

{Comprehensive income/Total Equity) ‘
Book Value Per Share 248 2.18 1.85

Results of Operations for the Year Ended 2011 (Y2011 vs Y2010)

The Company posted & consolidated net income of Php 529.8 million and Php 716.6 million in
2011 and 2010 respectwely On a per share basis, this translates to a Php 0.25 income in 201 1
compared to Php 0.33 income in 2010,
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2011 proved to be a volatile year for most equities markets. The Fed's second round of
quantitative easing during the latter part of 2010 spurred a rally in developed markers in 1Q1 1.
However, equities were hammered for most of the second half as the European debt crisis
continued to unravel and as developed economies continued to experience lackluster growth,
The S&P 500 and the MSCI World Index posted returns of 0.4% and -7.8%, respectively in
2011 compared to 12.8% and 9.6%, respectively in 2010,

Meanwhile, ASEAN markets huve fared relatively better due to healthier fiscal positions and
more robust domestic economies, [n particulae, the Philippines continue to enjoy a healthier
business climate and a stronger external position. lts domestic-driven economy has likewise
insulated it from external shocks such as the global slowdown and the Bl crisis. As a result,
the Phisix posted a retumn of 4.1% in 2011 while the Company’s equity portfolio gained 4.9%
during the same period. In 2010, the Phisix gained 37.6% while the Company's equity
portfolio posted a return of 46.3%.

Political stability and an improved fiscal and monetery environment have prompted debt ratings
agency S&P to upprade its outlook on the Philippines’ long-term foreign currency debt to
positive, As aresult, interest rates trended lower especially on [onger-dated securities. The 10-
year benchmark fell by almost 70 bps from 6.1% in 2010 to 5.4% in 2011, The Company’s
fixed income portfolio gained 13.4% in 2011, outperforming the HSBC Local Bond Index
which rose 12.8% during the same period. [n 2010, the same portfolio posted a gain of 13.5%
compared to a12.1% gain of the benchmark,

The Following summarizes the operating results of the Company’s subsidiarfes:

eBusiness Services, Inc,

eBiz achieved another record volume in 2011, hifting over 4.2 million tran&actions worth
in excess of USD 960 million. Value of international transactions grew 5,7% in 2011
compared to industry growth of 7.2%.

Despite volume and value growth, net money transfer revenues in 201 1slid 3.7% to Fhp
357 million from Php 371 million in 2010. The decline can largely be attributed to the
contractual reduction in the Company's share in Western Union’s money transfer
charges last September 2011, Furthermore, the continued appreciation of the Philippine
peso against the US dollar from an average of 45,06 in 2010 to 43,30 in 2011 dampened
the Cempany’s earnings.

Meanwhile, eBiz's efforts to raise operating efficiencies have resulted to cost savings of
about Php 4 million, as expenses declined to Php 354 million in 2011 from Php 358
million in 2010, _

- However, because of weaker top line growth, 2011 net income fell 45.0% to P37 millien
from P§7 million in 2019,

Yetey! Corporation

A quasi reorganization which involved a re-alignment [n management and rationalization
of personnel was started sometime in the middle of 2010. Likewise, cost cutting and
production efficiency measures were introduced that year and continued to 2011, Thus in
2011, Yehey!'s financial performance improved substentially, posting net profit of
P14 million from & net foss of P9.45 million in 2010.

Revenues in 2011 registered an 11% increase at P33.9 million, from P30.4 million in
2010. Biggest contribution to revenue came from Web Development and Digital PR
Services with combined revenues of about P28 million. Digital Stralegy services also
contributed a respectable amount of P3.3 million, considering that this service was
refatively a new product offering of the Company. The improvement in revenue

~ peneration must be due to more consistent requirements from existing clients and new
clients who have been happier with the delivery of Yehey's services.

i1



Another improvement in the financinl performance of the Company was the remarkable
decline in Cost of Services from P30.2 million in 2010 to P17.8 million in 2011, when
full impact of the personnel rationalization was realized, By the end of 2011, personne!
count was at 30 from g high of 68 in 2009.It couid be said that a most efficient ratio of
sales to production has bieen achieved.

Meanwhile, Genera) and Administrative Expenses also decreased by 16% to P20 million
as a result of continuous and prudent mansgement of all company resources. Also, lower

" provisions were made in 2011 for credit losses and impalrment due to an improved
collection period.

Notewarthy, are the other contrlbutors to Net Income, as follows: [1] P2.2 million
income recognized from the reversal of priot years provision for commission which was
never distributed as revenuve targets were not met year on year;[2] P1.! million
representing 50% share of the 2011 Net Income of Medir Conlacts, a joint venture
undertaking of Yehey! with Media Contacts, $,A

Philequity Manapement, Inc,

PEMI's 2011 revenues increased from Php43.6 million in 2009 to Php69.7 million. In
line with the strength of ASEAN economies and their relative outperformance vis-3-vis
developed cconomies, the mutual funds that the Company manages posted net
subscriptions of Php 197 miillion in 2011 while total assets under management further
increased to Php 4.9 billion as of end-2011 from Php 4.4 billion as of end-2010.

PEMI’s operating expenses amounted to Php 25.0 million and Phpl12.5 million in 2011
and 2010 respectively, This resulted to a net income of Php23.6 million in 2010 from
Phpl6.3 million in 2010.

There is no material commitment for capital expenditure as of report date. There is 1o
unusual nature or amount of item that affect the financials. There are no changes in the
estimate of amount reported in prior periods. There were no issuiance, repurchases and
repayments of debt and equity securities for the period, No material events subsequent 10
the end of the year that have not been reflected in the financial statements. No significant
elements of income or loss that did not arise from the issuers continuing operations.

The Company will continue to operate as an investment and management firm to help
Improve the performances of iis subsidiaries. There is no scasonal aspect that had a
material effect on the financial condition or results of operations,

Other Matters
The Parent Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, e-Business Services, Inc., continuously
enter into currency forward trensections with bank counterparties to hedge their foreign

exchange risk. The notminal amount of these contracts are off-balance sheet while revaluation
gains or losses are recognized as Miscellaneous Asset or Miscellaneous Liability respectively.

) Causes for any material changes (+/-8% or more) in the financial statements

Income Statements ltems -Y2011 versus Y2010

11% Increase in internet sales and services
Mainly due to higher media sales, web development and dpr revenue,

26% decrease in maney changing and foreign exchange
Profit opportunities are not as attracted as last year.

8% decrease in interest income
Mainly due to selling a portion of fixed income securities,



34% decrease in Trading gain
Mainly due to selling of equity securities.

50% increase in mutual fund income .
Mainly due to increase in assets under administration,

5% increase In general and administrative expenses
Mainly due to increase management cost,

45% decrease in cost of services and sales
Primarily due to decrease in internet sales and services,

Balance Sheet itams — Y2011 versus Y2010

31% decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Primary due to lower short-term investments.

101% increase in receivables
Mainly due to Western Union transaction,

24% decrease in Financlal Assets at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVPL)
Primary due to lower currency forward contacts,

10% increase in ava[ldbls—for—sa!e securities
Largely due to increase on equities and mutual fund investments.

14% decrease in property, plant and equipment
Mainly due to depreciation cost and no major capital expenditure for this year.

34%6 increase in accounts payable and other current liabilities
Mainly due to increase in current operations.

100% decrease of curreni portion of long lerm debt
Mainly due to debt was fully paid this year.

33% increase in cumulatlve unrealized gain on change in fair value of available-for -sale
Investments
Mainly due to revaluation of fixed Income and equilies securities.

Results of Operations for the Year Ended 2010 (Y2010 vs Y2009)

The Company posted a consalidated net income of Php 716.6 miflion and Php 365.2 miition in
2010 and 2009 respectively. On a per share basis, this tranglates to a Php 0.33 income in 2010
_compared to Php 0,16 income in 2000.

The unprecedented fiscal stimulus from governments worldwide and the continued quantitative
easing by the US Federal Reserve have resulted to a global economy bottoming out in 2009
after suffering from the worst financial crisis since the Great Depression. This, in turn, has set
the stage for a more sustained recovery in 2010, wherein valuations came closer to their fair
value levels. The S&P 500 and the MSCI World Index posted more modest returns of 12.8%
and 9.6%, respectively in 2010 from 23.5% and 27.0%, respectively in 2009, * °

On the domestic front, the smoath transition of power after a successful national elections has
resulted to an mproved business confidence and outlook. The Company's equity portfolio
pained 46,3% in 2010, outperforming the Phisix which rose 37,6% during the same perlod. In
2009, the same portfolio posted a return of 50.6% compared to a 63.0% gain of the benchmark.

Investors were also optimistic that the present government can reln ln the fiscal deficit while

still promoting economic growth. As a result, the yield curve has flattened and. interest rates
have gone down. The Company’s fixed jncome porifolio gained 13.5% in 2010, modestly
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outperforming the HSBC Local Bond Index which rose 12.1% during the same period. In
2009, the same portfolio posted a gain 13.2% compared to an 8.3% gain of the benchmark.

For 2011, the Company maintains its positive outlook on the back of a strengthening US
cconomy. Inflation will be a key watch out as commodity prices continue on the uptrend,

The following sumrmarizes the operating results of the Company's subsidiaries:

eBusiness Services, Ine,

eBiz achieved another record volume in 2010, hitting over 4,0 million transactions worth
in excess of USD 900 million. Value of internationa} transactions grew 9.2% in 2010,
modestly outpacing industry growth of 8.2%.

Despite volume and value growth, net money transfer revenues in 2010 slid 3.3% to Php
371 miltion from Php 383 million in 2009, The modest decline was mainly due to
Western Union discounting the fees charged in some of its remittance corridors to
enhance competitiveness, Furthermore, the strengthening of the Philippine peso against
the US dollar dampened eBiz's earnings as the average exchange rate moved to 45,06 in
2010 from 47.61 in 2009,

Meanwhile, eBiz's efforts to raise operating efficiencies have resulted to cost savings of
aboit Php 19 million, as expensas declined to Php 358 mililon in 2010 from Php 377
millicn in 2009. Due to lower costs; net income in 2010 even grew 18.0% to P67
millien from P56 million in 2009.

For 2011, eBiz expects OFW remittances to further strengthen. The Company likewise
expects to reap the benefits from its Investment in various strategic programs in 2010
and be able to take advantage of the growing remittance industry.

Yehey! Corporation

The consistent losses of Yehey! Corporation during the previous years, prompted the
sharcholders to exercise a quasi-reorganization which involved a re-alignment in
management and rationalization of personnel. The re-organization which started middle
0f 2010, resulted in an improved financial performance of the company.

Gross Revenues of Yehey! in 2010 declined by 20%, from Php38 million in 2009 to
Php30.4 million in 2010, The decline in gross revenues is targely atiributed to the lower
revenues contributed by the web development segment in 2010 of about Php19 millign
from Php28 million in 2009. Likewise, Portal and E- commerce segment contributions
decreased by Phpl.5 milliott, Only the Media Sales and Digital PR segments showed
improvement in revenues. Media Sales revenues increased to Php6 million in 2010 from
Php2.3 million in 2009 while Digital PR revenues marginally improved to Php4.7
million in 2610 from Php4.4 million in 2009,

A number of factors contributed to the general decline in revenues, as follows: a) a more
prudent account acquisition taking into account credit-worthiness of the clieats, b) focus

- made on opetational efficiency which in the long-term, should improve client
satisfaction and therefore increase client retention ratio. The decline in revenues was
expected and seen as temporary in 2010. The trend should improve in 2011.

While revenues declined, more efforts were exerted in bringing down the total costs of
the company. Cost of services decreased by 27%, from Phpd1.5 million in 2009 to
Php30.2 million. The decline is & result of reduction in cost Salaries and Wages, as
personnel count went down to 35 from 68 in a period of | year. Freeze hiring was
initiated, thus ne replacements were made for resigned employees. This mandate is still
currently in place until a most efficient ratio of sales to production is achieved. General
and Administrative Expenses likewise decreased from Php17 million in 2009 to Php11.5
million in 2009 as savings from rent, utilities, transportation and travel were achieved.
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However, bigger provisions were made for Doubtfill Accounts to reflect the existing
collection probability. Said allocation resulted in a bigger operating loss for the
Company from Php23.5 million in 2009 to Php28 million in 2010,

Yehey's investment in Media Contacts lkewise reflected a loss of Php3.i million in
2010, thus, widening the gap of net loss from 2009.

Phileguity Managentent, Inc.

PEMI’s 2010 revenues increased from Php31.4 millicn in 2009t0 Php43.6 million. In
tine with the global economic recovery and improved business outlock locally, the
mutual funds it manages posted net subscriptions of Php 750 million in 2010 while total
assets under management further increased to Php 4.4 billion as of end-2010 from Php
2.5 billien as of end-2009.

PEMI's operating expenses amounted to Php 12.7 miltion and Phpl0.5 million in 2010
and 2009 respectively. This resulted to & net income of Php16.3 miilion in 2010 from
Phpi4.2 million In 2009.

During the first half of 2010, the General Manager of PEMI tendered his resignation,
. which resulted to expansion plans being ternporarily put on hold, However, the asset
‘management ond servicing teams of the Company remain intact such that clients can
continue to expect only the highest standards of professionallsm with respect to
mangagemert of their investments.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 2009 (Y2009 vs Y2008)

The Company posled a ¢onsolidated net income of Php 365 million, reversing the Php 436
million consolidated net loss repistered in 2008. On a per share basis, this translates to 8 Php
0,16 income in 2009 campared to Php 0.19 loss in 2008,

After suffering from the worst financial crisis since the Great Depression, global asset markets
recovered in 2009, The rebound can largely be attributed to the unprecedented fiscal stimulus
from govermments worldwide to avert a prolonged recession. The $&P 500 and the MSCI
World Index were up 23% and 27% in 2009, respectively, compared to a drop of 39% and 42%
in 2008, respectively. Local markets fikewise staged a rebound wherein the Phisix gained 63%
in 2009 compared to a 48% drop the previous year. The Company’s equity portfolio posted a
more modest gain of 31% after incurring a 27% loss in 2008.

Fixed income markets likewise stabilized as credit spreads narrowed and returned close to their
pre-crisis levels, The Company's fixed income portfolio gained 11.3% in 2009, outperforming
the HSBC Local Bond Index which rose 8.2% during the same period,  In 2008, the same
portfolio posted a loss of 1.2% compared to a 1,6% gain of the benchmark. ‘

After 2 fantastic run-up of financial markets in 2009, the Company expects more modest
returns in the equities and fixed income markets moving forward. It will continue to exercise
prudence with respect to its investments especially in the face of uncertainties surrounding the
2010 national clections and a possible soverclgn debt crisis in Europe.

The following summarizes the operating results of the Company's subsidiaries:

¢Business Services, Inc.

eBiz achleved another record volume in 2009, hitting over 3.5 miflion transactions worth
in excess of USD 800 million. Teansaction value grew 32% last year, far outpacing
industry growth of 6%,

Revenues increased by 22% to Php 458 million in 2009 from Php 373 million in 2008.
This was mainly due to a marketing campaign launched by eBiz during the latter part of

15



Item 7.

2008 to capture and convert clients of Westetn Union's former pnnmpal agent.
USD/PHP was also higher on average: 47.64 in 2009 vs. 44,50 in 2008, raising eBiz
revenues by 7%.

Operating Cost increased by 8% from Php3s4 million to Php381 million due 0
additional benefit given to employees and rationalizing higher service cost to service
providers; whileinterest expense and bank charges declined by 51% to Php9.8million
from Php20million.mainly due to better management of operating cash,

2009 posted 2 Net Income of Php56.6 million from Phpl0.0 million in 2008 brought
about by fortifying risk management practices and raising operating efficiencies for the
past two years, After these actions, eBiz Is now poised to expand its network of branches
and take advantage of the growing remittance industry,

Yehey! Corporation

The Company posted revenues of Php3g million for the whole year 2009, 3% lower than
Php 39.2 millfon revenues posted for the year 2008. The decline in revenues was brought
about by a general decline In advertising spend from 2008 to 2009. Revenues from
media sales decreased by about 43%, from Phpd.0 million to Php2.3 million, Web
Development revenues, meanwhile, posted small growth of 2% from P28.4 million to
Php 28.9 million, Portal revenues also decreased by 84% from P6 million in 2008 to
F1.3 million in 2009, as the Company has been slowly been migrating systems from
Regular Search to Vertical Search, The Portal Streams are likewise recently launched
and are expected to yield higher page views and revenues in the next few months still.
Despite said revenuve decline it media sales, web development and portal revenues, the
latest addition to the siream of revenues, Digital PR, posted revenues Php4.4 million, E
commerce revenues likewise increased by 44% from Php0.66 million to Php0.94 million

Cost and Cperating Expenses increased by 9% from Php60 million in 2008 to Php66
million in 2009. Note that 2009 figures reflect the full cost of the expansion at
approximately 65 employees, while 2008 figures still reflect pre-expansion cost with
approximately 45 employees,

Although costs have been managed at minimum levels, revenues are not able to cover
for the full costs resulling in a net loss of Phpl6.5 million vis-2-vis net [oss of Php7.4
million In 2008, In 2009, however, income from Media Contacts of about Php6,6
million has improved the bottom line of Yehey, bringing down the Net Loss to about
Php10 million.

Phllequlity Management, fuc.

PEMI’s 2009 revenues slightly increased from Php34.8 million in 2008 to Php35.1
miltion. The muteal funds it manages posted net redemptions of Php 321 million in
2009 while total assets undet management increased to Php 2.5 billion at end-2009.

PEMI manage to reduce its operating expanse by 14.5% from Php12.3 million in 2008 to
P10.5 million in 2009. This resulted to = net income of Phpl4.4 mlllmn in 2009 from
Phpl1.7 militon in 2008,

Financial Statements

The audited consolidaled finencial statements and schedules [isted in the accompanylng
index to Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules are filed as part of this Form
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Information mi Independent Accountant

SGV & Co. is the external accountant of the Company. The aggregate fees billed for each of
the last two years for professional services rendered by the Company's external auditors in
connection with annual audit of the Consolidated and Parent Company Financial Statements for
statutory and regulatory filings are summarized below:

Audit Fee 704,704.00 666,344.00
Tax Services “ -
Other Fees - -
TOTAL 704,704.00 666,344,00

The Independent Accountant does not render tax accounting compliance, advice, planning and
other forms of tax services for the Corporation, The Independent Accountant zlso does not
render other services for the Corporation.

[tem 8. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accuuntlng and Finnncial

Disclosure

There are no changes and matters of disagreement with accountants on any acccuntmg &
financial disclosuresthe Jast two (2) most recent fiscal years.

PART II - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Item 9.  Directors and Executive Olficers of the Registrant

01 als & [l ¢

Director 3003 to present |lgnacio B, Gimenez Filipino | 67

Director 2002 to present |Valentino L. Sy Filipino | 36

Chairman & CEO 2005 to present o

Director 2006 to prasent |Edmundo P. Bunyi, Jr. | Filipine | 47

President & COO '

Ditector 2003 to present |Joseph L. Ong Filipina | 9%

Treasurer 3005 vo present

Director 1999 1o present | Wilky N, Octer Filipino | 33

Director 2503 o present {Roberte Z, Lorayes Fillpino | 6§

Digectar 1993 1w 2000 & |Wilson L. Sy Filipino | 39
12003 vo present

Director 2005 to present [ Antonio R. Samson Filipino | 6§

Corporarte Secretary 1983 10 present | A, Bayani K. Tan Filipino | 56

Asst, Corporate Secretary (2011 o present [Danvin S. Ocampo Filipino | 28

In accordance with the Corporation’s By-Laws, the members of the Beard of Dirgctors are

elected annually and therefore serve for a year after election.

The following is a brief write-up of the Baard of Directors and Executive Officers.
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Valenting C. Sy

Mr. 8y is currently the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, He has been a
Director of the Company since 2002, He is the President of Equinox International Corp. (1996 -
present). He was the Regional Manager of Duferco International Trading Lid., Taiwan (1987 —
_1995) and Erlanger Metals Ltd., Hong Kong (1979 - 1986). All these companies are engaged in
trading of steel. He holds a degree in Industrial Management Engineering from the De La Salle
University.

Edmundo P, Buoyi, Jr,

Mr, Bunyi is currently the President and Chief Operations Officer of the Company. He became
a Director of the¢ Company in October 2006, Concurrently, he is a Director (2006-present) of
Yehey! Corporation,anonline search engine and web portal. & e-Business Services, Inc., a
Western Union franchise (2006-Jan, 2008). He was appointed President and Chief Executive
Officer of ¢eBusiness Services, Inc. effective February 2008 - present. He is also the President
and Chief Operations Officer of Philequity Management, Inc., an investment company adviser,
since October 2006. He is the former Senjor Vice President and Treasurer of International
Exchange Bank, Assistant Vice President and Head of FCDU & FX Sales of United Coconut
Planters Bank, Assistant Manager for Corporate Banking Group of Far £ast Bank and Trust
Company, and Assistant Manager for the Corporate Banking Department of Union Bank of the
Philippines. He holds a degree in Management Engineering from the Atenso dé Manila
University.

Ignacio B, Gimenez

Mr, Gimenez became a Director of the Company in 2003. He is the Treasurer of 1. B, Gimenez
Securities, Inc., a stock brokerage firm (1976 - present). ' He is the President of the following
mutual funds, namely, Philequity Fund, Inc., Philequity Dollar Income Fund, [nc., Philequity
Index Fund, Inc. and Philequity Money Market Fund, Inc. He is also the Sales-and Marketing
Manager of Society Publishing, Inc, (1991 - present). He holds a graduate degree in Business
Adminisiration from the Asian Institute of Management (1970) and a college degree from the
University of the Philippines (1967).

. Joseph L. Ong

Mr. Ong is the treasurer of the Company and became a director in 2003. He 5 a director as
well of Yehey! Corp, eBusiness Services Inc, and Philequity Managément Inc. Currently, he is
president of Chemcenter Corporation, a company engaged in import and distribution of
industrial chemicals. Previously, he was connected with Exxon Chemical/Exxon Corp holding
positions in sales, marketing, planning, and audit functions both here and abroad. He holds a
degree in Chemical Engineering, Magna Cum Laude, from De La Salle University, -

Willy N, Ocier

Filipino, 55, is the Chainman and President of the Company and has been a Director since 29
July 1999. He also serves as Co-Vice Chairman of Belle Corporation and Highlands Prime,
Inc., as Chairman of Tagaytay Midlands Golf Club, Inc., APC Group, Inc., and Sinophil
Corporation, He is also the current Vice Chairman of Tagaytay Highlands International Golf
Club, Inc. and is a Director of Vantage Equities, Inc., He was also previously affiliated with
Bastern Securities Development Corporation being its past President and Chief Operations
Officer.

Roberto Z. Lorayes
Mr, Lorayes became a Director of the Company in 2003. Currently, he is the Chairman (1994 —
present} of Philequity Management, (nc,, a fund management company, and President (1993 -

present) of Strategic Equities Corporation, a stockbrokerage firm. He is also & Director {1998 -
present) of Hiedelberg Motors Corporation, dealer of automobiles,
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Wilson L. Sy

Mr. Sy was reelected to the Board in 2005. He is a former Director of the Company (1993 —
2000). Currently, he is the Vice Chairman of Asian Alliance Holdings, Corp. and Director of
Philequity Management, Inc., Xcell Property Ventures, Inc., and Monte Oro Respurces &
Energy, Inc, Mr. Sy is also an Independent Director of the reparting corporationg The Country
Club at Tagaytay Highlands, Inc., Tagaytay Highlands International Golf Club, Inc., Tagaytay
Midiands Golf Club, Inc., and The Spa and Lodge at Tagaytay Highlands, He is presently the
Chairman of the Manila Stack Exchange Foundation, Inc. He was a former Chairman of the
Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc.; a Director of Basic Petroleum & Minerals, Basic Diversified
Ind., Belle Corp., Saniwares Manufacturing, A. Brown Corporation, and Jollibee Foods
Corporation; and a trustee of the PSE Foundation, Inc.He holds a degree in Management
Engineering from the Ateneo de Manila University.

. Antonio R. Samson

Mr. Samson became a Dirgetor of the Company in 2005, He Is coticurrently the Group
Chairman, Chief Business Strategist of DDB Worldwide Communications Group, Inc, an
advertising company. He is the former President and CEQ of OMD Philippines, where he also
previously served as Chairman. The company is an international media planning and buying
agency with regional office in Singapore. He is also 8 thrice-weekly columnist of Business
World (since 1984 in then Business Day) and is the President of the Manila Chamber Orchestra
Foundation and the Metropolitan Museum, and Chairman of the Advertising Foundation. From
1982 to 2003, Mr. Samson worked with the Philippine Long Distance Telephone Company,
where his last position from 1999 until his early retirement was Executive Vige President, and
concurrently President and CEQ of MediaQuest Holdings, Ine.

Mr. Samson holds a Bachelor’s of Arts Degree in Economics from the Ateneo de Manila
University, a Masters Degree in Business Administration from the Asian Institute of
Management, and a Masters Degree in Business Economics from the University of the Asia and
the Pacific (then Center for Research snd Communication).

A. Bayani K. Tan

Filipino, 56, is the Corporate Secretary of the Company. He is also currently a Director,
Corporate Sectetary, or both, of the fellowing reporting companies: First Abaous Financial
Holdings Corporation, Belle Corporation, Sinophil Corporation, Tagaytay Highlands
International Golf Club, Inc,, Tagaytay Midlands Golf Club, Inc.,, The Country Club at
Tagaytay Highlands, In¢., The Spa snd Lodge at Tagaytay Highlands, Inc., Vantage Equities,
Inc., Touch Solutions, Inc., [-Remit Inc., Destiny Financial Plans, Inc., Philequity Funds, Inc.,
' Philequity PSE Index Funds, Inc., Philequity Dollar Income Fund, Inc., Philequity Peso Bond
Fund, Inc. Philequity Strateglc Growth Fund, Inc. and TKC Stegl Corporation. He is the
Managing Partner of Tan Venturanza Valdez Law Offices and also a Director, Corporate
Secretary, or both of private companies such as Sterling Bank of Asla Inc, Oakridge Properties,
Inc, JTKC Equitles, Inc., The Discovery Leisure Company, Inc,, Goodyear Steel Pipe
Corporation, Southetn Visayas Property Heldings, Inc., Helfa-Phil, Inc,, Monte Oro Resources
& Energy [nc., FHE Properties, Inc., SCT Furnishing, Inc. City Cane Corperation, Destiny
LendFund, Inc, E-Business Services, Inc. Yehey Corporation, Treasure Steelworks
Cormporation, Tera Investtnents, Inc., Star Equities, Inc., Medicare Plus, Inc., Pharex
HealthCorp., and Highlands Gourmet Speclalist Corp. Atty. Tan is a member of the Philippine
Bar. He holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree from the San Beda College, a Bachelor of Laws
Degree from the University of the Philippines College of Law, and a Master of Laws Degree
from the New York University School of Law,

Darwin 8. Ocampo

Filipino, 28, is the Assistant Corporate Secretary of the Company. He is also currently the
Asgistant Corgorate Secretary of the following reporting companies: Tagaytay Highlands
International Golf Club, Inc., The Spa and Lodge at Tagaytay Highlands Inc, Yehey!
Corporation,Philequity Fund, Inc., Philequity Peso Bond Fund, Ine,, Philequity PSE [ndex

9



Fund, Inc,, Philequity Balanced Fund, Inc., and Philequity Dollar Income Fund, tnc, He Is also
the Director, Corporate Secretary, or Assistant Corporate Secretary of private companies such
as Mio Magazine, Inc., Arquee Corporation, Elevate Financia] Sotutions Inc., Hambrecht &
Quist Philippines, Inc,, and Professional Parking Management Corporation, Atty. Ocampo is a
member of the Philippine Bar and a Special Lecturer in the Pamantasan ng Lungsod ng
Mzynila. He holds a Bachelor of Arts in Political Science Degree and a Juris Doctor Degree
from the Unlversity of the Philippines,

Family refationships among Directors:
Messrs, Valentino Sy and Wilson Sy are brothers,

Independent Director

Mr. Antonio R. Samsonwas nominated and reelected as the independent directors of the
Company in compliance with the requirements of Rule 38 of the Secutities Regulation Code.

[nvolvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

The Company and its major subsidiaries and associales are not involved in, nor are any of their
properties subject to, any material legal proceedings that could potentially affect their
operations and financial capabilities.

Except as provided below, the Company is not aware of any of the following events wherein
any of its directors, nominees for election as director, executive officers, underwriter or controf
person were involved during the past five (5) years:

() any bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business of which any of the above persons
was a general partner or executive officer either ot the time of the bankruptey or within two
years prior to that time;

(b)any ordér, judgment, or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of any
court of competent jurisdiction, domestic or forelpn, permanently or temporarily enjoining,
barring, suspending or otherwise limiting the Involvement of any of the above persons in
any type of business, securitics, commodities or banking activities; and,

(c) any finding by a domestic or foreign court of competent jurisdiction (in civil action), the
SEC or comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign exchange or electronic
marketplace or sclf regulatory organization, that any of the above persons has violated a
securities or commodities law, and the judgment has not been reversed, suspended, or
vacated,

As a result of the delay In the delivery of the facilities of the Universal Leisure Club, Inc. (ULC),
some of its members have initiated lepal actions against ULC, the Universal Rightfield Property
Holdings, Inc. {URPHI) and the Universal Leisure Corp. (ULCorp), as well as their respective
incumbent and former officers and directors, including their former Corporate Secretary, A. Bayani
K. Tan. The cases filed include:

(i) A Complaint for Syndicated Estafa (docketed as 1.S, No. 02-50443-F) which was disurissed on
I8 June 2003 by the Clty Prosecutor of Mandaluyong City for lack of probable cause and
which dismissal was affirmed on 26 May 2004 by the Department of fustice on a Petition for
Review filed by the complainants therein;

(ii) A criminal case for Estafa and Large-Scale Swindling (docketed as Criminal Case Mo, Q02-
114052) before the Regianal Trial Court (RTC) of Quezon City. This case was dismissed by the
RTC in its Omnibus Order dated 29 November 2005, which dismissal was affirmed with
finality on 22 February 2007 by the RTC due to cormplainant’s failure to file a proper notice of
appeal within the prescribed period.

(fii.) Civil actions for breach of contract and/or annulment of contract, specific performance,

quieting of title and reimbursement, damages with request for receivership and preliminary
attachment (Civil Case Nos, MC03-075, MC03-077, and MC04-082) before the RTC of
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Mandaluyong City, which coses have been setiled and the RTC Maudnluyong hes on 8
February 2006, promulgated a Joint Decision approving the Scilement Agreerent,
Supplemental Agreement, and Second Supplemental Agreement re; Civil Case Nos. MCO03-
077 and MC04-082, RT'C Mandnluyong noting the settlement of Civil Case Nos, MC03-077
and MCO04-082 has likewise issued an Order dated 18 May 2006 re: Civil Case No. MC03-075
holding that the alorementioned settlement ngreement likewise puls an end to Civil Case Mo,
MC03-073, as it involves substantially similar factual sniecedents, and holding further that the
complaint and couterclaims of the partics are withdrawn with prejudice,

Significant Employees

No employee Is expécted by the Corporationio make a significant contribution ta the
business.

Item 10. Exccutive Compensnution

Except for Messrs. Edmundo P. Bunyi, Jt., all of the Company’s directors and officers
have nol received any forne of compensation from inceplion up to present other thun a per
diem of P6,000,00 for cach meeting attended and nnnual per diem during stockholders’
meoting, Thete is no employment contract between the Company and the above-named
exccutive officer or current exceutive officers. In ndditian, except as provided below, there
are no compensatory plans or arrangenents with respect named exceutive officers that
resulted in or will result from the resignation, retirement or termination of such executive
dircctor or from a change-in-control in the Company.

The Company has a stock option plan -covering all its officers, directors and regular
einployces, however, the plan is tiot yet elTective since the Company has not designated the
number of shares to be covered by the plan, The Campany has ne price or stock warrants,

Summary Conipensation Table (Annual Compensution)

Nnme and Principal Position Anntal Compensation
Valentino C. Sy : g T —

Chairman & CEO

Edmundo P, Bunyi, Jr.

President & CQO

Joseph L. Ong

. | Treasurer . Eh

All officers and diveciors as a group 2012 (Estimate) 5,511,000.00
2011 6,087,284.15
2010 5,261,529.24
2009 5,185,558.74

N

Ttemn 11, Sccurity Ownership of Certaln Beaelicial Owners and Management
L Security Qwnershipof Certain Record and Beneficial Owners

As of 31 Mareh 2012, Vantage Equities, Inc. knows no one who buu.l'ch]ly owns
in excess of 3% of the Company s common stock exeept as set forth in the table
below,

Title of Namc aad Address of Retationsitip Record ()
Class Record/Benefichl with ilie Beueflelnl  Cllizenship
Ohwhey Compnny (b) Owner

Number of

Shares Percent of Class

Conmmon . | PCD Nomines Carp. (*} Stockholther : Fillpinn 2,128,580,395
GH* MSE Building
Ayaly Avenue, Makati

(*HCD Nomines Corporation (PCONC) is a ulm!br arvd subshdiary af Phtlipphee Conral Depository,
Ine. (PCD). Thy !’uref chal uwners of the shares wnder the name of PCONC are PCE's pariicipants whe
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ol the shares in their aven behalf or in behalf of ifieir respuctive clients.No single PCL participan

curremly awny more than 5% of the Corporation’s shares forming part of the PCONC acconnt except as
Jotlaws:

Titte of Name and Address of Relationshig wiih Ametnt® and Nature of !
Clnss Record/Beneficll Owner Campany Beneficin! Qwnership Citlzenship  Perceut of Cinss

Common | Wealth Scourdties, Tnc, Stockholder 1,752, 741,820 r Filiping
241 East Tower, PSLE Centre,
ixchange Read, Grnigus Center,
ffusig Ciy .

Ms, Ruby Tan - Finunee
Manager

Title of ‘ Nome and Address of Record/Beneficld — Relatlonship Awount? and Porcent of

Clrss
Cominon Wealth Sceuritiés, Ine.
21/ East Tower, PSE Cenlre,

Exchange Rend, Orntigas Center, Pasig Cily
Ms. Ruby Tun - Fignace Manager

Owner with Company -Nntlgﬁ;&[ﬁ:ﬁ;ﬁcml Cldzenship

1,752,741,820

Class,
IFittping £2,15%

Stockholder

*Fhe stuees shnll be voted by the person these shareholders shafl duly nuthorize for the  purpose,Ne
single luneliein] owner of these shares own more than 5% of the shares ot theCompany except 28 tollows:

Name and Address of Record Owner aud

%% Held
Relationship with Tssuer

Ralationship with Citizensiip  Numbree of
Compnny Shnres

Common | Crentive Wisdom, Ine.

2% Bast Tower, PSE Centre,

Exchange Rond, Ortipas Ceoter, Pasip City
Ms. Ruby Tan - Comp, See,

Stackholder Filipino 684,611,968 3250%

2, Security Ownership of Management

The following table shows the share beneficially owned by the directors and executive
officers of the Company as of3 1 Mirch 2012;

Amgunt & Natnro of
TittoofClass Nameof Record/Bemeficial Qnzer Record/Beneficial  Citizenship PercentofClas
Ouaership 0 )

Conmon | Ednunda 2. Bunyi, . 19,060 [t b) Filipine -
Commen  |iznacio B. Gimenes 12,504 [r.0) Filipino -
Conron  |Robeno Z. Loayes 25,000 (1 b) Filipine .-
Conmon | Witly X Outer £2,500 [r &) Filipino

Common  |Joseph L. Qug 12,300 fu b) Filipine -
Common |Antons R Sanson ‘ 62500 [r b) Fiiping -
Common  |Valentine L. §y 173,006 fr b Filipine
Common [WilsonL, Sv 1,139,000 [r-b] Filipine 0.03%n
Comsnon | A, Bayani 3 Tan 1437 [ b] Filipine
TOTAL  |Aggregate ownership of all divectors and offlcers 1511437 frh) Filipino 0.0729

a5 A grovp wunnawed

Youing Trust HTolders of 5% or More

~ There is no party which holds any voting trust or any similar ageeement for 5% or mare of
Vantage’s voling securities.



Item 2.

Tters 14.

)
1

Changes i Control

The Company is not aware of any arrgngement that may result in & change in contrel of the
Company, '

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The Company has not been a party during the last two (2) years to any other transaction or
propesed transaction, in which any director or executive officer of the Company, or any
security holder owning 10% or more of the securities of the Company or any member of the
immediate family of such persons, had a direct or indirect material interest.

Vantage Equities, Ing. is not under the control of any parent company.

The following are the transactions presented in the Notes to Audited Financial as Related
Party Transactions:

i2.1 Short-term advances made by PEMI to Philequity Fund, Inc. were presented under
‘Loans and receivables’ Inn the amouat of PSM.

12.2 PEM| has a consultancy agreement with a board member of the Company amotnting
to P1.8M accrued in 2011 and subsequently patd in February 2012.

12.3 In 201 1, Yehey!, eBiz Financial Services, Inc. and Philequity Fund, Ine, participated in
the Parent Company's investment in credit~linked note by purchasing P359.52M at face
value, The Company serves as the receiving agent of all coupon interest for the entire
duration of the participation.

12,4 The Company waived the collection of rental for the lease of office of Yehey! of the
years 2010 and 201 1. ’

12.5 In 201 1, 2010 and 2009, the Parent Company paid certain expenses of e-Business,
Yehey!, PEMI and iCurrencies, which were later billed for refmbursement,

12,6 Compgensation of Key management personnel of the Group:

{ {
Salaries and wages 15,555,985.00 16,445,855.00 17,880,831.00
Retirement benefits 848,770.00 220,140.00 141,738.00
16,404,755.00 16,665,995.00 18,022,569.00

PART IV - CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Compzny has been menitoring compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular No. 6,
Series of 2009, as well as other relevant SEC circulars and rules on pgood corporate
govemnance. All directors, officers, and employces complied with all the leading practices
and principles on good corporale governance as embodied in the Corporation's Manual. The
Company complied with the appropriate performance self-rating assessment and performance
ovaluation system to determine and measure compliance with the Manual of Corporate
Govermnance,

PART V - EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES
Exhibits and Reports on SEC Form 17-C
a.  Exhibits — See accompanying index to exhibits.

The following exhibit is filed as a separate section of this report:
Subsidiaries of the Company
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The other exhibits, as indicated in the Index to Exhibits are either not applicable to the
Company or require no answer,

Reports on SEC Form }7-C

" SEC Form 17-C filed 30May2011
Letter to PSEl dated 26 & 27 May, 2011 Re:r Resignation of Ms. Violeta Luymas
Independent Director

SEC Form 17-C filed 31May 2011
Letter to PSEl dated 31May 2011Re:Schedule of Annual Stockholders’ Meetingand
Record Date

SEC Form 17-C filed 14 July 2011

Letter to PSEL dated 13 July 201 1Re: Minutes of the Annual Stockholders” Meeting (List
of elected Directors& Officers of the Corporation and List of elected members of various
Board Comm ittees

SEC Form 17-C filed 14November 2011

Letter to PSEI dated 9 Nov.2011Re:Appointment of Atty Darwin S. Ocampo
astheCorporation's Assistant Corporate Secretary
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SIGNATURLS

Pursuant 1o the requirements of Seatlon |7 of the Securities Regulation Code, and Section 141 of the
Corporatian Code, this report is signed on behalf af the issuer by the undersigned, thereto duly authorized,
in the City of Pasig.

YANTAGE EQUITIES, INC.

By:
J
VALENHNO C. 8%7 O MARCO PABUNYT, JR
Chairman & CEO et & COO
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MAL ANGELICA
Comptroller

06 JUN 2012
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VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC,

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

FORM 17 - A, ltem 7

: Page No.
Consolidated Financial Statements

Staternent of Management’s Respansibility for Financial Statements

Report of Independent Public Accountant

Consolidated Balance Sheels as of December 31, 2011 and 2010

Consclidated Statements of Income and Retained Enrmnings for the
Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended
December 31,2011, 2010 and 2009

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Supplementary Scliedules

Report of Independent Public Accountants on Supplementary Schedules

A.  Marketable Securities — (Current Marketable Equity Securities and
Other Short-Term Cash Investments)

B.  Amounts Recelvable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related
Parties and Principal Stockholders (Other than Affiliates)

C. Non-Current Marketable Equity Securities, Other Long-Term
Investments and Other Investments

D. Indebtedness to Unconsolidated Subsidiaries and Affiliates

E.  Property, Plant and Equipment

F.  Accumulated Depreciation

G. Intangible Assets — Other Assets

H. Long-Term Debt

I.  Indebtedness to Affiliates and Related Parties {Long-Term Loansfrom Related
Companies)

4. Guarantee of Securities of Other Issuers

K.  Capital Stock

These schedules, which are required by Part IV (a) of RSA Rule 48, have been omitted because
they are either not required, not applicable or the information required to be presented is included
in the Company'’s consolidated financial statements or the notes to consolidated financtal
statements, ’
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Form 17-A
No. Page No.
(3) Plan of Acquisition, Reerganization, Arrangement,
Liquidation, or Succession ‘ *

{5} Instruments Defining the Rights of Security Holders,

Including Indentures o *

(8) °  Voting Trust Agreement *

9 Material Coniracts _ *
(10) Annual Report to Security Holders, Form 17-Q or

Quarterly Report to Security Holders *

(13)  Letterre; Change in Certifying Accountant , *

{16} Report Fumished to Security Holders *

(18)  Subsidiaries of the ‘Regisn'am 7 *
" (19}  Published Report Regarding Matters Submitted to

Vaote of Security Holders *

(20) Consent of Experts and Independent Counsel *

(21)  Powerof Attorney *

{29) Additional Exhibits *

»  These exhibits are either or not applicable to the Company or require no answer.
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QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TQ SECTION 17 OF THE
SECURITIES REGULATION CODE AND SRC RULE I7(2)(h)w~——-—_..._w__

THEREUNDER
L For the quarterly period ended Mareh 31, 2012
2, SEC ldenﬁﬂci‘\lion Number AS-092-4705Y
3 BIR Tax Identification No. 002-010-620
4. Exact name of registrant as specified in its eharter.
VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC,
S5, Pravince, Country or other jurisdiction of Incorporation or Qrganization:

DPhitippines
-
::J {SEC Usc Only}
Industry Clagsification Code
Address of Principal Offiee;

UUnii 2703A Last Tower, Philippine Stoek Exchange Centro,
Exchange Road, Ortipas Center, Pasig City

7. Registrant's elophone number, including area code: (632) 685-8094

8. Former name, fonmer address, and former fiscal year, if changed since lasi report
Not applicahlo

9. Securifies registered pursuant to Sections 4 and § of the RSA
Number of Shares of
Title of Bach Class - Common Stoek Outstanding
Commen Stack, I'1.00 par value 2,235,390,633

19, Are any or all of these securities listed an the Philippine Stock Exchange.
Yes [X] No[ ]

1. Check whether the registrant:

#) has fAled all reports vequired 10 bie {iled by Scetion 11 of the Revised Securities
Act (RSA) and RSA Rule tl{a}1 thercunder and Sections 26 and 141 of (he
Corporation Code of the Philippines during the preceding 12 months (or for such
shorter period that the registrant was required to {ile such reports):

Yes [X] Nol )

b) has been subject to sueh ing requirements Tor the past 90 days,
Yes [X] No[ ]



PART I = FINANCIAL INFORMATION

-

Item 1. Financial Statements

The Consolidated Financial Statements are filed as part of this Form [7-Q.

Iten 2. Mansgement’s Discussion and Analysis or Pian of Operations

Financlal Highliphts

In millions Maweh 2012 December 2011 December 2000

Balance Sheet

Assels 6,255.29 5,842.98 5,301.53
Liabilities 159.98 309.62 436,20
Stockholders’ Equity 5,995,31 5,533,36 4,865.33
Book Yalue per Share as adjusted w/ ‘

25% stock dividend & Treasury Shores 2.7 2.63 231
Revenues 23447 1,052.52 1,226.19
Expenscs 120.97 311,79 508,84
Other Income-/ (Charges) (1.04) (10.91) (0.73)
Net ncome 102.31 529,32 T716.62
Eamings per Share 0.05 0.25 0.33
Cuirent Ratio 6.20 4.87 5.3
Assets 1o Equity [ 1.1 1.1
Linbilitles o Equity 0.04 04 0.1
Retum on Ave, Assels 2.00% 9.50% 14,60%
Return on Ave. Equity 2.00% 10.20% [5.90%

Results of Operations for the Quarter Ended Macch 31,2012

The Company posted a consolidated net income of Php 102.3 million for the first semester of Y2012, It slid down by
36% compared to same period last year of Php 159,6 million. On a per share basis, the company earned 0.05 centavos
compared to 07 centavos for the periads under review.

Pattial easing of global liquidity conditions In the first quarter, especially in Europe, has fueled investors® risk appetites
and resulted to hefly gains in equities. In particular, the EU came up with twin solutions to eddress the debt crisis in the
region; a fiscal pact that tackled the problems of highly-indebted EU countrles, and a long-term refinancing operation of
the ECB to provide liquidity to EU banks. Apart from the EU, the US Fed |ikewise announced that they are going lo
maintain near zero rates through 2014 coupled with a possibility of another round of quantitative easing. As a result,
the S&P 500 and the MSCI World Index registered retums of 11.5% and 11.4% respectively for the first quarter of 2012
compared 1o 5.4% and 4.6% same period last year. Locally, the 30-company Philippine index gained 16.8% in 1Q12



compared.to -3.5% same period last year. The Company’s equity portfolio meanwhile posted retwrns of 14.9% in 1Q12
compared to 2,7% a year ago,

On the fixed income side, local long-term yields were on a downtrend for the first part of the quarter as the Bangko
Sentral cut its overnight rate to 4% amidst a benign inflation environment. However, ylelds backed up in March due to
a 50-cent fare hike that could eventunlly exert upward pressure to consumer prices. With this, the Company’s fixed
income portfolio gained 1,7% in 1Q12 compared to -0.3% same period last year. It modestly outperformed the HSBCG
Local Bond Index which gained 1,4% in 1Q12 compared o -1.0% same period last year.

The following summarizes the operating results of the Company's subsidiries;
¢Business Services, Inc. (“eBiz")

¢Biz continue to achieve record money transfer volume, hitting over a million transactions worth in excess of USD 233
million for the first quarter of 2012, However, despite transaction growth, revenues fell 9.7% to Php 79.4 million due to
the contractual reduction in the Company's share of fees from Westem Union and an appreciating currency, This
decline in money transfer revenues was cushioned by revenues from other products which daubled to P11.7 million
from P5.7 million same period last year.  Meanwhile, operating expenses fell by 3% to Php 74.5 million as the
‘company continued to rationalize its costs, After depreciation and taxes, eBiz posted a net income of Php 10.3 million
for the first quarter 0f 2012, up 18% from Php 8.7 million same perod last year.

Yehey! Corporation (*Yehey™)

Totul assets increased by P3 million, Current assels by P9.3 million due to Increase in Comipany’s trade receivables.
Non-current assets increased by PA.7 million due to decrease in loans and Available-for-sale securities,

Total cost and expenses decreased by P1.51 million due to decrease in Salarles and  Wages and other cosis such as
depreciation, subscription and writer’s fee, among others,

Total revenues of the Company decreased by P.96 million from P9,6 million to P10.56 million as of March 31, 2012
and 2011 respectively, This is due to substantial decrease web development, e-commerce and stard revenues,

As such, net income of the Campany is P2.2 million in2012 from 1.65 million in 2011,
Philequity Management, Inc, (“PEMI")

Net revenues in 1Q12 climbed to Php23.7 million from Php 15.3 million in 1QI1 or a 55% increase. In line with the
increase in investors® risk appetites, the funds that the Company manages experienced net subscriptions of Php 134,9
million for the first three months of 2612 compared to net redempticns of Php 177.6 million same period Iast year.
Furthermore, total assets undet management as of ¢nd-March 2012 increased 43% to Php 5.8 billion from Php 4.0
billion as of end-March 2011,

Expenses for the first three months of the year were 119 higher vs. last year. YTD net profit Increased 46% to Php 12.7
million from Php 8.7 million last year.

There is no material commitment for capital expenditure as of report date, There is no unusual nature of amaunt
of item that affect the financials. There are no changes in the estimates of amount reported in the prior periods,
There were no issuance, repurchases and repayments of debt and equity securities for the periad, No material
events subsequent to the end of the interim periad that have not been raflected in the financial statements for the
interim period. No significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the issuers continuing

operations.

The Company will continue to operate as an investment and management firm to help improve the performances
of its subsidiaries, There is no seasonal aspect that had a material effect on the financial condition or results of
operations,



Causes for any material changes (+/~ 5% or movre) in the financial statements

Income Statement items — nine morith period ending 31-Mar- 2012 versus 31-Mar-201 [

16% decrease in internet sales and services
Mainly due to lower-media sales, web development and dpr revenue.

14% decrease in mongy changing and foreign exchange
Profit opportunities are not as attracted as last year,

9% increase in interest income
Mainly due to additional fixed income securities.

35% increase in mutual fund income
Mainly due to increase in assets under administration,

6% decrease in general and administrative expenses
Largely due to management cost reduction effort.

13% decrease in cost of services and sales
Primarily due ta decrease in internet sales and services.

20% decrease in depreciatiott and amortization
Lesser acquisition of property, plant and equipment for the year.

Balance Sheet items - March 31, 2012 versus end 2011
44% decrease in receivables
Mainly due to Western Union transactions,

31% decrease in Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit end Loss (FVPL)
Primarily due to lower currency forward contracts.

7% increase In available-for-sale securities _
Largely due to increase in equities and mutual fund investments.

3% decrease in accrued retirement cost
Mainly due to tower accrual of retirement cost for this year.

60% decrease in cumulative unrealized gain on change in fair value of available-for-sale investments
Mainly due to revaluation of fixed income and eqhlties securities.



ART Il - OTHER INFORMATION

PFRS 9 — Financial Instruments: Recopnition and Measurement

The Fund has decided not to early adopt either PFRS 9 (2009) of PFRS 9 (2010) for its 2011 annual financial
reporting. [t shall conduct in early 2012 another impact evaluation using the outstanding balances of financial
statements as of 31 December 2011, The Fund’s decision whether to early adopt either PFRS 9 (2009) or

PFRS 9 (2010) for its 2012 financial reporting shall be disclosed in its interim financial statements as of
March 31, 2012,



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 17 of the Securities Regulation Code, and Section 141 of the
Corporation Code, this report is signed on behalf of the issuer by the undersigned, thereto duly authorized,
in the City of Pasig,

VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC.

By:

MA. AN [CA D, CABANIT
OIC Compjroller



VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
. Unaudited Avdited ~
: Aurch 31,2012 - - 31Decdl .

ASSETS ] " . N ,_- T - — Bl

Current Assets ‘ S :

Cash and cash equivatenrs (Note 5) . 901,394,708 530,411,971
Regelvables — net (Fote 8)} . 564,829,796 834,397,002
Einanciol Asgets ot Fair Volue through pmﬁ; orloss (FVPL) (‘Iota 7) 66,324,945 §6,239,792

Prepoid taees and other cutrent assets (\lote LI L. 18269048 .. - 13,899,226
Tota] Current Assets .o Lo ] .550.9] 7 617: - 1465347996 ¢
‘Noneurreat Assets L
“Available-for-sole secuddes (Note 8) 1t 63.: S04, m o 4,299.215 023
JInvestment ity assoclates & Tv—net .90,1 0317 495 TRL
‘Deforred Tax Asgeps 3819683 T 2030989
"Go odwill Note 10y 3,054,985 3,654,935

Bropery and equipment ~net (Nate 16) . 43,301, 0!7 . -14 331,659
:Qthe noncusvent assets - net (Note 11) . 23192023 4 - . 23290539
Yol Nobeuryent Assets 37042372036 3376491976

' 6 “55 90.543 L, 5,841:939,973 .
ILIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY '

Current Liohilirles . ' -
-Avcounts payable and other curent labilifies (Note 13) 943878610 - 288,465,034
1Incoms tax payable ' 19,576, m - e ors-.'on-
1Current Porien of long-temm debt o :

Totad Current Liohilities - - 3“52,365 848 ,30Q,533 085 :

Noncurrent Liabilitles ' P '

‘Deferred tas Habitities 903.914_ ' ! 0'03,292
Arcrued Retirement Costs 6,711,665 . 7,030,626
| Asset Retirement Obligadon L. T .
!Total Noncurrent Liabilities : 1,615479 .. 8,033,918
: . - A59.98Y:327 . 308,572,003

' 'Stockholders'rquin

‘Equity artributable to equity holdars-of the parenh

Cepital stock~2 porvalue -

Authorized - 2,250,000,000 Pl oAl e e
Issued ~2.235,390,633 " 22353500635 '2,235,350,635
Stock Issuence Cost of a subsidiary (3.209,910) . {3.200,910}

Cunnidative net unrentized gein on chenge in foirvalue of  av, nilnble- EEE o '

for-sals investments 904,789,944 558,384,899
‘Ratained aamings : 2,9:5.770 039 2,801,387, 331

Treasury Stacks L (188,520,838) (188,520,838)
iMinority Interest - 131, 039.238 Ao 129955635
"Tofal Stockholders® Equity 5.995,309&16 *.-'5,533,367,970

5:200,543 - 5841939975

Sez accompanying Netes lo Consolidated Financlal Statements,




VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONRSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

4L Eeh 5 0hEer S RO (88 faraneh Vabr A/ < eerans CiSlefTRaTLe ereisemmsveitnl sieomsimes 4 e Bsovie

mmrumamu(unmama) roruummuhdeaﬁlmma)
_ March31, 2012, Mudt!hzﬂll 1 Mmﬁ&i Wiz Mmhal. 2048
REVENTES . -
Money mansfer service 105,246,185 87 smos C lns,us.-us ', av.m,m
Equity fn net comdngs of nssociotes . r . , C o
Inteens service and siles * 5,196,403: - usyz,m, ngo,so; LGS0
\fmydmmmdta:dgnmhmge . RS T MMM i AEROR . 132456
Iaterestincome ' 30951957 . BAWST . L -ADYMSY T Baws
Trading GalnLoss ETRETS I mﬂf 102 4TSHSY TSI
Incorst from Mutaat Fend V4058 - aeg 19,480,383 14,388,470 -
Otbiers ‘ 13,831,333 2456882 - -'13,§5133 - 1458982,
) T SIfAEeATY ¢ LSS ,234.4.5"9 375 I 814,098
EXPENSES . ST o
Genera) mnd adoininmtive expenses (Note 15) 32,186,362 21,539,109 LLIEE38Y  BISEIG
Cosuof serviees and sales : ) nswsm . 1374,650 34500503 . 13880
Deprociaton end omortisalon . C 108 COSATIARR. AR L saMady
120,884,073 T3 - . 130,944,073 100,315,843
ENCOME FROM OFERATIONS : WIS . TISIRAIS T M15503300 195208445
OTEER INCOME (CHARGES) ) o
Interest and bank: chirges —net . sy (e . L (01531 T (008
Otkyars . gsaesy - L T e T e - -
- : OOE,07 . GOLBe. i (RBas) L (WK
INCOME BEEFORE FYTRA-ORDIEGARY . LT e
Ineazst/Lypanse . ' 112,459,503 1450897 . 1243950 VT V0552
Extra.Ordlnary Ineoms![Exp.) . L o et i e .
INCOIIE BEFORE INGOME TAX nLess. - 7050899, L;.u_:e.-:ss.‘foa\ T iT3D0,E98
rxows:owronmcommc _ e N
Curren . 10,545,093 13351708 13,751,105
Deferred . . . RN CISI08T - 15007
) : CO908S.. . USRI 1526242
NET INCOME (LOSS) . ) g .mz.m.ma' e .151,527.957 j I39,627951
v Atmbutablices . T : N
Ecqulry holdess of the parent c\uum mas.m E 15515: 433 . 155260433
Mingdiy tnterests £925941- ’4,353,5:5. 4,383,515
i 1023104087, 159,527.953 10:1.310.4“ T 159,607,588,
L . Dl 1' : St sty
Baste/Dilured Earnlugs Per Shave Atrliotsble G L
roFquity Holders ofthe Prrent (a1 adfuxted s/ CF ' o L .
28¢h wack diridend & Treasury Shared) 095 007 - 008 . 007 .




VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

" “Forthe Quntcr&dud {Craudited)

" Mareh 31,2002 . ¢ Mareh 31,2001

CAPITALSTOCK - I parvalys

Agtherized - 2,250,000,000 shares

lssued - 2,255,390,635 thares ’ -

Bilance at baginning of yaar . 2.135.390,633 Lo 2235390, 633 '

Steck iasuance cost of a subsldinry " .zoo.oxu) a (3,199,910)’
Stock dividends fasued :
Balnzs ar 2nd of paded ' e 2.2,32,1!!,0.72.3 L ;.2,13 !90.72:

CUNVLATIVE NET UNAEALIZED GAFN 0‘: CH.‘\-NGI [N FAIR
VALUE OF AVALABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES : o
Balusico 21 beginning of year 553.394399 : A0170,504

Unreslized Otiny(foas) : _ 346408088 . (122400.357),
Belanco at £0d of period L .;'ngqsg,mazz T E299,T70217
RETARED EARNINGS (DEFICID) ) ‘ Lo

Baltncs &1 beglaning of yreer ) - L 8-10,‘!81.631. S 2.:-86.981.994

Net incams (los3) _ svs,;ms.«ss::= L 159817958

Shere in Minotity Intarest ERA 7T sss asso; ‘
Stk Dividend . . - rooe
Balanee af 208 of period. 71441 9&6,502
TREASURY SHARES N (185,510.83#)
MINORITY INTEREST. - AR :

Balesice at beginning of year " . 1!9.935.635 L !14 ‘317 421

Minadty shues in the capital stock from issuancs of pmpu;ty dlvldend

Totn) Incoma and sxpenses recognized du:in,q lhtpuiod a5 e 4,353.450

Helanes at end of perjod EERAE 1l9 135371
L3 e ) . l . o "‘-' ‘

[ mz 9216 14,903,557,415




'~ VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Forthe Qnarm'liudlsd  {Unandited)
MnrchSl mz ’vxmnsl. 201:

CASH FLOWS FROM OPIRAT_!NG ACII\’IIIES

1!2 459 503 ’

m ago.sga-

Income (loss) before Tas e o
Depreciation and n.muﬂlzenon T ', . 4,298, 208 S | 37?.859;
Interest expanse ' oYssis. 1,648,954,
Dividend income - (6 U586 L8159
Interest income (30 031837) . . . (5899510

Operating income before working capital changes 80,635:424 - | 114,402,037

Changes in operating assets and Babilities: : T Co
Decrease (increase): N Tyt

Recefvable 259567201 .. m.z;.s.sso'
Prepaid expenses and ather cumrent assets . ' Cr (4969822 . R 656.322'
Increase (decraase) in acconnts paiidble afid ather cun‘entﬂnblhﬁes 4( 108.91§ 588 ", (99,541,604)
Net cash provided by (used fory opmﬁum » R ‘216 914.-2& 106,734,553 .
. Intetest paid . L '. N (975;513 AT 648 \554)
Dividends received a8 ALss e
Interest received .i30:981,937 + 25 899 53
Net cash provided by (undm) opérating activities 7263.036;51‘1 " "?"'; . ’2?2.60_1 105
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ; E N
Decreass (increase) in: A
Property and equipment . 67 564)': o 11,079,860
Decrease (incrense) in AFS/HIM (303 972.4:7}": ; 19.745 768)'
Increase (decrense) in nec unsentized gain on AFS 3@;4?5.?4 :850 358
Decrease (increase in) otherassets’ (3;000,952) 8 (!.1?3,239)

“Net cashprovided by (used in) investing actlvitles
CASHFLOWS FROMFENAN CR?G ACTAIIY

Inceease (decrease) in minority interest

T RN 1 AT

13388308

132257083
Acquisition of Treasury Shares S e s (1a0424,838)
Pavment of fonnts '. 48499601 . ~45:040.744
Cashusedin financing actvitias 61,725,394 (51,995,386)

NET ENCREASE (DECREASE) [N CASH AND casnmunm.ms

CASHAND C:\SKEQUWALINT S AT BEGL\”NWG OF YL-\R

’360.982.‘137 _

¥

- (44,335,059)

CASH AND CASH EQUI\'AJ.INTS ATEND OF PERIOD.

. ,_540,411-,973-‘""'%

" 901,394,708

435,624,364

1,389,305




VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC.AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

General Information

Caorporate Information

Vantage Equities, Inc. (the Parent Company) was incorporated in the Philippines and registered
with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on Octaber 20, 1992. The
primary business of the Parent Company is to invest in, acquire by purchase, exchange,
assignment or otherwise; or to hold, own, use for investment or otherwise shares of the capital
stock, bonds, debentures, promissory notes, or other securities or obligations created, negotiated or
issued by any corporation, association or other entities, whether foreign or dornestic, including but
not limited to information technology companies and related ventures, holding companies and
companies engaged in financial services, investments and real property development. Its
investments consist of shares in: (a) entities invotved in inward remitiances and financing services;
(b) an Information Technology (IT)-based entity; and (¢) an entity invalved in management of
mutual funds,

On April 8, 2008, the SEC has approved the Parent Company's change of corporate name from
i Vantage Corporation to Vantage Equities, Inc.

The Parent Company’s shares are publicly traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).

The registered office address of the Parent Company is 2703 East Tower, PSE Centre, Exchange
Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City.

The consolidated financlal statemenis include the accounts of the Parent Company and the
following subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group™):

Percentage of Qwnership

Name of Subsidiaries Place of Incorporation 2011 2010
e-Business Services, Ine. (e<Business) Philippines 100,00 160.00
¢BlZ Financial Services, Inc. ’ '
(2B1Z Financial)* Philippines 100.00 100.00
iCurrencies, Ino. (iCurrencies) Philippines 100.60 100.00 .
Yehey! Corporation (Yehey!) Philippines 68.35 68.35
Philequity Management, Inc. (PEMI) Philippines 51.60 51.00

¥ ¢ Indirecily owned through e-Business

The Parent Company is the ultimate parent of the Group,



¢-Business

e-Business is involved in fund transfer and remittance services, both domestic and abroad, of any
form or kind of currencies or monies, as well as in conducting money exchange transactions as
may be aliowed by law and oLher allied activities relative thereto, e-Business has an existing
Represantation Agreement {(Agreement) with Westem Union Financial Services, Inc. (Western
Union) covering its fund transfer and remittance services for a period of seven years from
September 1, 2007 to Aupust 31, 2014. e-Business shall receive remuneration for the services
provided to Western Union in accordance with the terms stipulated in the Agreement.

eBiz Fipancial _

eBiz Financial is wholly owned by e-Business. eBiz Financial was incorporated on April 11, 2005
and started commercial nperauons on May 9, 2005. eBiz Financial is engaged in financing
business.

iCutrenicies

iCurreéncies, Inc, was incorporated on February 3, 2000 and started commercial operations on
May 31, 2000, iCurrencles is orgamzed primarily to engage in the business of buying and selling
of foretgn currencies,

In May 2001, the iCurrencies effectively stopped its business of buying and selling currencies as a
result of Bangko Sentral ng Pllipinas Circular No. 264, issued on October 26, 2000. Among
others, the new circular required additional documentation for sale of foreign currencies and
required Foreign Exchange Corporations (FxCorps) to have a minimum paid-up capital of
£50.0 miilion.

The Circular effectively aligned the regulations under which FxCorps are to operate to that of
banks. To avoid duplication and direct competition with its previous major stockholder,
iCurrencies decided to stop its business of buying and selling foreign currencies. The stockholders
likewise decided not to increase its paid-up capital.

In the meantime, iCurrenctes is sustained by income on its investments and interest income on its
funds while awaiting for regulatory changes.

Yeheyl
Yehey! is engaged in the business of internet online related products relating to database search

engine, such as, but not {imited to, conceptualizing, designing, illustrating, processing and editing
web sites. It is also engaged in pre-production and post-production work on web sites in internet
and sell and market sgid products in the form of advertising of finished products in the domestic or
export market.

PEMI

In 2007, the Parent Company purchased 51% of the total outstanding stock of FEMI, which is
equivalent to 130,000 common shares with par value of 100 each, for a total consideration of
#32.4 million. PEMI was incorporated in the Philippines and is primarily engaged in management
of mutual funds. The acquisition of PEMI resulted to a goodwill of 3.7 million in 2007,



2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The accompanying consolidated financial statermnents have been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) and available-for-sale (AFS)
Investments, which are mcasured at fair value. The consolidated financirl statements are
presented In Philippine peso, which is the Group's functlonal and presentation currency, and all
values are rounded to the nearest peso unit, except when otherwise indicated.

Statement of Compliance
The sccompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared in compliance with the
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared for the same reporting year as the Parent

Company, using consistent accounting policies.

Subsidiaries are a1l entities over which the Parent Company has the power to govern the financial and
opetating policies generally accompanying a sharcholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Parent Company controls another entity,

All significant intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses and profits and losses resulting from
Intra~group transactions are eliminated in full.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Parent Company, Control
is achieved when the Parent Company has the power 10 govemn the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities, Canselidation of SubSidlaﬁ% ceases when control is
trensferred out of the Group.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or digposed of during the year are included {n the consolidated statement
of income from the date of acquisition up to the date of disposal, as appropriate.

When o change in ownership interest in a subsidiary oecurs, which results in loss of control aver the
subsidiary, the Parent Compuny:

Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;

+  Derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest;

s Derecognizes the related other comprehensive income recorded in equity and recycle the same to profit
or loss or surplus;

* Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received;
Recognlzes the foir value of any investment retained; and

*  Recopnlzes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss.

In & separate or parent company finoncial stalements, investments in subgidiaries are carried at cost, less
accumulated impoirment in value, Dividends esmed on these investments are recognized in the Parent
Company’s separate statement of income s declared by the respective BOD of the Investees.

Non-Controlling Interest
Non-controlling intergst represents the portion of profit or loss and net assets not owned, dlrectly or
indirectly, by the Parent Company.

Non-controlling interests are presented separately in the consolidated statement of income, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, and within equity in the consolidated statement of financial positian,
separately from parent sharcholders' equity, Any losses applicable to the non-conttolling interests are



allocated against the interests of the non-controiling interest even if this results in the non-controiling
interest having a deficil balance. Acqulsitions of non-controlling interests that does not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transaction, whereby the difference between the consideration and the
fair value of the share of the net assels acquired is recognized as an equity transaction and attributed to the
owners of the Parent Company.

Changes in Accounting Policies snd Disclosures

Tie accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for the
following new and amended Philippine Accounting Stendards (PAS), PFRS and Philippine Interpretation
under Internationa! Financial Reporting Interpretation Committee (IFRIC) which were edopted as of January
1, 2010;

New Standards and Interprelations

¢ PFRS 3 (Revised), Business Combinations and PAS 27 (Amended), Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements :

»  Philippine Interpretation IFRIC (7, Distrtbutions of Non-Cash Assels to Owners

»  Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 18, Transfer of Assats firom Custoniers

Amendmoents tc Standards .
* PAS 39, Financial Instrumenis: Recognition and Measurement (Amendment): Eligible Hedged ltems
s PFRS 2, Share-based Payment {(Amendmment): Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions

Improvements to PFRS

The omnibus amendments to PFRSs were {ssued primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and
clarify wordings. There are separate transitional provisions for each standard. The adoption of the
amendments resulted in changes in accounting policies but did not have any impsct on the financial position
ot performance of the Company.

PFRS 2, Share-based Paymen!

PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discantinued Operations
PFRS 8, Operating Segments

PAS |, Presentation of Financlai Statements

PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows

PAS 17, Leases

PAS 36, Impairment of Assets

PAS 38, Intangfble Assets

PAS 39, Financial Instrunents: Recagnition and Measurement

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 9, Reassessntent of Embedded Derivatives
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 16, Hedge of @ Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

& ®» 9 % & ® » & & 4 9

Standards that have been adopted and that are deemed to have an impact on the financial statements or
performance of the Group are described below:

PFRS 3 (Revised), Business Combinations and PAS 27 (Amended), Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

PERS 3 (Revised) introduces significant changes in the accounting for business combinations occurring
after this becoming effective. Changes affect the valuation of non-controlling interest, the accounting for
transactlon costs, the initlal recognition and subsequent measurement of a contingent consideration and
business combinations achieved In stages. These changes will impact the amount of goodwill recognized,
the reported results in the period that an acquisition occurs and future reported results.

PAS 27 (Amended) requires that a change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary (without loss of control)
is accounted for 2s a transaction with owners in their capacity as owners. Therefore, such trensactions will
no longer give rise to goodwill, nor will it give rise to a pain or foss, Furthermore, the amended standard
changes the accounting for losses incurred by the subsidiary as well as the loss of cdntrol of a subsidiary.



The changes by PFRS 3 (Revis'ed) and ‘PAS 27 (Amended) affect ncquisitions or loss of control of
subsidiaries and transactions with non-conteolling interests after January 1, 2010.

The change in accounting policy was applied prospectively and had no material impact on earnings per
share.

Foreign Currency Translation

Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items Included In the finanelal
statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency,

Forelpn currency-denominaied monetary assets and Habilities are transtated in Phllippine peso based on the
Philippine Dealing system (PDS) closing rate prevailing at end of year and foreign currency-denominated
Income and expenses, at PDS welghted average rate for the year, Forelgn exchange differences arlsing
from restatements of foreign curtency-denominated assets and liabilities are credited to or charged against
operations in the year in which the rates change,

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in & foreign currency are translated using

the exchange rates as ot the dates of the initisl transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair velue in a

foreign currency are transiated using the exchange rates al the date when the falr value was determined,
inancial [nstrum -~ Inld ition a )

Date of recognition

"Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by

regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognized on the settlement date. Receivables, accounts

payable and other noncurrent liabiliies, bonds payable and fong term debt are recognized when cash is

received by the Group or advanced 1o the borrowers. '

mitial recogniiion of financial instruments

All financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value. Except for financial insturments at FVPL, the
initial measurement of financial assets includes transaction costs, The Group classifies its financial assets in
the following categories: financial assots at FYPL, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, AFS investments,
and loans snd receivables, Financial liabilities are classified as either derivative liabilitics, financizl
liabilities at FVPL or finoncial liabilities carried at amortized ¢ost. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the investments were acquired and whether they are guoted in an active market.
Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition and, where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at every reporting dale.

Determination of fair value

The fair value of the financial instruments traded in active markets at the consolidated statement of financial
position date is based on their quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions
and ask price for short positions), without any dedustion for transection costs, When currertt bid and ask
prices are not available, the price of the most recent transuction provides evidence of the current fair value
as long as there has not been a significant change in economic circumstances since the time of the
transaction,

Fer all ether financial instruments not listed In an active market, the falr vslue [s determined by using
appropriate valuation techniques that include the use of mathematicat models, Valuation techniques include
net present value techniques, comparison to similar instruments for which market observable prices exist,
option pricing models, end other relevant valuation models. The inputs to these models are derived from
observable markat datn where possible, but where observable market data are not available, judgment is
required to establish fair values. The judgments include considerations of liquidity and model inputs such as
volatility for longer dated derivatives.and discount rates.



‘Day I difference

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different to the fair value from other observahle
ourrent market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose variables
include only data from observable market, the Group recognizes the difference between the transaction price
and fair value (a ‘Day 1” difference) in the consolidated statement of income under *Miscellaneous expense’
unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset, In cases where transaction price used Is made
of data which is not observable, the difference between the traasaction price and model vslue is only
recognized in the statement of icome when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is
derecognized. For each transaction, the Group determines the appropriate method of recognizing the ‘Day
1" difference amount. ‘

Financial assets at FVPL represent secucllies which are held for trading and frec standing derivative
{currency forward contract). Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL are recorded in the
consaliduted statement of financial position at fair value. Interest earned or incurred is recorded in ‘Interest
income’ or *Interest expense’ in the consolidated statement of income, respectively, while dividend income
is recorded in ‘Dividends’ in the consolidated statement of jncome according to the terms of the contract, or
when the right to receive payment has been established,

Financial Instruments at FVPL
Flnancial instruments at FVPL include financial nssets and financial liabilities that ave:

acquired and held for trading purposes

designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL; and

stand-alene or bifurcated embedded derivative financlal nstruments not designated as effective hedging
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are classificd as held for trading if they are acquired for the purposes
of selling and repurchasing in the near term,

Financial assets and financial liabilities may be designated by management on initial recoganition at FVPL
when the following criteria are met:

e The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise
from measuring the assets or labilities or recognizing gains or losses on them on a different basis;

« The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, Jiabilities or both which are managed
and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy; or

» The financial instrument contains an embedded derivative, unless the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear, with little or no analysis, that it would not be
separately recorded. :

Financial assets and financial liabllities at FVPL are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position at fair value. Subsequent changes in falr value are recognized in the consolidated statement of
income, Intercst earmed or dividends received are recorded in interest Income or dividend income,
respectively. Interest incurred is recorded as interest expense in the consolidated statement of income,

Derivative financial instruments are inittally recognized ot fair value on the date in which a derivative
transaction is entered into or bifurcated, and are subsequently re-measured at fair value, Derivatives are
carried as assets when the fair vafue is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative,

An embedded derivative ig a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-
derfvative host contract, with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a
way similar 10 a stand-alone derivative. An embedded derivative is separated from the host contract and
accounted for as derivative if all the following conditions are met:



1. the ecohomic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to the
economic characteristic of the host contract; ’

2, aseparate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of the
derivative; and ,

3. the hybrid or combined instrument is not measured gt fair value with fafr value changes charged
through profit or loss.

The Group assesses whether embedded derivatives ate required to be separated from host contracts when
the Group first becomes party to the contract, Reassessment only cecurs if there is a ¢hange in the terms of
the coniracts that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required.

The Group bifurcated embedded derivatives as of Dacember 31, 2011 pertaining to unquoted debt securities
under ‘Loans and Receivables”, The value of the bifurcated embedded derivatives is not significant. The
Group has no bifurcated embedded derivatives as of December 31, 2011,

Loans ard receivables

This accounting policy relates to the consollduied statement of financial position captions ‘Cash and cash
equivalents’, ‘Receivables’ and ‘Refundable deposits’ (included under Prepaid expenses and other current
assets). These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed .or determinable payments and fixed maturities
that are not quoted in an active market. They are not entered into with the intention of immediate or short-
term resule and are not classified as ‘Other financial assets held for trading’ or designated as ‘AFS
investments’ or *Financial assets designated at FVPL'.

After initial measurement, loans and recejvables are subsequently measured at cost or amortized cost using
the EIR method, less allowance for credit fosses. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount ot premium on acquisition and fees and costs that are an integra) part of the EIR. The amortization
is included in ‘Inmterest income’. in the consolidated statement of Income. The losses arising from
{tnpairment are recognized in ‘Provision for impairment and credit losses’ in the consolidated statemnent of
income. '

AFS investments

AFS investments are nonderivative financial assets which are designated as such or do not qualify to be
classified as designated at FVPL, HTM investments or loans and receivables. They are purchased and held
indefinitely and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in market conditions, They
in¢lude equity investments, money market papers and other debt instruments,

After Initlal measurement, APS investments are subsequently measured at fair value. The effective yicld
component of AFS debt securities, as well as the impact of restatenient on foreign currency-denominated
AFS debt securities, i reported in the consolidated statement of income. The unrealized pains and losses
arising from the fair valuation of AFS investments are excluded, net of tax, from the reported eamings and
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as *Net unrealized loss on AFS
investments',

When the security is disposed of, the cumulative gair or loss previously recognized in consolidated
statemnent of comprehensive income is recognized in the consolidated statement of income, Where the
Group holds more than one investment in the same security, these are deemed to be disposed of on a first-in
first-out basis. Interest emmed on holding AFS debt Tnvestments are reported in the consolidated statement
of income as ‘Interest income’ using the EIR. Dividends earned on holding AFS equity investinents are
recognized in the consolidated statement of income as ‘Dividends® when the right to recelve payment has
been established. The losses arising from impairment of such Investment are recognized as ‘Frovision for
impairment and credit losses® in the consolidated staterment of income.



Accounts Payable and other current Habiifties and long-term dubt
- Issued financlal instruments or their components, which are not designated at FVPL, are classified as
linbitities under ‘Accounts Payable’, *long-lerm debt’, or other appropriate financlal liability accounts,
where the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the Group having an
obiligation elther to deliver cash or another financlal asset to the holder, or to satisfy the obligation other than
, by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of own equity
shares. The components of issued financial instrzments that contain both liability and equity elements are
accounted for separately, with the cquity component being assigned the residval amount afier deducting
from the instrument as a whole the amount separately determined as the fair value of the liability component
on the date of issue,

Afler initial measurement, accounts payable and similer financial liabilities not qualified as and not
designated as FVPL, are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR methad, Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on the issue and fees that are an integral part of
the EIR. |

Financial Lisbilities ‘

Financial libilities are ¢lassified as at FVPL when the financial liability is either held for rading or it is
desigrated as at FYPL.

A financial ligbility Is held for trading if: ‘

» it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

* on initial recognition it Is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages
tagether and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of shori-term profit-taking; or

s itisaderivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee.

Management may designete a {inancial Habilily at FVPL upon initial recognition when the following criteria

are met, and designation is determined on an (nstrument by instrument basis:

*  The designation eliminstes or significantly reduces the inconslstent treatment that would otherwise urisc
from measuring the lisbilities or recognizing galns ar losses on them on a different basis; or

¢ The liabilitics are part of a group of financlal liabilities which are managed and their performance
evafuated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented sk management or investraent
strategy; or . ‘

» The financial instrument contains an embecdded derivative, unless the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or il is clear, with little or no analysis, that it would not be
separately recorded.

Financial liabilities at FVPL are recorded in tie consolidated statement of financial position at falr value.
Changes in fair value of financial instruments are recorded in Trading and securities gain (loss) in the
consolidated statement of income. Interests incurred are recorded In Interest expense in the statement of
income using the effective interest method.

Derecopnition of Finaneial Assets and Linbllitles

Financial assels

A financial asset (where applicable, n part of a finaneial asset, or part of a proup of financial assets) is

derecognized when;

+ therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

» the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation (o pay
them in full without material delay to s third party under a “pass-through™ arrangement; or

» the Group has transferred Hs rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (g) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risk and rewards of the asset but has transferred the control over the asset,

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered Into a pass-
through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retaitied substantially all the risks and rewards of the



asset nor transferred control over the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Group's continuing
involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred
asset is measured at the lower of origingl carrying amount of the asset and the moaximum smount of
consideration that the Group could be required 10 repay.

Financial liabilities

A financtal liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing lability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as & derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and
the difference in the vespective carrying atnounts is recognized in the consolidated statement of income,

Offsetting Fin 1 Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities sre offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position if;, and onty if, there is 4 currcntly enforceable [egal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the
lisbility simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, therefore, the related
assets and liabilities are presented gross in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Impaitment of Financial Assels
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group

of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if,
and only if, there is abjective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more cvents that has cceurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or ¢vents) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the borrower or a group of
borrowers is experiencing sipnificant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankrupicy or other firiancial reorganization and where
observable data indicate that there is measurnble decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correfate with defaults.

Impairment of financial assels carried at amortized cost

For financial assets carricd at amoitized cost, which includes cash and cash equivalents, receivables and
deposhts, the Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impsinnent exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not [ndividually
significant, For individually assessed financial assets, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s cutrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original EIR. 1f a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment [oss is the cutrent EIR, adjusted for the original credit rick premium. The
calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateratized financlal asset reflects
the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for abtaining and seiling the collateral, whether or
not fareclosure is probable,

Pinancial assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognized are not included in a colleclive assessment for impainment. The canrying
arnount of the asset is reduced throutgh the use of an allowance sccount and the amount of loss is charged
against the statement of income. Interest income continues to be recognized based on the origingl EIR of
the asset. Loans, together with the associated allowance accounts, are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realized, If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the
estimated impairment loss decreases because of an cvent occurring after the impairment was recognized, the
previously recognized impairment loss is reduced by adjusting the allowance account. 1f a future write-off
is later recovered, any amoumts farmerly charged are credited to the *Provision for impairment and credit
losses® i the consolidated statement of income.



If the Group determines 1hat no objective evidence of impairment exists for individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or net, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses for impairment, Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation
of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts
due according to the contractunl terms of the assets being cvaluated,

For the purpose of a colfective cvaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of credit
risk characteristics such as industry, collateral type, past-duc status and term. Future cash flows in a group
of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the group, Historical loss experience
is adjusted on the basls of current cbscrvable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not
affect the period on which the historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions in
the historical period that do not exist currently. Estimates of changes in future cash flows reflect, and are
directionally consistent with changes in related observable data from period to period (such changes in
property prices, payment status, or other factors that ace indicative of incurred losses in the Group and their
magnitude). The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed
regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

AFS investments
For AFS investments, the Group assesses al each reporting date whether there Is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired,

In case of equity investments clussified as AF$ investments, this would include a significant or prolonged
decline in the fuir value of the investments below its cost. Where there Is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
Impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in the consolidated statement of income - is
removed from consolidated statement of comprehensive income and recognized in the consolidated
statement of income, Impairment losses on equity investments are nat reversed through the consolidated
statement of income. Increases in’ fair value nfter impaiment are recognized directly in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

In the case of debt instruments classified as AFS investments, impairment is assessed based on the same
criteria as financial assets carried at amortized cost. However, the amount recorded for impairment i3 the
cumulative Joss measured as the difference between the amortized cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in Ihe statement of income, Future interest
income Is based on the reduced carrying amount and is accrucd based on the rate of interest used to discount
future cash flows For the purpose of measuring impaitment loss. Such accrual is recorded as part of “Intetest
income’ in (he consolldated statement of comprehensive income. 1f, in subsequent year, the fair value of 2
debt Instrument increnses and the increase can be objectively relaled to an event occurring after the
impairment foss was recognized in the ¢onsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the impairment
loss is reversed through the consolidated stalement of comprehensive income.



Cash and cash equivilents }

Cash and cash equivalenis include cash on hand and in bunks and short-tern investments, Cash equivalents
are short-term, highly liquid [nvestments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash with
original maturities of three months or less from the dates of placement and are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

Investments in assoeiate and joint venture

Investrnent in assaciate

Associates are entities which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20.0% and 50.0% of the voting rights. In the consolidated financial statements,
fnvestment in associates is accounted for under the equily method of accounting.

Under the equity method, an investment in an assoclate is carrled in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost plus posl-acquisition changes In the Group’s share of the net assels of the associate,
Goodwill relating to an associate is included in the carrying value of the investment and is not amortized.
The Group’s share in an associnte’s post-acquisition profits or losses is recognized in the consolidated
statement of income, and its share of post-acquisition movements in the associate’™s equity reserves is
recognized directly in consolidated statement of comprehensive income. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are edjusted against the carrylng amount of the investmients, When the Group's share of logses
in an sssociate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the
Group does nol recognize fisrther losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate. Profits and losses resulting front transactions between the Group and an associate are
eliminated to the extent of (he interest in the associate,

Investment i joint venture

Investment in joint venture is accounted for under the equity method of accounting. The fuvestment in joint
venture [s carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost plus post-acquisition changes in
the share of net assets af the joint ventuse, less,any nllowance for impairment losses,

Investments in joint ventures in the Group's financial statements are carried at cost less any allowance for
impairment losses.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumuiated depreciation and any impairment in value. The
initial cost of praperly and equipment consists of its purchase price, including import duties, faxes and any
costs directly attributable to bringing the property and equipment to its working condition and tocation for
its intended use. Expenditures incurred after the propenty and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, are nommully charged to income in the year in which such costs are incurred. In
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted. in an increase in the
future economio benefits expected to be oblained from the use of an item of property and eguipment beyond
its originelly assessed stundard of performance, the expenditures are capilalized as additional costs of
property and equipment.

The cost of an item of property and equipment also includes costs of dismantlement, removel or restoration
and the related obligation that the Group incurs at the end of the useful life of property and equipment.



When each major repairs and maintenance is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the”
Item of property end equipment as a replacement if the recognilion criteria are satisfied. Such costs are
capitalized and emortized over the next major repairs and maintenance activity,

Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the property and equipment as follows:

Fumiture and fixtures ‘ 2-10 years
Office improvements 10 years
Transpaortation equipment ‘ 5 years
Office condominium 20 years
Server and network equipment 3 years
Leaschold improvements 5 years or term of lease, whichever

period is shorter

The useful lives, residual values, and depreciaticn and amortization method ace reviewed periodically to
ensure that the periods, residual values, and method of depreciation and amortization sre consistent with the
expected patiern of economic benefits from items of property and equipment. ‘

Fully deprecisted assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use and no further
depreciation are credited or charged to conselidated statement of inconte,

When property and equipment are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related secumulated
depreciation, amortization and any impairment in value are eliminated from the accounts and any resulting
galn or loss is credited or charged to consolidated statement of income,

Software and Website

Development costs of software and website included under “Other noncurrent assets” account in the
consolidated statement of financial position are capitalized and lreated as intangible assets because their
costs are not an integral part of the related hardware, Amortization is computed vsing the straight-line
method over their estimated uscful life of 3 years for software and 2 years for website.

Impairment of Property and Equipment. Software and Investment in Associate and Joint Venture

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether thete is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group makes an
estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or
cash- generating unit's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individval
asset, unless the asset does nat generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of en asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tox discount rate that reflects current
market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Impaiment [osses are
recognized in the consolidated statement of income in the expense category consistent with the function of
the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognlzed impalrment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the
recovernble amount is estimated. A previously recognized itmpairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment
loss was recognized. IF that is the case, the carrying amount of the assel is increased to its recoverable
amount, That incressed amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreclation and amortization, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such
reversal is recognized in the consolidated statement of income unless the asset §s carried at revalued amount,
in which case, the reversal {s treated as a revaluation increase. After such a reversal, the depreciation and
amortization charge is adjusted in future periods to allogate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any
residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining vsefi life.



Goodwill

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost being the excess af the cost of the
business combination over the Parent Company’s interest in the net fair value of the [dentifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent llsbilities of the acquired business. Following initial rccopnition, goodwill [s
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, annually
or more frequently, if events or changes in ciroumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

lmpairment Is determined for poodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash gencrating unit, to
which the goodwill relates, Where the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated, an impairment loss is
recognized. Tmpairment loss relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Revenue Recognitio

The Group assesses its revenue arrangemerits against specific criteria in order to determine i€ It is acting as
principal or agent. Revenue is recognized (o the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criterla
must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Conymnission income

This represents the commission received by the Company from Westemn Union. The Company receives
commission from Western Union for every advance dollar remittance service provided by the former for the
latter.

Advertising, Web Development and Internet Service
Revenue is recoghized when the advertisements commence to be displayed, intemet services are rendered
and goods have been delivered,

Maney Changing Gain

Money changing gains =re related to the Group's retail foreign exchange operations in the branches. The
Company provides money changing services to its clients which includes buying and selling of foreign
currencies. Revenue is recognized when the service is rendered. Share in

Foreign Exchange Differeniial
Share in foreign exchange differential comes rom the 3rd currency Western Union transections . The Group
gets 25.0% share for every transaction.

Interest Income
Revenue is recognized as the interest accrues, using the effective interest rate.

Dividend Income
Revenue is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

Service Incame
Service income is recognized when the services are rendered,

Management fee
Revenue is recagnized as services are rendered and in accordance with the management and distribution
agreement.

Gain ar Loss on Sale of AFS Investments
Revenue Is recognized upon receipt of confirmalion of sale from brokers.



Leases

The determination of whether an arvangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the
use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. A re-assessment is
made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

a. There is a change in contractual terms, other than 8 renewal or extension of the arrangement;

b. A renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless that term of the renewal or extension was
" initially included i the lease term;

¢, There is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dapendent on a specified asset; or

d. There is a substantial change (o the osset.

Where n re-assessment is made, letse acoounting shall commence or cease from the date when the change in
circumstances gave rise to the re-assessment for scengrios g, ¢ or d above, and at the date of renewal or
extension period for scenario b,

Group as a Lessee. Leases where the lessor retains substantiaily all the yvisks and benefits of ownership of
the assets are classified as operating leases, Operating lease pauyments are recognized as expense in the
censolidated statement of income on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease agreement,

Retirement Costs

e-Business has funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan covering substantially all of its
regular employees. The Parent Company and Yehey! have unfunded, noncontributory defined benefit
retirement plan covering substantially all of lts regular employees. The obligation and costs of retircment
benefits are actuarially computed by an independent actuary using projected unit credit method. Actuarial
£ains and losses are recognized as income or expense when the et cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains
and losses for the plan at the end of the previous reporting period exceed 10.0% of the higher of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets &t that date. These gains or losses are recognized over
the expected average remaining working lives of the employees participating in the plan.

The past service cost is recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the average period until the
benefits become vested. !f the benefits are alrcady vested immediately following the introduction of, or
changes to, 2 pension plan, past service ¢ost is recagnized immedintely,

The defined benefit liability is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit obligation and
actuartal gains not recognized reduced by past service cost not yet recognized and the fair value of plan
assets out of which the obligations are to be scttled directly. [f such aggrepate is negative, the asset is
measured at the lower of such aggregate or the aggregate of cumulative unrecognized net actuarial logses
end past service cost and the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from
the plan or reductions in the future contributions to the plan,

If the asset is measured at the aggregate of cumulative unrecognized net actuarial losses and past service
cost and the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or
reductions in the future contributions to the plan, net actuarial losses of the current period and past service
cost of the current period are recognized immediately to the extent that they exceed any reduction in the
present value of those economic benefits, If there is no change or an increase in the present value of the
economic benefits, the entire net actuarial losses of the cusrent period end past service cost of the current
period are recognized immediately, Similarly, net actuarial gains of the current period after the deduction of
past service cost of the current period exceeding any increase in the present value of the economic benefits
stated above are recopnized immediately if the assel is measured at the aggregate of cumulative
unrecognized net actuarial losses and past service cost and the present value of any economic banefits
available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in the future contributions to the plan. If there is
o change or a decrease in the present value of the economic benefits, the entire net actuaria!l gains of the
current period after the deduction of past service cost of the current period are recognized immediately,



Income Taxes

Current Tax

Current tax assets and ligbilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amounts expecied to be
recovered from or paid to the tax authority. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax js provided, using the balance sheet liability method, on all temporary differences and
carryforward benefit of unused net operating loss carry over (NOLCO) and excess of minimum corporate
income tax (MCIT) over regular corporate income tax (RCIT) at the reporting date between the tax bases of
assets and liabilitics and their carrying amounts for finaneial reporting purposes.

Deferred 1ax liabilitics arc recognized for all taxable temporary differences with certain exceptions.
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward benefit of unused
NOLCO and excess of MCIT over RCIT, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differ¢nces can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tux assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable income will allow the deferred tax
assets to be recovered,

Deferred tpx relating to jtems recognized directly in other comprehensive income and not in the
consolidated statement of income, :

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the periods when
the asset is realized or the liability is sctiled, based or 1ax vates and tax laws that have been enacled or
substantively enncted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax assets and deferved tax Habilitles are offset, if a legally enforceable righi exists to offset current
tax assels agalnst current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
tax authority,

Equity )

Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued and outstanding, When the shares are sold ot &
premium, the difference between the proceeds and the par value is credited to *Capital paid-in excess of par
value' account, Direct costs incurred related to equity issuance, such as underwriting, accounting and legal
fees, printing costs and taxes are chargeable to *Capital paid-in excess of par value® account. If the *Capital
paid-in excess of par value® is not sufficient, the excess is charged against the *Retained ermings’,

When the Group issues more than one class of stock, a separate account Is maintained for each class of stock
and the number of'shares issued.

Own cquity instruments which are ucquired {treasury shnres) are deducted from equity and accounted for at
weighted average cost. No gain or loss is recognized in the statement of income on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Parent Company’s owat equily instruments.

‘Retained earnings® represents accumulated earnings of the Group less dividends declared.

Basic/Diluted Earmings (Loss) Per Share
Basic/diluted eamnings (loss) per share is determined by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted averape

number of shares oulstanding during the year with retroactive adjustments for any stock. split and stock
dividends declared.



Provisions .
General

Provisions are recoguized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation; and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. [f the effect of the time
value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a
pretax rate that reflects current market assessment of the time velue of money and, where appropriste, the
risks specific to the liability. Where diseounting is used, the increase in the provisions due to the passage of
time is recognized as an interest expense. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate. If it i5 no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Asset Retirement Obligation

The Group recognizes provision arising from tepal and/or constructive obligations associated with the cost
of dismantling and removing an item of property and equipment and restoring the site where it is located,
the obligation for which the Group incurs either when the assel is ncqutred or us @ consequence of having
used the asset during a particutar perlod for purposes other than to produce inventories during that period, A
corresponding asset is recognized as part of property and equipment. Decomimissioning costs are provided
at the present value of expected costs Lo settle the obligation using estimated cash flows, The cash flows are
discounted at a current pretax rate that reflects the risks specific to the decommissioning liability,

The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognized in the consolidated statement of
income as an interest expense. The estimated future costs of decommiissioning are reviewed annually and
adjusted prospectively, Changes in the estimated future cosls or in the discount rate applied are added or
deducted from the cost of property and equipment, The amount deducted from the cost of property and
equipment shall nat exceed its carying amount.

Continpent Liabilities and Contingent Assels

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated finencial statements, These are disclosed in the
notes to consolidated financial statements unless the probability of an cutflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is remote. Conlingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements
but disclosed in the rotes to consolidated financial statemenss when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable,

Events after { ing Period

Events after reporting date that provide additional information about the Group's financial position at the
reporting date (adjusting events), if any, are reflected in the consolidsted financial siastements. Events that
are not adjusting events, il any, are disclosed ln the notes to consolidated financial stalements, when
material.

Dividends on comman shares

Dividends on common shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when approved by the
vespective shareholders of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries and BSP while stock dividends are
deducted from equity when approved by the BOD, sharcholders of the Parent Company and the BSP.
Dividends for the year that are approved after the consolidated statement of ﬁna.ncual position date are dealt
with as an event after the consolidated statement of financial position date.

Segment reporting
The Group’s operating businesses are organized and manaped separately eccording to the nature of the

preducts and services provided, with each segment representing a steategic business unit that offers different
products and serves different markets. Financial information on business segments is presented in Note 4,
The Group's assets producing revenues are located in the Philippines (i.e., one geopraphical location).
Therefore, geographical segment information Is no longer presented,



finprovenments to PFRSs 2010

improvements to IFRSs are an omnibus of amendments to PFRSs, The amendments have not been adopted
s they become effective for annual periods on or after either July 1, 2010 or January t, 2011, The
amendments lisied below, are considered to have a reasonable possible impact on the Group:

PFRS 3, Business Combinations

PFRS 7, Financial Insiruments: Disclosures

PAS |, Presentation of Financial Statements

PAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Stotements

Philippine Interpretation 1FRIC 13, Customer Loyalty Progranimes

Philippine Interpretation 1IFRIC 19, Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instraments

Effective in 2012

PERS 7, Financial Instruments: Discloswres (Amendments) - Disclosures—Transfers of Financial Assets

The amendments to PFRS 7 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2011, The
amendments will allow users of financial statements to improve their understanding of transfer {ransactions
of financial assets (for example, securitizations), including understanding the possible effects of any risks
that may remain with the entity that teansferred the assets. The amendments also require additional
disclosures if a disproportionate amount of transfer transactions are undertaken around the end of a reporting
period. This amendment will have no impact on the Group afier initial application.

PAS 12, Income Texes (Amendment) - Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets

The amendment to PAS 12 is effective far annval periods beginning on or after January 1, 2012, It provides
a practical solution to the problem of assessing whether recovery of an asset will be through use or sale. It
introduces a presumption that recovery of the carrying amount of an asset will normaily be through sale,
This amendment will have no impact on the Group after initinl applicatica.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreement for Construction of Real Estate

This laterpretation, effective for snnuat periods begiuning on or after January 1, 2012, covers ascounting for
revenue and associated expenses by entities that undertake the construction of real estate directly or through
subcontractors. The Philippine Interpretation requires that revenue on comsiruction of real estate be
recopnized only upon completion, cxcept when such contract qualifies as construction contract to be
accounted for wader PAS 11, Construction Contracts, or involves rendering of services in which case
revenue is recognized based on stage of completion. Contracts Involving pravision of services with the
construction materlals and where the risks and reward of ownership are transferred to the buyer on a
continuous basls will also be accounted for based on stage of completion. The adeption of this
interpretation will have no effect on the financlal statements of the Group.

Effective in 2013

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement

PFRS 9, a5 issucd in 2010, reflects the first phase of the work on the replacement of PAS 39 and applics to
classification and mensurement of financial assets and financial Uabilities as defined in PAS 39, The
standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or afier Januvary [, 2013, In subsequent phases, hedge
accounting and derecognition will be addresscd, The completion of this project is expected in the middle of
2011, The adoption of the first phase of PFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement
of the Company's financial assets. The Group will quantity the effect of the first phase of PFRS ¢ in
conjunction with the other phases, when issued, 1o present a comprehensive picture of the impact of
adoption.

The Group, however, expects no impact from the adeption of the amendments on its financial position or
performance. )



3. Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions
The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires the Group to make judgtments
and estimates that affect the reported amounts of assels, liabilities, ifncome and
expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and contingent ligbilities, Future cvents may occur which will
cause the fudgrhents and assumptions used in atriving at the estimates to change. The effects of any change
in judgments and estimates are reflected in the financial statements as they become reasonably determinable.

Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on histerical experience and other factors,
including expectations of Ruture events thal are believed to be rensonable under the cireumstatices.

Judements
The following are the critical judgments and key assumptions that have a significant risk of material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year;

a.

e,

Determination of Fungtional Currency
The Group has dctcrmmcd its functional currency to be the Philippine peso. It is the currency of the
primaty economic environment in which the Group operates and the currency that mainly influences the
income and expenses,

Operating Lease Commfitments - Group as a Lessee
The Group has entered into 2 lease for some of its office spaces and branches, The Group has
determined that it has not acquired all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the

leased properties because of the following factors: (2) the Group will not acquire the ownership of the
leased asset upon termination of the lease; () the Group has no option to purchase the agset at a price
that is sufficiently lower than the fair value at the date of the option; and (c) the lease term is only for a
petiod of one year, renewable annually. Accordingly, the Group accounts for the lease as operating
Jeases.

Fair value af Jinancial instruments
Where the fair values of financial assets and financial lfabilities recorded in the statement of financial
position cannot be derived from active markets, these are determined using a varicty of valuation
techniques that include the use of mathematical models. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feaslble, a degree of judgment is required in
establishing fatr values. The judgments include considerations of liguidity and model inpuls such as
correlation and volatility for longer dated financial instruments (sec Note 26).

Financial assels nat gquoted in an active market
The Group classifies financial assets by evaluating, among others, whether the asset is quoted or not in
an active market. included in the evaluation on whether a financial asset is quoted in an active market
is the determination on whether quoted prices are readily and regulariy available, and whether those
prices represent actun] and regularly occurring market transsctions on an arm’s length basis.

Deteriatnarion of whether the Group is acting as a principal or an agent
The Group assesses its revenue arrangements against (he following criteria to determine whether it is
acting as a principal or an agent:

. whether the Group has primary responsibility for providing the goods and services;
. whether the Group has inventory risk;

. whether the Group has discretion in estoblishing prices; and

. whether the Group bears the credit risk.

If the Group has determined it is acting as a principal, revenue is recognized on a gross basis with the
amount remitied to the other party being accounted for as part of costs and expenses,

[f the Group has determined it is acting as an agent, only the net amount retained is recognized as
revenue,



The Group assessed its revenue arrangements and concluded thet it is acting as principal in some
arrangements and as an agent in other arrangements.

Estimates

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sotrces of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment 10 the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the pext Gnancial year are discussed below:

a)

b)

c)

d)

Fair vaine of financial instriments

PFRS requires that certain financial assets and liabilities be carried and disclosed at fair value, which
requires the use of nucounting estimates and judgments. While significant components of fair value
imeasurement are cletermined using verifiable objective evidence (i.e. foreign exchange rates, interest
rates, volatility rate), the timing and amount of changes in fair value would differ if the Group utifized o
different valuation methodology. Any change in the assumptions could affect the fair values of these
finzncial assets and liabilities,

Allowance for credif losses

The Group maintains an allowance for impairment losses at a 1¢vel considered adequate to provide for
potential uncollectible receivables, The level of allowance is evaluated by the Group on the basis of
factors that affect the collectibility of the accounts. These factors include, but are not limited to, the
length of the Group’s relationship with the customers, average age of accounts and callection
expericnce, The Group performs 2 regular review of the age and status of these accounts, designed to
identify accounts with olﬁcctive evidence of impairment and provide the appropriate allowance for
impairment losses, The review is accomplished using specific assessment approach. The amount and
timing of recorded

expenses for any period would differ if the Group made different judgments or utilized different
methodologies.

- No collective assessment. was performed by the Group since it only has few debtors, to which it can

easily perfotm individual assessment,

Impalriment of AFS equity investmenis

The Group detemrnines that AFS equity investmients are impaired when there has heen a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost. This determination of what is significant or
prolonged requires judgment. The Group treals ‘significant’ generally as decrease by more than 20.0%
of the original cost of investment, and *prolonged’ as greater than 12 months, In making this judgment,
the Group evaluates amonj other factors, the normal volatility in share price.

In addition, i!ﬁpairment may be approprinte when thete is evidence of deterioration in the financial
health of the investee, industry and sector performance, changes in technology, and operational and
financing cash flows,

Estimated useful lives of property and equipment, suftware and website

The useful lives of the property and equipment, software and website are estimated based on the period
over which the property and equipment, software and website are expected to be avallable for use and
on the collective assessment of industry practice, internal technical evaluation and experience with
similar assets. The estimated useful lives of property and equipment, software and website are
reviewed periodically and updated if expectations differ materially from previous estimates due to
physical wear and tear, technical or eommerclal obsolescence and legal or other [imits on the use of the
property and equipment, software and website. Hawever, il is possible that future results or operations
could be materially affected by changes in the estimates brought about by changes in factors mentioned
above, The amounts and timing of recording of expenses for any period would be affected by changes
in these factors and circurmstances,

There is no change in the cstimated useful lives of property and equipment, sofiware and website during
the year.



e)

g

h)

Impairment of nonfinancial assets (except Goodwill)

PAS 36, Impairment of Assefs, requires that an impaionent review be performed when certain
itpaizment indicators are present, Detormining the value in use of property and equipment and other
nonfinancial assets, which require the determination of future cash flows expected 1o be generated from
the continued use and ultimate dispositlon of such assets, requires the Group to make estimates and
assumptions thet can materially affect the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of Goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocnted. Estimating the value in
use requires the Qroup 1o make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-genetating
unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order 1o calculate the present value of those cash
flows,

Key assumptions used in value in use calculationg
The calculation of value in use for both cash-gencrating units are most sensitive to the following
assumplions explained as follows:

Disconnt Raies, Discount rates reflect management’s estimate of the risks specific to the cash
generating unit. This is the benchmark used by management to assess operating performance and to
evaluate future investment proposals,

Growthr Rate. Growth rate reflects management's estimate of (he cash generaling unit's earnings
potential as a function of economic and industry growth and the unit’s strategic position relative to its
competitors, For purposes of the prajection, a growth rate of 5.0% was used,

Sensitivity to Changes {n Assumptions

With regard to the assessment of value-in-use of the cash-generating unit, management believes that no
reasonably possible change in any of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying value of the
unit to materially exceed its recoverable amounl,

Goodwill amounted to #3.7 million as of September 30, 201 | and 2010,

Asset retirenent abligation

Detenmining asset retirement obligatlon requires estimation of the costs of dismantling installations and
restoring leased properties to their ariginal condition. While the Group believes that the assumptions
used in the estimation of such costs are reasonuble, significant changes in these assumptions may
materilly affect the recorded expense or obligation In the future period,

Accrued relirement cosls .

The determination of the Group's retirement cost is dependent on selection of certain assumptions used
by the actuary in calculating such amount. Those assumptions are described in Note 21 and include,
among others, discount tales, rates of future salary increase, expected rate of return on plan assets and
average remaining working lives of employees. Actual results thot differ from the Group's assumptions
are accumulated and amortized over future periods and therefore, generally affect the Group's
recognized cxpense and recorded obligatlon in such future periods. While management believes that
the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences in the Group’s actual experience
or significant changes in the assumptions may materially affect the pension and other retirement
obligation,

Deferred Tax Assets

The Group’s assessment onh the recognilion of deferred tax assels on deductible temporary differences is
based on the budgeted taxable income of the following pericd. This budget is based on the Group’s
past results and future expectations on revenue and expenses.



)

Legal Contingencies

The estimate of probable costs, if any, for the resolntion of possible claims is developed in consultation
with outside legal counsel handling the Group's defense in these matters and is based upon an analysis
of potential results. Based on management's assessment, there are no |isbilities that require recognition
arising from legal claims as of'this reporting date.

4, Sepment Information
For management purposes, the Group is orpanized into major operating business segments as follows:
a. Investment holdings _
The investment holdings segment denls in the acquisition and sale of financial instruments.
b. Remittance services
The remittance services segment provides the infrastructure and services as the largest direct agent for
money transfer of Qverseas Fllipino Workers. Beyond the remittance business, this segment Facilitates
the fulfillment of e-commerce Lransactions and serves as a payment platform for any Business to
Business (B2B) or Business to Customers (B2C) initiative.
¢ Internet services
The internet services segimeat is engaged in the business of internet online-related products relating to »
database search engine. [t also provides enterprise and consumer solutions via products of the internet.
d.  Mutual fund management
This segment deals in the manegement of mutual funds.
5. Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

) 31-Mar-2012 31-Dec-2011
Cash on hand and in banks ' $349,556,553 P252,712,417
Short-term investmants 551,838,155 - 287,699,554

£901,394,708 B540,411,971

Cash in banks earn interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates. Short-term investments are made
for varying periods of one to three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the prevailing short-term investment rates.



6. Receivables

This account consists of:

31-Mar-12 31-Cec-11
Trade 42,775,043 68.175.146
Dus from.
Yestem Union 207,315,327 347,017,898
Broker . 48.281.151
Sub-agents ' 15,285,589 15,285 589
Affiliates, 8,611,374 9.257.840
Business partnars 3.196.168
Unquoted dskt securities 291,278,506 296.879.500
Recoivable rom advertising and web -
development senices - - 33,664,119
Accrued Intergst 20,495,121 34,0587.391
Advances to Officers & Emloyees 2,117,386 2.7137.208
fdiscelleneous asasts ‘ . .
Othsrs ' 18,241.267 15692840
' 506,120,608 ~ 874.357.650
Lass allowanto for doubtful sceounts 41,290,810 _ 49.960.843
' 564,829,796 824 .397.007

Aging of Accounts Recalvable
as of March 31, 2012

No. of days Trade Due from WU| Interest Others Total
& Sub-agents
Current 222600913 | 20,493,121 5,000 | 243,101,037
1-30 davs 6,254,503 i 497332 | 6,782,237
31.60 days 4,306,630 1,506,630
§1-90 davs 1,427,624 1,427,624
Over 90 days 30,533,884 28334957 [ 39,090,841
Toral 22773,043 | 222600915 | 20485121 29,03728% | 314,508,369

Due from Western Union represents pay-outs from e-Business covering fund transfers and
remittance services, which were not yet reimbursed by Western Union as of the reporting date.

Due from sub-agents arising from money transfer services are shown net of related payables to the
same sub-agent. Sub-apent accounts showing net payable balances are shown under ‘Accounts
payable and other current liabilities’ in the consolidated statements of financial position,

The advances to officers and employees are either subject for liquidation or collectible through
salary deduction,

The terms and conditions of receivables are as follows:

» Due from sub-agents, business partners and Western Union are noninterest bearing and are
generally on a one to four days’ term,



= Due from broker is noninlerest—beéring and are usually collectible on a 3-day term.

* Receivables from advertising and web development services are normally collectible within
two to four months after completion of the contract while other receivables are due and
demandable upon completion of the transaction.

« Interest receivables are generally collectible on a 180-day tern.

»  Due from affiliates represents short-term noninterest bearing advances for working capital
requirements.

»  Other receivables such as business partners and prudential guarantees are all short-term in
nature,

Due from sub-agents arising from money transfer services are shown net of related payables to the
same sub-agent, Sub-agent accounts showing nel payable balances are shown under ‘Accounts
payable and other current liabilities” in the consolldated statements of financial position.

Financial Assets at FVPL,

This account consists of investments in;

31-Mar-12 31-Dec-11
Designated at FYPL . ‘ '
Corporate bonds 66,424,065 $6.627.840
Darivative assat
Cumrengy forward contracis . 111.952
66.424,065 ~ 86.739.792

This account pertains to the Group’s investment in a puttable bond with a coupon rate of 8.0%
amounting to $1,900,000 due on January 18, 2013, Bondholders have the right to sefl the bonds
back to the issuer at 100.0% of their prmc:pal amount on January 19, 2011,

As of December 31, 2009, this account pertains to the Group’s investment in  zero coupon
convertible bonds amounting to $5.0 million due an March 20, 2012, The bond is convertible into
fully paid shares of the issuer with & par value of 10 each at the conversion price of P472.8 per
share, Bondholders have the right to sell the bonds back to the issuer at 111.0% of their principal
amount,

On March 19, 2010, the Group has exercised the put options on the corporate bonds. The carrying
value of the corporate bonds and the proceeds from the exercise of the put options amounted to
$5.5 million, The margina! deposit amounting to US $0.3 million used as collateral on the foreign
gxchange exposure was received from the trustee bank upon settlement, Also, the related currency
forward ¢ontracts, with notional amount of US $5.5 miltion, were settled on this date.

Currency Forward Contracts

This account pertains to forward contracts entered into by the Group to ecnnomlcaliy hedge the
foreign exchange risk on the aforementioned corporate bonds and to engage in onshore-offshore
arbitrage transactions. The Company's outstanding currency forward contract used in hedging has
an aggregate notional amount of US $5.4 millicn and US $7.7 million as of Se.ptembcr 30, 2011
and December 31, 2010, respectively.



8. Awvailable-For-8ale Investments

This account consists of investments i

31-Kar12 31-Dsc-11
Fixed Income Sgcurities 1.240,807.793 1.884.122.384
Unreslized Gainl.oss 121,.310.727
1.362,118.521 1.834.122.384
Equilies 1,522,127,378 1.270,928.849
Unrealized GainflL.oss 338,904,638 ‘
1,861.032,015 1.270.928.949
futuat Funds # UITF ¢ ClubShare 955,080,601 1.144.164.690
Allows For Gainil.oss in Market Valug 445,273,050
1.400,353,651 1.144.164.690
4.623,504.187 4.299.216.023
9. Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets
Thls account consists oft
31-far12 31-Dse-11
Prepaid expenses 9,333,619 6,500,670
Input velue-added tax 2,983,540 6.733.312
Creditabe withholding ax 1,942,826 3.335.870
Olhars 4,009,064 2.165,200
18,269,048 16.735.052
Less allowanca for impaiment losses 4.632.826
18,269,048 13.899.226
10. Property and Equipment
This account consists of:
31-Kar.12 31-Dag-11 .
Cost 325,655,516 326.912.300
Less accumulated depreciatian 282,354,499 282.680.641
43,301.017 44.331.669




11. Other Noncurrent Assets

This account consists of?

3-War12 31-Doc-11
Recaivables from sals of investmeants 96,592,600 96,592.600
Daposits 19,728,479 18.456.517
Software and wsbsite cots 70,512,106 3.261.053
Others 638,807 795,384
107,472,992 " 119,105,554
Less allowance for impainnent losses 162,200,969 96.915.015
25,192.023 22,290.639 .

The Parent Company’s investment in Lucky Star Corporation (a company incorporated to operate
off-front on betting statlons in the country), was sold in 2001 slnce management believes that
there is a significant uncertainty with respect to the recovery of this investment due to the Supreme
Court decision to shut down Jai-alai operations. The receivable arising from the sale Is collectible
over 10 years at pre-agreed installment terms until 2012 and is fully provided with allowance for
credit losses.

12. Accounts Payable and Other Current Lighilities

This account consists pf‘:

H.Mer12 31-Dac-11
Due to sub-agents and brokers 79,240,337 135,273,271
Accruad expenses : 58,157,987 £9.935 443
Trade 22,072,558 56.555.898
Derivative liability ' 777.820
Othars 24.816.979 25.922.604
‘ 184,287.061 280,465,034

Terms and conditions of financial liabilities follow:

» Due to sub-agents and brokers are noninterest-bearing and are normally settled
on a.two to four days’ term.

= - Accrued interest are payable within 30 days from its accrual,

= Trade payables, accrued expenses and other payables are noninterest-bearing and are normally
settled on a 60 10 90-day term.



13.

Long-term Debt

e-Business availed of U.S. dollar denominated loans from Western Union Network (Canada)
Limited (Western Union - Canada) amounting to $160,000-in 2005 and another $160,000 in 2006
and in 2008. The loans are payable In 30 equal monthly installments commencing from the first
repayment date and bear an annual inferest rale equal to LIBOR rate plus 1.00%.

The loan availed is secured by the Company’s fund in the Settlement Account or from funds owed
by Western Union - Canada amounting to R108.9 miilion and #219.9 millton as of September 30,
2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively.

. Assef Retirement Obligation

The Group established provision to recognize estimated liability for dismantlement of its leasehold
improvements. Summary of the provisions are as follows:

31-Mar-12 31-Dec-2011

Balance at beginning of the year ' B-- 84,145,582
Reversal - (4,145,582)

Balance as of March 31, 2012 a- R

The actual decommissioning cost could vary substantially from the above estimate because of new
regulatory requirements, changes in technology, increased cost of labor, materials, and equipment
andfor actual time required completing all decommissioning activities.



15, General and Administrative Expenses

This account consists of:

y 31.kar-12 31-Mar-11
Pergannal costs 28,543,112 33,520,620
Rent and Utilities 21,399,048 . 20.131.254
Oulside senices 16,056,866 16.461.198
Professianal feas 3,879,389 2.739.176
Transporation travel and communication 1,462,822 1234955
Offics Supplies 2.587.,516 4.926.776
Advertising 111,360 19.285
Taxes and Licensses 3,419,697 2.573.665
Entertainment. smusement and recreation ' : 648,837 548.162
idiscellangous | 4,337,113 5.401.018

82,166,362 87,559,109

16. Lease Commitntents

e-Business leases its office space and the space occupied by its branches with varying periods up
to 15 years and, renewable on such terms and conditions as shall be mutuzlly acceptable by
e-Business and the lessors, Rent expense charged to operations amounted to £#64.31 million in the
nine month period of 2011 and P66.69 same perlod of last year,

17. Retirement Costs

e-Business has‘a funded, noncontribﬁtory defined benefit pension plan covering substantialiy all of
its qualified employees. The Parent Company and Yehey! have an unfunded, noncontributory
defined benefit pension plan covering substantially efl of their qualified employees.

18. Equity
a, Capital Stock - 1 par value of common shares

The details of this account are shown below:

. 2011 2010
Authorized shares 2,250,000,000 2,250,000,000
Issued and outstanding shares 2,235,390,633 2,235,390,633

On June 4, 2008, the BOD increased the Parent Company’s authorized capita) stock from
£1,900,000,000 10 £2,250,000,000, as well as the issuance of 25% stock dividend to its
stockholders. This increase in capital stock was approved by the SEC and PSE on

January 12, 2009, while the stock dividends were distributed to stockholders as of record date
of February 10, 2009 on March 6, 2009,

b. Treasury stock



On various dates in 2009, the Parent Company reacquired a total of 26.9 million shares for an
aggregate price of B35.1 million. The aggregate amounts are presented in the consolidated
financial statements as ‘Treasury stock’.

In addition, on various dates in 2010, the Parent Company reacquired a total of 134.9 million
shares for an aggregate price of R153.4 million.

c. Stock Option Plan

The Parent Company has a Plan covering all its officers, directors and regular employees.
Under the Plan, the option price should not be less than the average closing price of the Parent
Company’s stock listed In the stock exchange on the last trading day immediately preceding
the effectivity of the grant, The number of shares covered by this Plan and the subscription
price are subject to adjustment for any stock dividend, stock splits or, rights, merger,
consolidation, recapitalization and the like. As of December 31, 2010, the Parent Company
has not designated the number of shares to be covered by the Plan, Thus, there are no
potential common shares that would result to diluted EPS.

1.

Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered 1o be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. This
includes: (a) individuals owning, directly or indirectly through ome or more intermediaries,
control, or are controlled by, or under common control with, the Group; (b) associates; and,
{c) individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Group that
gives them significant influence over the Group and close members of the family of any such
individual.

20.

Finanecial Risk Management Objecﬁves and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents, AFS investments
financial assets at FVPL, notes payable, long-term debt and bonds payable. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to finance the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables, deposits and accounts payable and other
current liabilities, which arise directly from its operations.

The main rigks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risks. The BOD reviews and approves the policies for managing each risk and these are
summarized below:

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur a 2 loss because its customers or counterparties failed
to discharge their contractual obligations. The Group manages and controls credit risk by trading
only with recognized, creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are SUbJ ect to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group’s exposure to bad debts
is mot significant.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group.



Since the Group trades only with recognized third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its payment obligations when zhey
fall due under normal and stress circumstances, To limit this risk, the Group closely monitors its
cash flows and ensures that credit facilities are available to meet its obligations as and when they
fall due. The Group also has a committed line of credit that it can access to meet liquidity needs,
Any excess cash is Invested in short-term money market placements. These placements are
maintained to meet maturing obligations.

Market Risk
-Market risk is the risk that movements of market prices will adversely affect the Group's financial
condition. In managing its market risk exposure, the Group focuses on managing price (risk of
loss arising from any change in the value of any asset or trading instrument) and foreign exchange
risks (visk of loss arising from fluctuations in exchange rates).

Market risk of the Group’'s trading portfolio is measured by a statistical measure of probable loss
called Value-at-Risk (VaR). The Group originally used an exponentially weighted parametric
VaR with 2 99.0% one-tailed confidence level, However, due to adverse market conditions at -
present, the said measure is being enhanced to better reflect the Group’s market risk exposure,
The enhancements are currently under review and subject to approval by the BOD.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility.that changes in interest rates will affect future cash
flows or the fair values of financial instruments. The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes
in interest rates re¢lates primarily to the Group's AFS investments,

The sensitivity of equity is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates by revaluing the
fixed rate AFS investments (effect on equity) and fixed rate financial assets at FVPL (effect on
income) held as of statement of financial position date. The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates with all other variables held constant,
of the Group's equity.

Foretgn Currency Risk.

The Group has transactional curtency exposures. The Group’s financial instruments which are
denominated in foreign currency include cash and cash equivalents, receivables, notes payable and
long-term debt. The Group maintains several U.S, dollar and Japanese Yen accounts to manage its
foreign currency denominated transactions.

The following table presents the impact on the Group’s income before income tax due to change

in the fair value of its monetary assets and liabilities, brought about by a reasonably possible

change in the U.S. dollar to Peso exchange rates and Japanese Yen to Peso exchange rates, with all

other variables held constant. There Is no other impact on equity other than those affecting
© ea&rnings.

The increase in U.S. dollar to Peso rate means weaker Peso against U.S. dollar while decrease in
U.S. dollar to Peso exchange rate means stronger Peso against the U.S. dollar, while the increase
in Japanese Yen to Peso raie means stronger Peso against Japanese Yen while decrease in
Japanese Yen to Peso exchange rate means weaker Peso against the Japanese Yen.



Equity Price Risk

Equlty price risk is the risk that the fair velue of quoted AFS investments will fluctuate as the
result of changes in the value of individual stocks. The Group’s exposure to equity price risk
relates primarily to the Group’s quoted AFS investments.

The foliowing table demonstrates the sensitlvity to a reasonably possible change in equity price,
with all other variables held comstant, of the Group’s equity, The impact on the Group's equity
already excludes the impact on transactions affecting the income before income tax, The possible
change in equity prices was determined using historical closing prices of the benchmark
30~comipany Philippine stock index (PHISIX).

Capital Management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to safeguard the entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital. .

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capltal structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or Issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity ratio, This ratio is calculated
as long-term debts over total equity, excluding cumulative net unrealized gain or loss on change in
falr value of AFS investments.

21. Basic/Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share

‘ - 31-tnr12 31ldar-11
Het income altribute to squity 103,822,546 156.264 508
halder of tha parent (a) .
Common sharas outstanding at baginning of year 2,235,390,633 2.046.369 795
%“49illad sharg issued for the period -
Heighted averaga common share ib? 2.235,390,633. 2.046.869.795

{alby ‘ 0.0464 0.0759




ANNEX« c »

UNDERTAKING

The undersigned, being the President and Chief Operating Officer of
VANTAGE EQUITIES, INC. (the “Corporation™), hereby undertakes, for
and in behalf of the Corporation, that the second quarter report for the period
ended 30 June 2012 shall be made available during the scheduled Annual
Stockholders Meeting of the Corporation on 4 August 2012,

This Undertaking is being issued in compliance with the Securities
and Exchange Commission’s requirements for the approval of the
Corporation’s Definitive Information Statement (Definitive 20-IS) to be
distributed to the Corporation’s stockholders before the Annual
Stockholder’s Meeting.

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this 13" day of July 2012
at Pasig City, affiant exhibiting to me his Community Tax Certificate No.

Fﬂ&u} issued on Q. 12 at the City of Manila, as well as his Tax
dentification Number 187~ [¢4- g7, | ,

Doc. No. A7 ;
Page No. _ {3 ; | d!}gizg
Book No. /7 ; pMARIA CHEINIXY, SORIA

. Notary Pubiic for and [ the Citiss of Pasilg, Tagulg,
Series of 2012. San Jusn and Monicipaity of Paderos
Appaingtant No, 193 (2011-2612)
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Exchange Road, Qrigas Center, Pasig‘ City 1.695
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